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INVESTMENT
PROPOSITION

Halma has an impressive record of creating sustained shareholder value through the
economic cycle. We have consistently delivered record profits, high retums, strong
cash flows with low levels of balance sheet gearing and have a 30+ year track record
of growing dividend payments by 5% or more every year.

Our ability to achieve record profits through the recent penods of economic turbulence 1s dernved
from our strategy of having a group of businesses bulding strong competitve advantage in
specialised safety, health and environmental technology markets with resiient growth drivers
These growth dnvers, such as increasing Heafth and Safety regulation, mean that demand for
our preducts is sustained, In both developed and developing regions, through penods of
significant macro-economic change

Organic growth generates the financial and business resources we need to fund acquisitions
and keep increasing dvidends

We generate organic growth momentum by increasing levels of nvestment in people
development, new product develcpment and establishing platforms for growth in developing
markets Here, the need for improving Safety, Health and Environmental regulation is increasingly
recognised by governments and demanded by the wider population

Over the long term, we actively manage the mix of businesses in our Group to ensure we

can sustain strong growth and retums We acquire businesses to accelerate penetration of more
attractive market niches, we merge businesses when market charactenstics change and we ext
markets which offer less attractive long-term growth and retums through carefully planned
disposals

Halma's restient market qualties, organic growth momenturm and active portfolio management
postion us strongly to create shareholder value and achieve high levels of performance in
the future

Outperforming the market - Total Shareholder Return (five years)
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OUR

Protecting life
3 U S | N _SS Sectors Process Safety

Products which protect assets and
people at work Specialised interocks

: which safely control entical processes
Instruments which detect flarmmable

Halma's business 1s about protecting Iife and improving qualty

and hazardous gases Explosion
protechon dewices

of Iife for people worldwide

We are an internaticnal manufactuning group with businesses
in 23 countries and have our major operations in Europe, USA
and Asia We are highly cash generative and able to deliver
world class retumns on a sustainable basis

We operate in relatively non-cychcal, specialist global niche

markets Our technology and application know-how deliver Financial

strong competitive advantage to sustain growth and high highlights £1 26m £32m
retumns Our chosen markets have significant barmers to entry Revenue Operating
Demand for our products 1s underpinned by long-term, profit’

resiient growth drivers

Primary * Increasing health and safsty

growth regulation
Watch our introduction to Halma animated video on our drivers * Increasing demand for Ife-cntical
website at www halma.com or at http://goo.gl/nLxYq mv\;astc;%fces (such as energy and
Revenue by destination Profit' by sector Where we operate
£619m £140m
USA31% Process Safety 23%
Mainiand Europe 25% Infrastructure Safety 30%
United Kingdom 19% Medical 25%
Asia Pacific 16% Envronmental
Other 9% & Analysis 22%
Process Safety
Infrastructure Safety
Medical
Environmenta & Analysis
Comorate

1 See Note 1 tothe Accounts




Infrastructure Safety

Products wiich detect hazards to protect
assets and people n public spaces and
commercial buildings Fire and smoke
detectors, secunty sensors and audible/
visual waming devces Sensors used on
automatic doors and elevators in
buldings and transportation

Impraving quality of life

Medical

Products used to improve personal and
publc heatth Dewvices used to assess
eye health, assist with eye surgery and
pnmary care applicatons Ruidic
cormponents such as pumps, probes,
valves and connectors used by medical
diagnostic OEMs

Environmental & Analysis
Products and technologes for analyss in
safety, ife sciences and environmental
markets Market leading opto-electronic
technology and gas conditioning
products Products to mondor water
networks, UV technology for disnfecting
waler; and water quality testing products

£205m £42m

Revenue Operating
profit’

£136m £36m

Revenue Operating
profit!

£152m £30m

Revenue Operating
profit!

* Increasing health and safety regulation

* Increasing demand for healthcare

* Increasing demand for healthcare

» [ncreasing dermand for Ife-cntical
resources (such as energy and water)

Employees by location
{30 March 2013)

4,995

USA 32%

Manland Europe 16%
United Kirgdom 34%
Asia Pacific 18%
Other 0%

The map s representative of the countnes n whech each sector operates
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue

£619.2Mm+7%

(2012 £5799m)

23 £619.2m
2012 £5789m
2011 £5184m
2010 £459 tm
2009 £4559m
2008 £398 Om
2007 £354 6m
2006 £337 3m
2005 £299 1m
2004 £292 6m
Adjusted profit before taxation
£130.7Mm+8%
(2012 £120 5m)
2013 £130Tm
2012 £1205m
2011 £104 6m
2010 £86 2m
2009 £791m
2008 £732m
2007 £66 1m
2006 £59 6m
2005 £50 4m
2004 £503m
Continuing operations 2013 2012 Change
Revenue £619 2m £5798m +%
Adjusted Profit before Taxaton' £130 7m £1205m +8%
Statutory Profit before Taxation £122 3m £1120m +9%
Adjusted Earnings per Share? 26 22p 24 46p +%
Statutory Eamings per Share 2522p 2301p +10%
Total Dvdend per Share? 1043p 974p +1%
Return on Sales? 211% 20 8%
Return on Total Invested Capital® 15.8% 16 8%
Return on Caprtal Employed® 713% 747%
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Business review 10-59
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Return on sales
21 .1 /0
{2012 20 8%)
2013 211%
2012 20 8%
2011 202%
2010 188%
2009 17 3%
2008 18 4%
2007 186%
2006 177%
2005 167%
2004 17 2%
Dividend paid and proposed (per share)
(2012 974p)
2013 4m
2012 £36 7m
2011 £34 3m
2010 £32 0m
2009 m
2008 £282m
2007 £26 8m
2006 £25 3m
2005 £240m
2004 £22 8m

Pro-forma information
' Adsted to remove the amortsabion of acguired intangble assets, acquistion transaction costs movernent on contngent consideration and profit on disposal of operations of
8 4m {2012 £B.5m). See note 1 o Ihe Accounts.

2 Adpusted to remonve the amorisation of acqured mtangible assets acquestion transaction cosis, movement on contingent considerabon profit on disposal of operations and the
assocated tax See note 2 to the Accounts

2 Total dradend paxd and proposed per share
* Raturn on Sales 15 defined as adjusted’ profit before taxation from contrung operatons axprassed 83 a percentags of revenus rom coninung operanons

5 Organc growth rates Retum on Total ivested Capital and Retum on Capital Employed are non-GAAP performance measures used by management in measunng the retums
achieved from the Group's asset base See nota 3 to the Accounts
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“...the performance over
these years is due to a truly
dedicated team of people
across the Group.”

A glance backwards and a glimpse forwards

As previously announced, | wil be stepping down from the Board
immediately after the AGM on 25 July 2013 Halma has only had two
Chairmen in the past 40 years, the founder, Dawvid Barber, and myself
When Davd stepped down in July 2003 he departed from the annual
reporting format of commenting on the year’s results and instead
reflected on some of Halma's achievements over the years | thought
| would do the same, as the results are reported fully elsewhere in this
report, save to say that 2012/13 was another record year and we are
recommending a dvidend increase of 7%, the 34th year of increases
of 5% or more

“Welcome to Halma Mr Unwin”

My first AGM was in July 2003 and what immediately struck me was
the number of pnvate shareholders who were there — all passionate
Halma followers Cne gentleman came up to me and said, *I have
been a loyal shareholder for many years and thanks to the

4 Halma plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

progressive dvdends from Halma, have been able to educate my
children So thank you, welcome to Halma Mr Unwin®™ He then fixed
me with a look that said “and don't mess it up” (it may have been
stronger!) It then really struck home what a prvileged and onerous
responsibiity | had taken on

Glancing back
So what has changed over the ten years?

Firstly, what has nct changed 1s the fundamental business model our
companies operate n niche markets where demand 1s underpinned
by strong growth drivers They produce high retums on sales and
caprital, and those retums go to pay taxes, dvidends and re-
nvestment in the business, INcluding buying more companies with
simiar charactenstics All this 1s embraced by strong reporting and
controls

Cne significant change was the appointment of Andrew Wiliams as
CEQ n February 2005, only the third CEQ in Halma's history Andrew
provides clear, calm, insightful leadershup and the Group's
performance under his tenure speaks for dself He s a pleasure to
work with

Cur strategy has been sharpened, and the framework under which
we operate more clearly defined (detaled in this Annual Report)

Delegation and strong autonormy has been re-enforced at the
subsidiary company level Our Managing Dwectors have huge
freedom to operate and to innovate N response to what ther

customers are teling them This freedlom also generates high
job sabsfacton




The necessary financial and management resources have been put
In place to support our strategy Two examples Blustrate this

* Acquistions our Dwisional Chief Executives (DCEs) are
tasked with identfying suitable acquisthens The pressure on their
tme was such that we found we were not seeing sufficient
opportunibes and when we decided 'to put money to work’ we
could not always reach our goals So, we strengthened our
acquisition sourcing efforts with a few highly expenenced
executives to support the DCEs Our recent acquisiion history
lhustrates that this is working effectvely but, there will continue
to be times when we decide that the economic climate or prices
are not favourable and therefore we will stand aside for a while

* Geographic expansicn we recognised that we were underweight
in the faster growing economies and unless addressed, our growth
would suffer The problem was how to make it easier for our
companies to enter those markets? Cur solution was to create
hubs in China and India (with other sector-based hubs now
followang) staffed by pecple with the remit to do whatever was
necessary to make it easier for our companies to start operating
there Cne can see a logical progression of our business in, say,
China We start wath a hub, then increase local sales through our
regional offices, then local product assembly, then local R&D As a
result more MDs are resident in the region and finally we start to
acquire companies, e ¢ Lenger Pump acquired this year in China
In 2003 under 10% of our business came from Asia Pacfic, this
year it 1s over 16% and in China our headcount has moved from 70
to 770 We have made a significant investment and the foundations
are strong for growth in the future

Incentives At the beginning of the penod, bonuses were rarely
achieved and options were under-water We refreshed the total
remuneration framework based around Economic Value Added [EVA)
together with introducing new long-term incentives all akgned with our
strategy and adding shareholder value Shareholders can see very
clearly that in very good years bonuses will hit theirr maximum and

i poor years may well be zero They correlate No surpnses there,
they are based on EVA It was also flattenng to hear that one of our
major shareholders cites the Halma remuneration scheme as a model
for others!

Much emphasis has also been placed on the quality of our company
boards, partcularty aganst the ever-ncreasing demands of globa!
markets Formal management training has been introduced tarored
to our needs This started with the Halma Executive Developrment
Programme and now runs nght through to our own graduate
development programme This has alsc encouraged our companies
to develop traning programmes of therr own

We have taken steps on gender diversity at the Board level, although
at the company level it 1s much more difficult unless more female
talent 1s encouraged throughout our operations Pleasingly, in 2013,
the majonty of our graduate programime recruits are female

A number of promobions have came from within so that people
can see career opportunities across the Group - not just therr
OWnN company

There has been a major shift N shanng and co-operation, helped by
our training programmes and using technology (intranets and social
medig) to enable it We ntroduced a Halma Innovation and
Technology Exposition four years ago, which 1s now held every two
years to enable all the companes to share therr Innovation and
technology with other Halma companies This event has become
more and more powerful and effective, there i1s a palpable buzz In
the ar

Overview 02-09

Business review 10-59
Governance 60-86
Financial statements B7-147

In the penod since March 2003 we have increased our dividend
per share by 79% declanng £300m of dmdends for shareholders
Halma's market capitaiisabon has increased nearty five-fold and
we have become one of the top 150 companes on the

London Stock Exchange

A glimpse forwards
* The basic model 1s sound and our strategy, which 1s kept under
challenging review, will evolve, just as it has done over the years

* More and maore of our subsidiary boards will have to deal with the
challenge of moving from demestic, single continent operations to
global, mutt-continent operations As we know, this 1s not a tnivial
matter and the model that works best for each company will largely
be dictated by the structure of therr customers

+ To compete we have {0 have the best teams, s0 training,
development and talent spotting will continue to increase
N Importance

* 2016 or thereabouts will be a key year; the year when China s
forecast to overtake the LUSA as the world's biggest econony
{according to the OECD after accounting for pnce differences) This
will have a profound effect For Halma, it means that the centre of
gravity of R&D will change, and that's only three years ahead!

* These changes will test our structures, but | know Halma wilk nse
to these challenges

* Progress up the FTSE also bnngs new pressures More and more
people will be aware of Halma

+ Finally, for sure, the pace of business and mnovation will not get
any skower | used to say In a prewious Iife, that what used to take
us nine months to achieve would shortly be required in rine wesks
and then, who knows, nine days!

| hope this gives some insight Into the way Halma has evolved over
the last ten years and gives a gimpse to the future

What 1s certan 1s that these changes, and the performance over
these vears Is due to a truly dedicated tearm of peopls across the
Group It1s therr focus on our custormers and the markets they serve
that make the difference To everyone in Halma, | say a sincere thank
you for all that you have achieved, you have made my role a pleasure

} should also ke to thank my predecessor, David Barber, for making
rmy inducton into the Company he founded so smooth, to all my
colleagues on the Board, they have been temfic, both challenging
and supporive as needed

Finalty, in Paul Walker, we have a highly successful international
businessman with the relevant expenence and the nght personal
atinbutes to char Halma to even greater herghts | look forward
to you welcoming him at the AGM

It has been a privilege

Geoff Unwin
Chairman

Halma plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013 5




Process safety
We make products which protect assets
and people at work

20%

of Group revenue

PROTECTING
LIFE




Infrastructure safety
We make products which detect
hazards to protect assets and
people in public spaces and
commeraial bulldings

390

of Group revenue

Overview 02-09

Business review 10-59
Govemance 60-86
Financial statements B7-147
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Medical
We make products used to improve
personal and public health O

of Group revenue

IMPROVING
QUALITY OF LIFE
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Environmental & Analysis
We make products and technologies
for analysis in safety, ife sciences and
environmental markets

970

of Group revenue

Halma pl Annual Report and Accounts 2013 9




STRATEGIC
REVIEW

“Halma made good progress during the year delivering a strong
trading performance, significant M&A activity and further increases
in investment in geographic expansion, innovation and

people development.”

10 Halma plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013
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How we run our business
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Business model
What s Halma's growth objective?

Our business model objective 1s to double Group revenue and profit
every five years

We aim to achieve this through a mix of acquisitons and organic
growth Return on Sales in excess of 18% and Retum on Capital
Employed over 45% ensure that cash generation 1s strong enough
to sustain growth and increase dmdends without the need for hugh
levels of extemal funding

Read more p20

Strategy
How do we grow?

We operate in relatively non-cyclical, specialised global niche markets
Our technology and application know-how deliver strong competitve
advantage fo sustan growth and ingh retums  Our chosen markets
have significant bamers to entry Demand for our products is
underpinned by long-term, resilient growth drivers

We place our operational resources close to our customers through
autonomous locally managed businesses

We remnvest cash into acquinng high performance businesses in,
or close to, our existing markets

Read more p20

Halma plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013 1n




Key Performance Indicators (KPls):

Financial
Strategic focus

Through strategic rvestmerit n people development, intematonal expansion and Nnovation we aim to achieve organic growth

In excess of our blended market growth rate of 5%

Organic revenue growth

2%

Performance

Target

Crganic revenue growth

2013 2%
2012 5%
2011 11%
2010 1%
2009 1%
KPI definition

Organic revenue growth measures the change in revenue achieved in
the current year compared with the pnor year from continung Group
operations The effect of acquisiions and disposals made dunng the
current or pnor financial penod has been equalised

Comment

Organic growth In revenue but below our minimum target At
constant currency organic revenue growth of 3% was achieved Over
the last five years our average rate of annual organic revenue growth
has been 6% pa which s 1% in excess of our minimum target

2014 target

Organic profit growth

4%

Performance

>5%

Organic profit growth

2013
2012
2011
2010
2009

KPI definition
Qrganic profit growth measures the change in profit acheved in

4%
5%
19%
9%
5%

the current year compared with the pror year from continuing Group

operations The effect of acquisiions and disposals made dunng
the current or pnor financial penod has been equalised

Comment

Organic profit growth achveved with a strong performance in the
Medical and Process Safety sectors Organic profit growth at
constant currency was 5% Over the last five years our average
rate of annual organic profit growth hasbeen 8% pa

The Board has establshed a long-term minimum crganic growth target of 5% p a representing the blended long-term average growth rate
of our markets This target remans appropnate given the Group's overall revenus and profit objective of growing by 15% p a after acquistion

revenue and profit are taken into account

In order to meet the target of organic growth in excess of 5%, the Group must maintain its focus on Investment I Nnovation, people
development and geographic expansion in order to ensure the momentum developed over recent years 1s continued

The pnmary factors affecting our ability to meet the larget relate to competitive Innovations overtaking the Group's technology

and macro-economic factors

See also
+ Chief Executve's Strategic Review p10

¢ Financial Review p46
* Prnncipal Risks and Uncertanties p53
+ Note 3 to the Accounts p1Oi1
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Financial

Strategic focus

The safety, heatth and environmental markats n Asia and

other developing regions are evoiing quickly and offer us higher
rates of growth in the future We continue to invest in establishing
local seling, techmeal and manufactunng resources o meet this

current and future need

International expansion

25%

Performance

30% (by 2015)

Target

Revenue outside the UK, USA and Mainland Europe

2013 25%
202 24%
2011 24%
2010 21%
2000 22%
KPI defintion

Total sales to markets outside the UK, USA and Manland Europe
as a percentage of total revenue from continuing operations

Comment

Revenue outside the UK, USA and Mainland Europe increased to

25 4% of the Group total (2012 23 8%} with revenue from Asia Pacific
up by 15% Revenue from China grew by 25% to £37m which 1s now
5 6 times the level In 2006 when we established our first Halma hubs

2014 target

Our am s for evenue outside the UK, USA and Manland Europe to
be 30% of the Group total by 2015 Halma corporate hubs were
established in China and India to assist companies in setting up local
operations More operating companies have established a presence
in South Amenca dunng 2012/13 and this trend should deliver
benefits n 2013/14 and beyond

See also
» Chief Executive’s Strategic Review pi0

¢ Financal Review p46
* Note 1 to the Accounts pS8

Financial

Strategic focus

We choose to operate n markets which are capable of

delrvenng hugh retums The ability to sustan these retums is a result of
mamtaining strong market and product positions together with
excellent management of our operations and assets

Return on Sales

21.1%

Performance

Target

Returm on Sales

2013 21 1%
2012 20 8%
2011 20 2%
2010 18 8%
2000 17 3%
KPI definition

Retum on Sales 1s defined as adjusted profit before taxaton from
continung operations expressed as a percentage of revenue from
continuing operations

Comment

High returns achieved representing a further improvement in
performance aganst the previous year The increased rate of
profitability of three of our four sectors drove this result

2014 target
We aim to achieve a Return on Sales within the 18% to 22% range
while continuing to deliver profit growth

See also
» Chief Executive’s Strategic Review p10

* Financial Review p46
* Note 3 to the Accounts p101
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Key Performance Indicators (KPls):

Financial

Strategic focus

We choose to operate in markets which are capable of delivenng tuigh returmns  The ability to sustamn these retums is a result of
mantaning strong market and product positions together with excellent management of our operations and assets

ROTIC (Return on Total Invested Caprtal)

15.8%

Performance

Target

ROTIC

2013 158%
2012 16 8%
2011 155%
2010 136%
2009 131%
KP1 definition

ROTIC s defined as the post-tax retum from continuing operations
before amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisiion
transaction costs, movement on conbngent consideration and profit
on disposal of operatrons, as a percentage of adusted shareholders'
funds

Comment
Consistently high returns are in excess of our long-term Weighted
Average Cost of Capital (WACC) of 8 4% (2012 8 0%}

Eamings ncreased but not as fast as our asset base with a high level
of retained eamings despite the increased dmvdend

2014 target

The target of 12% was set n 2005 when the Group's ROTIC was
12 1% and WACC was 79% A range of 12% to 17% 1s considered
representative of the Board's expectations over the long term

See also
* Chief Executive’s Strategic Review p10

¢ Fnancal Review p46
* Note 3 to the Accounts p101
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ROCE (Return on Capital Employed)

71.3%

Performance

Target

ROCE

2013 %
2012 75%
201 72%
2010 61%
2009 48%

KPI definition

ROCE is defined as the operating profit from continuing operations
before amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisthon
transaction costs, movement on contingent consideration and profit
on disposal of operations, as a percentage of capital employed

Comment

Very high returns mamntaned abeve the target level Growth achieved
wath increased Investment N operating assets and a continual drive
to sustain high levels of efficlency in our operations, and acquire high
ROCE busnesses

2014 target

The target of >45% 15 set in order to ensure the efficent generation
of cash at all levels to fund our target level of orgamic growth,
acquisiions and dmdend growth without Halma becoming a
highly-leveraged group

See also
* Chief Executve’s Strategic Review p10

¢ Financial Review p46
* Note 3 to the Accounts p101




Financial

Strategic focus

Generating sufficently high levels of cash provides the Group
with freedom to pursue tts strategic goals of organic growth,
acquisitions and progressive dvidends without becoming
highly-leveraged

Cash generation

84%

Performance

Target

Operating cash to profit

2013 84%
2012 B6%
201 89%
2010 112%
2009 82%

KPI definition
Cash generation I1s calculated using adjusted operating cash flow as a
percentage of adusted operating profit

Comment

Cash generation of 84% (2012 86%) 1s very close to the 85% target in
the current year with good cash performances across the Group but
work to do in mantaining appropnate debtor and mventory levels

The methodology used to calculate this KP1 has been revised from
the pnor penod as part of the Group's continuous appraisat of its
financial reporing, to ensure comparabiity with industry best
practice, and to give the most useful measure of the Group's cash
performance

The main change to the method of calculation is to include capital
expenditure as an operating cash flow whereas previously the KPI
followed the accounting treatment, which includes this expenditure
as a cash flow from investing activibies

2014 target

The goal of Group cash inflow exceeding 85% of profit 1s a metne that
has relevance at al levels of the orgarisation and aligns management
action wath Group needs We will ensure that strong internal cash flow
and avalabiity of external funding underpin our strategic goals of
organic growth, acquisitons and progressive dwvidends

See also
¢ Chief Executive’s Strategic Review p10

* Financtal Review pa6
* Note 3 to the Accounts p101

Financial

Strategic focus

We buy companies with business and market charactenstics
similar to those of existing Halma operations  Acquired businesses
have to be a good fit with our operating culture and strategy n
addrion to being value-enhancing financially

Acquisition spend

£148m

Performance

Acquisitions £m spent

2m3 £148m
2012 £20m
2011 £82m
2010 £2m
2000 £12m

KPI definition

The cash cutflow {including repayment of acquired bank loans} 1s
disclosed 1n the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement under Acquisition
of businesses (plus any net debt acquired)

Comment

We succeeded in buying six excellent companies dunng the year We
have substantial financial capacity and facilities in place to finance
more value-enhancing acquistions

2014 target

2013 ended with sufficient financial capactty to finance further
acquistions, and one addiional business has been acquired early In
the new year Acguisition targets must meet our demanding cntena

We have a strong pipeline of opportunites and have added further
resources to our search actvites

See also
* Chief Executive’s Strategic Review p10

* Financial Review p46
* Pnncipal Risks and Uncertainties p53
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Key Performance Indicators (KPls):

Financial

Strategic focus

We have mantamed high levels of R&D investment and spending
oninnovaten The successful introduction of new products s a key
coninbutor to the Group's ability to build competitve advantage and
grow organically and intemationally

R&D investment

5.0%

Performance

Target

R&D as a % of revenue

2m3 50%
2m2 47%
201 50%
2010 47%
2000 50%
KPI1 definition

Total research and development expenditure in the financial year
{both that expensed and capitalised) as a percentage of revenue from
continuing operations

Comment

Total spend in the year was £311m (2012 £274m) exceeding

the 4% of revenue target All four sectors increased both the amount
of R&D expenditure as well as the R&D percentage of sector revenue

2014 target

New products contnbute strongly to achievng organic growth,
mantaning high retums and buiding strong market positions The
4% minmum investment target s appropnate to the mix of product
Iife cycles and technologies within Halma

See also
» Chief Executive’s Strategic Review pi0

* Corporate Responsibility p56
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Non-financial

Strategtc focus

The Halma Executve Development Programme (HEDP), the
Halma Management Development Programme HMDP), the Halma
Certfficate In Applied Technology (HCAT) and the Halma Graduate
Development Programme (HGDP) provide exectutives, middle
managers and key personnel with the necessary skills they need in
therr current and future roles

Development programmes

56%

Performance

Target

Management development

2013 56%
2012 54%
201 71%
2010 67%
2009 55%

KPI deficttion

Nurnber of curent employees attending an n-house development
programme compared with the estmated pool of qualifying
parhcipants

Comment

Recognising the vital role that cur people play In delivenng organic
growth, our training courses have been designed to enhance the
skills of the next generaton of directors, managers and innovators
With the mtroduction of HCAT's participation nto the metne in 2012,
the reported performance reduced but has increased n 2013 and
our target has been achieved once again

2014 target

The introduction of the Halma Graduate Development Programme
In 2012 with its second intake later n 2013 1s an important expansion
of the Group's development programmes and 1s targeted to bnng
further new talent into the Group

See also
+ Chief Executive’s Strategic Review pl10

* Comporate Responsibility pS6




Non-financial

Strategic focus

Halma conducts an annual survey of its employees to assess

how well the Group's values are aligned with its employees’ cunent
expenences and future aspratons

Values alignment

S

Performance

>5

Target

Values ahgnment (out of 10)
2012

2014

2010

2009

2008

(=) S B R o T

KPI definition

The survey of Group employees looks for matching values in a
companson of the ten current culture values recemng the highest
number of votes with the equivalent ten values employees desire for
therr working culture

Comment

The survey invitation was extended 1o a greater number of Group
employees this year, so achieving five matching values is an excellent
result

2014 target

The mirimurm target of five matching values remains relevant, the goal
for 2014 will be to improve the Group's communication of its values
and to mamtain a high rate of employee participation in the survey

See also
& Chief Executive's Strategic Review p10

¢ Corporate Responsibility p56

Non-financial

Strategic focus

Halma's carbon policy was first approved by the Board in 2007
In 2013 the policy target was reviewed and continues to call

for a 1096 reduction in the carbon footpnnt every three years

CO,; emission reduction

10% -
O reduction since 2010

Performance

>109%0 reauci
O reduction over 3 years to 2013

Target
CO; emsssions {tonnes/€m of revenue}

2013
2012
201
2010
2009

5 &8

47

KPI definition
The percentage change in the Group CO, ermissions from electnerty,
o, gas, vehicle busmness mileage and awr miles travel

Comment

The Group's efforts to minimise its carbon footpnnt have ensured that
CO, emissions related to our businesses are reviewed and controlled
with businesses beng held accountable for achieving therr targets
We will need to make further efforts to achieve ancther 10% relative
reduction in emissions over the three years to 2016 and believe that
our Group Carbon Policy increases the focus on the CO, emissions

2014 target

The mportance of managng our operations to target a 10% relatve
reduction in CO, emissions over a three-year penod to 2016 1s a
metnc endorseé by the Board

See also
* Chief Executive’s Strategic Review p10

* Corporate Responsibility p56
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PRIORITIES

Innovation

In early May 2013, we held cur third HITE event in Flonda, USA which included a
two-day Halma ‘trade-show' where all the Group’s companies showcased ther
Innovation and technologies to one ancther HITE is a catalyst for collaboration between
our businesses and 1s a visible example of how Halma's culture has changed, and
continues to evolve Collaboration and learming from each other is increasing the rate of
innovation and, consequently, bulding competitive advantage in our chosen markets
We anticipate that our M&A actvty will continue to support increased R&D investment

People Development

Subsidiary company strategic objectives, annual performance goals and management
Incentives are ahgned with Halma's and are underpinned with a relertless comimitment
to attract and develop high quality talent We waill continue to invest n our HEDP, HMDP
and HCAT programmes as well as the new HGDP Through HGDP, we aim to increase
the depth of talent coming through our management ranks and also expect it to
cantrbute to an Increase N management diversity in the mediurm term

International Expansion

We choose to operate in niches within markets with robust, long-term growth drvers on
a global scale This gives our businesses the opportunity to sustan growth in all regions
of the world Qur strategic objective 1s for at least 30% of revenue to come from outside
the UK, Manland Europe and the USA by 2015

Portfolio Management

We actively manage our business portfolio through acquinng in {or adjacent to) our
existing markets, merging comparues as market needs change and seling businesses
whers we do not see the medium-tenm prospects for sustaning high returms or growth

We are continuing 10 add new opporiunities to our acquisition pipeline process in all four
of our new reporting sectors Although the past year has been productive, we are
working to both integrate these newly acquired businesses and progress further
opportunities into the later stages of our acquisition process We remain confident in our
ability to find and acquire high quality businesses within our chosen markets over the
medium term
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Halma made good progress dunng the year delivenng a strong
trading performance, significant M&A actraty and further increases in
mvestment in geographic expansion, innovation and people
development Qur four new reporting sectors, announced earlier this
year, are clearly aigned with our long-term market growth dnvers yet
offer the potential for Halma to enter new, adjacent market niches
within each sector Halma's record of sustaining short-term financial
success while investing to develop opportunities for the longer term
gives us confidence for the future

Record revenue and profit for the tenth

consecutive year

Full year revenue Increased by 7% to £619 2m (2012 £579 9m)
Organic growth was 2% and 3% at constant cumency Full year
adiusted' profit ncreased by 8% to £130 7m (2012 £120 5m)
with arganic growth of 4% which was 5% at constant currency

Excluding businesses sold dunng the current and prior years,
revenue grew by 9% and profit was up by 10%

We mantained steady growth momentumn throughout the year Order
intake n the second half remained shghtly ahead of revenue enabling
us to make a positive start to the 2013/14 financial year

Excellent returns and cash generation

We continued to achieve high retums with Return on Sales improving
further to 211% (2012 20 8%} Return on Capital Employed at the
operating level remamed high at 71 3% (2012 74 7%) while our
post-tax Retum on Total Invested Capital was 15 8% (2012 16 8%)

Cash generation was in fine with expectations and we ended the
penod with net debt of £410m (2012 £18m) having spent £148m
2012 £20m) on acquisiions, £15 5m on caprtal expendrture

(2012 £16 5m) and pad out £37 8Bm and £25 5m on dmdends and

tax respectively

Strong growth in Asia, steady progress in USA

and Europe

The relative trading pattems across the major global regions were
consistent through the vear Growth from Asia Pacific of 15% was
strong, with revenue exceeding £100m for the first time (2012 £87rm)
In aggregate, revenue from outside our traditonal ‘home’ markets

of the UK, Mainland Europe and USA grew by 14% tc £157m

{2012 £138m), now representing 25% of the Group and maintaning
progress towards our target of 30% by 2015

In total, revenue from the UK, Mainland Europe and USA increased
by 5% Revenue from the USA increased 20% to £195m (2012
£162m) boosted by recent acquisitions and orgaric growth (constant
currency) of 4% Trading conditions were tougher in the UK and
Manland Europe In the UK, revenue decreased by 8% to £116m
{2012 £126m) although excluding the mpact of disposals, the organic
dechne at constant currency was only 3% Revenue from Mainland
Europe was 2% lower at £152m {2012 £154m) although, here

again, the organic decline in constant currency terms was lower,

at just 0 5%

Overview 02-09
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“Our four new reporting sectors...
are clearly aligned with our
long-term market growth drivers
yet offer the potential for Halma
to enter new, adjacent market
niches within each sector.”

New reporting sectors

For the first tme Halma's results are reported under four sectors
which are clearty aligned with our core markets of safety, health and
environmental Full details of the background to this change were
released N our announcement on 14 February 2013 and can be
seen on cur website www halma com

Process Safety performed strongly with revenue up by 3% to
£1257m (2012 £122 2m) and profit? mcreasing by 1% to £32 3m
(2012 £29 2m) Excluding the contnbution of Tntech, which was sold
In August 2012, continuing operations revenue grew by 10%

and profit by 16% QOrganic revenue growth at constant currency
was 10% with continued strong demand from energy and resources
markets Together with process industnes these markets contnbute
around 60% of sector revenue and benefit from increasing Health
and Safety regulation

Return on Sales increased from 23 9% to 25 7% through a
combination of strong revenue growth and gross margins supported
by contnuous Improvement In new product nnovaton

Organic revenue growth at constant currency for markets outside the
UK, Manland Europe and USA was an impresstve 29% resultng in
these fast developing markets now representing 28% of the sector
Encouragingly, the performance in our traditional *home’ markets was
robust wath mid-single digit organic revenue growth at constant
currency in Mainland Europe and USA and flat UK organic growth

Infrastructure Safety delivered another solid year Revenue
ncreased 1% to £205 3m {2012 £204 3m) and profit? grew by 7% to
£418m (2012 £391m} Returmn on Sales improved from 19 1% to
20 3% with a significant factor beng the mproved profitability
following the reorganisation of our companies selling elevator
products Organic revenue growth at constant currency was

196 which, followng a flat first haf, reflected a shight improvement
dunng the second half This reslience in demand comes from our
focus on safety-cnticat product niches for regulated non-residential
applications Approximately two-thirds of sector revenue is mstalled
In existing nfrastructure rather than new construction

New product introductions and increased investment in sales
resources contnbuted to strong growth in the USA where organic
revenue growth (constant currency) was 18% Elsewhere we

saw modest rates of growth in the UK and Asia Pacific while,
unsurpnsngly, almast every business in this sector expenenced
difficutt condiions in Manland Europe, resuting in organic revenue
dechne there of 8%
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STRATEGIC REVIEW
CONTINUED

Medical had an outstanding year, increasing revenue by 36%

to £136 1m (2012 £100 4m) and profit? by 37% to £35 9m

{2012 £26 3m) Return on Sales increased further from 26 2% to
26 4% The underiying organic revenue growth (constant currency)
was 12% As expected, slowty improving demand for flurd control
compoenents from major medical OEM customers, steady growth in
ophthalmelogy markets and our increased product innovation were
the significant contnbutory factors to this excellent result

Our strategic focus on small medical devices and components rather
than high value capital equipment, enabled us to mitigate the negative
impagct from govemment austenty spending cuts in certan markets
The fundamental market drvers of an ageing population in the West
and a growing and wealthier population in the East, gve us continued
confidence for the future

Both the USA and Manland Europe performed well with organic
revenue growth (constant currency} of 12% and 17% respectively,
whilst the UK saw organic revenue decline of 3% Revenue from
outside these three major temtones increased organically by 12%, to
now represent 25% of the sector Our real exposure to these faster
growing markets i1s greater, as a sizeable proportion of our revenue
from the USA and Manland Europe 1s 1o global OEMs who
subsequently export ther finished systems to other global regions

Environmental & Analysis had a relatively disapponting year as
revenue declined by 1% to £152 4m {2012 £153 4m) and profit?
reduced by 4% to £304m {2012 £316m) Retum on Sales was

19 9% (2012 20 6%} Organic revenue at constant currency was
down 6% Reduced government research spending in the USA and
lower investment by water utiities In the UK were the two major
adverse market factors

These market factors are clearty reflected n the regional trends with
organic revenue (constant curency) declines of 14% in the UK and
10% in the USA Organic revenue from Manland Europe fell by 4%
Cur companies continue to Invest In growth in markets outside the
UK, Manland Europe and USA with revenue from these developing
rnarkets being 27% of the total sector, contnbuting orgarc growth
of 6%

Despite the challenges faced by Environmental & Analysis in the past
year, we are confident that the management and organisational
changes currently being made will mprove performance in the future
These include simplifying global sales channels and manufactunng
operations together wath Increasing senior management resources to
focus on accelerating growth in Asia and from recent new technology
innovation It 1s expected that the total cost of this reorganisation waill
e around £imin 2013/14

Six acquisitions and one disposal completed

Dunng the year we spent £136 8m (2012 £13 3m) on acquisitions
plus £158m (2012 £5 4m) contingent consideration on acquisitions
made in previocus years but excluding £4 6m {2012 {£11m)) of net
cash/{debt) acquired

We acquired Accutome, Sensorex and SuriTech Meadical Group in
the first quarter of the financial vear for a total intal consideration of
US$108 6m (£68 7m) Full details of these transactions were included
n our Annual Report and Accounts 2012 Since acquistion, these
companes have continued to trade i Iine with our expectabons

with the vendors of Sunfech receming an eam-out payment of
US$6m and Accutome's vendors expected to receve an estimated
eam-out of US$5m for profit growth since joining Halma
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In December 2012, we acqurred MicroSurgical Technologies (MST)
for US$57 4m (£35 5m) plus an eam-out of up to US$43m (£26 Bm)
based on future profit growth Based in Redmond, Washington, LUSA,
the company designs and manufactures ophthalmic surgical
products with a focus on single-use devices used in cataract surgery
MST's results are reported as part of Halma's Medical sector

In January 2013, we acquired Baoding Longer Precision Pump Co
(Longer Pump) for RMB242m (£24 3m) Longer Pump designs and
manufactures its own range of precision pumps which are used in
medical, laboratory and ndustrial applications, and 1s also part of
Halma's Medical sector The business is based in Baoding, close to
Benng and 1s Halma's largest ever stand-alone acquisiion n China

In March 2013, we acquired ASL Holdings for £6 4m and contingent
constderation of up to £3 Sm based on growth over the next two
years ASL designs and manufactures remote data montonng
solutions for a range of markets including utiiies [t has become part
of HWM-Water which is a global leader in datalogging and leak
detection products for the water industry wathin Halma's
Ermvironmental & Analysis sector

Following the year end, in Apnl 2013, we acquired a small technology
bolt-on for one of our Infrastructure Safety businesses, Fire Fighting
Enterpnses (FFE) Talentum, based in Oldham, UK was acquired for
£2 6m and adds new flame detection products to FFE's exasting
range of fire optical beam smoke detectors

We made cne disposal dunng the year In August 2012, we sold our
single Asset Monitonng business, Titech Intemational, for £22m to
Moog Components Group (Moog) We concluded that, despite the
attractve aspects of Tntech's end markets, we could create greater
shareholder value by reallocating resources to other Halma sector
niches and that Moog's presence In the manne energy markets
would enable Trtech to make stronger progress under their
ownership This disposal, along with the sale of Volumatic in March
2012, demonstrates the importance of Halma's ability to manage our
portfolio n order to sustamn financial success over the long term

We are continuing to add new opportunities to our acquistion pipeline
process in all four of our new reporting sectors  Although the past
year has been productive, we are worlang to both integrate these
newly acquired businesses and progress further cpportunities into
the later stages of our acquisttion process We remam confident n
our ability to find and acquire hugh quality businesses withun our
chosen markets over the medium term

Strategic growth prionties

We have a clear strategy to generate sustained organic growth,
actvely manage our portfolie and defiver increased dmdends The
average medium-term rate of organic growth detenmines the rate at
which we can acquire companes and increase dmdends Our
management reward structures are clearly aligned with this obyective
of delivenng sustained growth and high returns  We actvely manage
our business portfolio through acquinng in {or adiacent to} our existing
markets, mergng companies as market needs change and selling
businesses where we do not see the medium-term prospects for
sustaining high retums or growth

We drive organic growth through a focus on investing n the three
areas of Innovation, Pecple Development and Intemational

Expansion




“We have a clear strategy to
generate sustained organic growth,
actively manage our portfolio and
deliver increased dividends.”

Innovation

Our businesses buld market leadership, gain market share or
create new market opportuniies through innovation N products and
processes Within Halma, companes have great opportunities to
collaborate and share know-how wath therr sister companies We
have created a culture and environment to encourage this behaviour
in a vanety of ways including ensunng a dverse mix of representation
at Halma training programmes and holding a biennial Halma
Innovation and Technology Exposition (HITE) Network groups and
forums focused on spectfic functional areas such as manufactunng
and IT have also been established to foster regutar benchmarking
and continuous Improvement

In early May 2013, we held our trurd HITE event in Flonda, USA
which included a two-day Halma “trade-show' where all the Group's
companies showcased ther innovation and techncloges to one
another HITE Is a catalyst for collaboration between our businesses
and 1s a visible example of how Halma's culture has changed, and
continues to evolve Collaboration and leaming from each other 15
increasing the rate of iInnovation and, consequently, bulding
compettve advantage i our chosen markets We invited institutional
investors and analysts to join us at HITE 2013 and, followang their
postive feedback, it 1s something that we will be kesn to repeat at
HITE 2015

Innavation is formally recognised in Halma through the annual Halma
Innovation Awards where the first pnze for the winning employee(s} is
£20,000

The Halma Innovation Award 2013, was won by a team from Hanovia
in Slough, UK who developed a new UV treatment system for
ensunng water N the ballast tanks of ships can be discharged without
the nsk of nvasive species contarmmation, N complance with
impending global regulations The runners up were a team from
Oseco in Oklahoma, USA who developed a bursting disk which gves
market-leading performance for both gas and quid applicatons In
third place was a team from BEA who developed the new IO dual
technology door sensor which combines BEA's usual market-leading
sensor performance with a muthingual LED graphical display, making
it the ‘eastest to install' product on the market

Increased innovation in Halma is reflected in the greater Investment
which our companies are making N R3D This year, R&D expenditure
grew by over 13% to £311m (2012 £27 4m) with all four Halma
sectors increasing R&D spend as a proportion of revenue Our M&A,
actmty over the past year has been supportive of this trend as has
been our abilty to Increase R&D spend in those businesses we
acquired in 2011/12
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People development

Halma's decentralised operating structure 1s successful ona
sustamnable basis because we continue to Improve the quality of
management across our business We build and develop local
managenment tearns who thrive on the opporturity to make tamety
deaisions for therr business as customer needs dictate R&D,
manufactuning, sales and marketing, and financial control resources
are managed by our subsidiary boards who have an intmate
knowledge of their markets and are, therefore, best placed to make
local resource allocation decisions quickly Subsidiary company
strategic objectives, annual perforrmance goals and management
ncentives are aligned with Halma’s and are underpinned with a
relentless commitment to attract and develop high quality talent

In support of local employee development intiatives, Halma offers
arange of traning for employees ncluding the Halma Executive
Development Programmes (HEDP and HEDP4), Halma Management
Development Programmes (HMDP and HMDP+} and Halma
Certificate in Applied Technology (HCAT) programimes Dunng
2012/13, 179 employees attended these Halma run programmes

In addrtion, seruor executives are encouraged to attend external
franing programmes at top intemational business schools In the

last year, one of our Dmvisional Chief Executives completed the Gicbal
CEO Programme run by IESE Business Scheol whilst another has
Just completed the Advanced Management Program at Harvard

A highlight of the year was the successful launch of the first ever
Halma Graduate Development Programme (HGDP) The iniial group
of nine graduates came from a mix of techrucal and geographic
backgrounds and have done a fantastic job of making the most

of the opportunities given to them as well as teaching us new ways
1o innovate and grow our business The 2013 intake 15 ancther
Impressve group from top universittes Through HGDP, we aim to
increase the depth of tatlent corming through our management ranks
and also expect it to contnbute to an increase N management
dwersity in the medium term Dunng HGDP, graduates work at Group
companies In difierent global regions and attend residential traning
modules Halmas an attractive emplover for new graduates offenng
them the chance to work In diverse markets and to gan nternational
expenence in an organisation which is able to offer opportunities for
significant early career progression

Intemmational expansion

We choose 10 operate In niches within markets with robust, long-term
growth dnvers on a global scale This gives our businesses the
opporturity to sustan growth in all regions of the world

Qur strategic objective s for at teast 30% of revenue to come from
outside the UK, Mamnland Europe and the USA by 2015 and this year
we Increased this proparton from 23 8% to 25 4% The significant
growth we have achieved since setting up the first Halma hubs in
China (2006) and in Incha (2008) has almaost all been arganic so the
recent acquisiion of Longer Pump in China will add further
momentum dunng 2013/14

Progress in China was excellent with revenue up 25% to £37m

(2012 £29 5m) compared with just £6 6m when our Halma hubs
were established in 2006 Today, aimaost 800 of our 4,995 employees
are based n China

Although revenue of £12 7m from Scuth Amenca was in ine with the
prior year, it was very encouraging to see two separate groups of
Halma companigs from our Medical and Process Safety sectors
creating shared trading companies 1 Brazil This 1s a great example
of how Halma companies are now collaborating to accelerate ther
expansion Into new temtones where, n this case, the local healthcare
and energy markets offer exciting opportunities for growth
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STRATEGIC REVIEW
CONTINUED

“Halma’s strategy is to develop
market positions with a horizon
of ten years or more. Growth
strategies within our individual
operating businesses have three
to five-year horizons.”

Macro-economics, regulatory and

competitive environment

With our focus on the supply of safety, health and ervironmental
related products, Halma businesses are posiicned in relatvely
non-cyclical markets that have clear, long-term growth prospects
Most of our markets are underpinned by regulatory drivers where
most customer spending is non-discretionary Our businesses benefit
from strong market posiions providing upgrade and replacement
sales opportunties These factors combine to create genuine
resihence in tough economic condiions and enable us to achieve
organic growth above prevaling market growth rates

Against this backdrop, we can invest for the longer term wath
confidence Our competitive environment 1s heavily influenced by
global, regional and national product approvals or techrucal
validations Compliance with product regulations is a steadiy
increasing cost and technical challenge but cur focus on this area
enables us to buld compettive advantage

Woe are exposed to a very diverse range of niche markets, each with
its own unigue market dynamic Our approach 1s to empower local
management to respond to changing market conditions by
developing therr own strategy More detads are given in the sector
reviews on pages 30 to 45

In the current macro-economic ervironment each of our businesses
1S expenencing very different challenges and opportunities according
to therr parhicutar market and geographic exposure In 2013/14, we
expect the macro-economic and political circumstances in Europe to
remain challenging whilst we expect the US sconomy to maintan a
relatvely low rate of steady growth We believe that the broader
socio-economic development of developing regions such as Asia
and South Amenca will continue to increase demand for a safer
environment and greater access to healthcare and energy/

water resources

Our primary market growth drivers

Halma's strategy Is to develop market positions with a honzon of ten
years or more Growth strategies within our indmdual operating
businesses have three to five-year honzons

The markets we select must have robust growth dnivers with potential
for organic growth above the undertying market or GDP growth

Al of our businesses are postioned in markets that are underpinned
by at least one of the following growth drivers
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Increasing heatth and safety regulation

Throughout the world, govemments are requinng employers to
comply with increasingly sinct laws and regulations to protect workers
from workplace hazards In parallel with government regulation, many
multnational ermployers based n the developed world are extending
heatth and safety practice to developing regions  This combination of
Increasing safety regulabion and globalisation dnves demand for our
Process Safety and Infrastructure Safety products

The human cost of workplace accidents 1s enormous  The economic
impact of poor occupational safety and health practice is lost
working time, compensaton, ntermuption of production and medical
expenses These costs are estimated o be about 4% of annual
world Gross Domestic Product

The Intemational Labour Organisation estmates that every day
around 6,300 people die as a result of occupational accidents or
work-related diseases - more than 2 3 million deaths per year 317
millon work acoidents occur annually, many of these resulting in
extended absences from work

Occupational deaths and injunes occur disproportionately in
developing countnes, where a large proportion of the populaton work
in hazardous ndustnes However, significant advances have been
made in occupational safety over the past decade and the number of
fatal accidents has fallen

Increasing demand for healthcare
Three demographic frends support ncreasing worldwide demand for
healthcare

+ global population ageing
* global population growth
* nsing iIncomes in the developing world

Demand for heatthcare serwices and health-related products dnves
growth in our Medical markets An increase In focus on preventive
medicine and nsing rates of chronic diseases such as cancey, thabetes
and hypertension are key trends  Advances m medical technology and
new medical procedures also stmulate demand for new equipment

The number of people aged 60 and over Is increasing dramatically

In 2010 there were 753 milhon people in the world aged 60 and over,
this 1s projected to nse to 2 bilion by 2050 While the older poputation
15 growing worldwide, most of the ncrease 15 In the developing
regions The proportion of the world's older populabion iving in less
developed regions is forecast to nse from 65% in 2010 to about 80%
by 2050

The global healthcare market 1s estmated to be over 10% of global
GDP and rose y 43% over the penod 2005 to 2010 Spending on
healthcare continues to grow rapidly throughout the developed world,
particularty m the USA (which accounts for 40% of total global
medical expenditure) where spendng i1s projected to nse by overa
third between 2011 and 2016 Population growth and nsing incomes
in the developmng world are also strong drivers of healthcare dermand
China's healthcare spending, for example, 1s forecast to grow from
$357 bilfion in 2011 to $1 tnlion in 2020




STRATEGY
IN ACTION

ACQUIRE
EMPOWER
INNOVATE
GROW
SUSTAIN
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ACQUIRE This year we acquired SIX businesses including
MicroSurgical Technology (MST), expanding our
2 g product offering in ophthalmology. MST designs,
€ SUSTAN 8 manufactures and markets ophthalmic surgical
¥  products, focusing on single-use devices used in
p— cataract surgery.

ACQUIRE
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Subsidiary companies have considerable freedom for

GQu
e entrepreneurial action. This year HWM-Water
2 g acquired a manufacturer of complementary machine-
g SUSTAN ¢ to-machine communication products for remote data
g  collection including the monitoring of electricity
Moyt generation and consumption.

EMPOWER
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- The winner of the Halma Innovation Award 2013 is a
ballast water disinfection system for ships which

o g Ppreventsthe spread of marine organisms around the
g SUSTAIN § world’s oceans. Regulation could require 30,000
§  existing ships and over 1,000 new ships per year to
P treat ballast water before discharging.

INNOVATE
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ACOUIR, Through organic growth and acquisition our former
Health & Analysis sector has been our fastest growing
sector over the last few years. This year we have split
it into two new reporting sectors — Medical and
Environmental & Analysis - reflecting our growing
Avoare presence in the medical devices market.

GROW

MOUn

SUSTAIN

Smoana
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ACQUIRg The award-nominated Halma Graduate Development
Programme (see page 59) is just one of the ways we

9 g Sustain our business by investing for the future. We
¢ SUSTAN 3 find and develop graduates with the potential to
£  become future leaders of our companies or our next
- generation of technology innovators.

SUSTAIN
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Increasing demand for iife critical resources

Rising energy consumption and water usage, the inewvitable
consequences of social and economic development, are dnven by
three key trends

¢ populaton growth
¢ nsing Imng standards
¢ changing pattemns of food consumption and agncuture

Several of our Environmental & Analysis businesses are postioned to
benefit from the global trend of nsing demand for energy and water [n
both developed and developing regions we see Increasing
competrtion for water resources between industnes and economic
sectors, and between national govermments The ncreasing value
placed on water resources dnves demand for our water conservation,
treatment, moritonng and testing products

Global water demand nses relentlessly, predicted to increase by 50%
by 2025 in developng countnes, and by 18% in developed countnes
Both the quality and avalabity of clean water continues to decline
Eighty per cent of the world's population ives in areas with high levels
of threat to water secunty

Water s essential to oll, gas and coal production but, increasingly,
also in imgation of bicfuel crops Water needs far energy production
are forecast to grow at twice the rate of energy demand Global
energy demand 1s expected to grow by more than one-third over the
penod to 2035, Ching, Incdia and the Middle East wall account for 60%
of this Increase

Continued increases in globhal ol and gas capital expenditure,
predicted to nse by about 16% from 2012 to 2013, dnves demand for
our Process Safety products

Delivering corporate responsibility and sustamnability
QOur pnmary market growth drvers mean that Halma companies
operate In markets in which their products contnbute positively 1o the
wider community These market charactenstics and our commitment
to health and safety, the ermmonment and people development are
reflected in the values held by our employees and our operating
culture Legstative changes, particularty concerming the eraronment
and bnbery and comuption, have provided an opportunity to review
and ensure that our procedures in these important areas are
accessible, compliant and fimmly embedded within our business

We review our responsibility and sustainability reporting in
accordance with best practice A detalled report on Corporate
Responsibility 1s on pages 56 to 59
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Change of Chairman

In July 2013, Geoff Unwin will step down as Chairman of Halma and

| would like to take this opportunity to thank Geoff for the tremendous
contnbution he has made to Halma's success over the past decade
Geoff had the unerviable task of taking over from Halma's founder,
Dawid Barber, who had created a business with an impressve
30-year track record Under Geoff's charmmanship, the Group has not
only mantained that track record but, as a result of sustained focused
nvestment, 15 now better placed to continue that success in the
future Thanks Geoff

Dunng the year, we welcomed Paul Walker to Halma's Board

HITE 2013 provided a great chance for Paul to see the whole Group
and start to appreciate some of the opportunites and challenges
ahead llook forward to working closely with Paul when he takes
up the Chairman's role after this year's AGM Welcome, Paul

Outlook

Dunng the past year, we have continued to strengthen our business
by further increasing nvestment in our dnvers of organic growth -
innovation, people development and intemational expansion We
have significantly improved the fundamental quality of our portfolio
through six acquisitions and one disposal

Order intake since the start of 2013 has been consistent with our
expectations of sustaining year-on-year organic growth and high
retums We remain confident that Halma will make further progress
in the year ahead

Andrew Willams
Chief Executive

! See Financal Highlights
? Sea Note 1 to the Accounts.
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SECTOR REVIEW

PROCESS
SAFETY

Products which protect assets
and people at work

Specialised interlocks which safely
control critical processes. Instruments
which detect flammable and
hazardous gases. Explosion
protection devices.
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SECTOR REVIEW CONTINUED

PROCESS SAFETY

Sector revenue

£126M+3%

Sector profit

£ 32M+11%

Products which protect assets and people
at work.

Performance

Sector Group
KPIs performance target
Revenue growth' 28% >5%
Profit growth' 106% >5%
Return on Sales? 257% >18%
ROCE® 108 4% >45%
R&D % of Revenue* 39% >4%
Contribution to Group
£m 2013 2012 201 2010 2009
Revenue 126 122 103 98 103
Profits 32 29 24 20 22

1 Sector revenue and adusted® sector profit before finance expense are compared
1o the equivalent prior year figure.

2 Retum on Sales s defined as adjusted® profit before finance expense and
taxabon expressed as a percentage of sector revenue

3 Adusted® sector profit before finance expense expressed as a percentage of
sactor operating net assets

4 Sector research and development expenditure expressed as a percentage of
sector revenue

5 Adusted to remove the amoresation of acquired intangible assets, acquision
transaction costs and movement on contingent consideration (see Nota 110
the Accounts).

Revenue % of Group Profit % of Group

20% 23%
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Market trends

Rising expectations of workplace safety and increasingly stnngent
environmental and safety legislation continue to be strong demand
dnvers In both developed and developing Process Safety maricets
We are also benefiing from improving enforcement of safety
regulations These posrtive market pressures ensure that our
investment in qualty, customer senace, and enhanced-technology
products mamtains competitive advantage and underpins our
sigruficant growth in this sector

Increased investment in new methods of ol and gas exploration has
been a major boost to sales, particutarty in hydraulic fractunng in
shale ol and gas exploration, deep sea dnling, and LNG production
and storage

Geographic trends

Despite a challenging politcal and macro-economic envirenment,
worldwide growth in demand for energy, food, chemicals and metals
1S set to continue In partcular, Asia Pactfic and the Middle East are
seeing Increasing economic growth ahead of developed western
economies North Amencan conditons continue to improve while
Western Eurcpe, due to recessionary pressures, 1s relatively flat




Driving innovation

At our gas detection business, products
launched n the last three years accounted
for 77% of revenue dunng 201213

The Crowcon Clip I1s a new personal
detector which senses a single gas and has
a fixed fife Very ample to use, it was
designed with ane thing in mind
comphance with health and safety
regulatons in the ol and gas industry
Refiable protection for workers in hazardous
areas, this safeguard against toxic or
explosve gases is compact, ightwerght and
needs no mantenance

Overview 02-09
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Strategy

Our strategy focuses on drving organic growth through geographic
drersfficaton and iInvestment in new product development to meet
local market needs Our companies in this sector now have 18
manufactunng stites across four continents These are backed by
22 regional sales and service centres together with localised R&D
to ensure that our products meet the diverse requirernents of

our customers

We continue to develop strategic allances between companies

in this sector to optimise customer service Intemal collaboration
delivers consistent product performance, service and applications
advice worldwide More partnerships with customers remain a key
strategic goal

Performance

Process Safety performed strongly with revenue up by 3% to

£125 7m (2012 £122 2m) and profit' ncreasing by 11% to £323m
(2012 £29 2m} Excluding the contnbution of Titech, which was sold
In August 2012, continuing operations revenue grew by 10%

and profit by 16% Organic revenue growth at constant currency
was 10% with contnued strong demand from energy and rasources
markets Together with process industnes these markets contnbute
around 60% of sector revenue and benefit from mcreasmg Health
and Safety regulation

Retumn on Sales increased from 23 8% to 25 7% through a
combination of strong revenue growth and gross margins supported
by continuous iImprovement in new product Innovation

Crganic revenue growth at constant currency for markets outside the
UK, Manland Europe and the USA was an impressive 29% resulting
in these fast developing markets now representing 28% of the sector
Encouragingty, the performance in our tradibional ‘horme' markets was
robust with mid-single digit organic revenue growth n Mainland
Eurcpe and the USA and flat UK organic growth

R&D investment rose to 4% of revenue New products accounted for
34% of total sales reflecting an ncreased emphasis on new
product development

Outlook

Prospects for continued growth in the Process Safety sector are
positive supported by forecasts of nsing nmvestment i oil, gas and
energy markets Food and pharmaceutcal markets have regained
resthence In the last year and planned safety legisiation will continue
to dnve demand

Automotive manufactunng has been flat or declining In the last two
years but, based on industry sources, we anticipate increased
nvestment, particularly in emerging markets

We expect the strong growth trend in the Process Safety sector
to continue, supportad by nsing R&D spend and expansion of
regional operations

We continue to search for Process Safety acquistion prospects,
particularty in complementary markets to expand our
product portfolo

' See Note 1 to the Accounts
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SECTOR REVIEW CONTINUED

INFRASTRUCTURE
SAFETY

Products which detect hazards to
protect assets and people in public
spaces and commercial buildings

Fire and smoke detectors, security
sensors and audible/visual waming
devices. Sensors used on automatic
doors and elevators in buildings and
transportation.
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SECTOR REVIEW CONTINUED

INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY

Sector revenue

£205M+1%

Sector profit

C42Mm+7%

Products which detect hazards to protect
assets and people in public spaces and

commercial buildings.
Performance

Sector Group
KPls performance target
Revenue growth' 05% >5%
Profit growth' 5 8% >5%
Return on Sales? 203% >18%
ROCE? 72 2% >45%
R&D % of Revenue® 52% >4%
Contribution to Group
£m 2013 2012 2011 20190 2009
Revenue 205 204 197 183 186
Profit 42 38 39 36 33

1 Sector revenus and adjusied® sector profit before finance expense are compared
to the equivalent pnor year figure

2 Return on Sales ss defined as adusted® profit before finance expenss and
taxaton expressed as a percentage of sector revenue

3 Adpsted® sector profit belore finance expense expressed as a percentage of
sector operating net assets

4 Sector research and development expenditure expressed as a percentage of
sector revenue

5 Adusted to rernove the amortisabion of acquired intangible assets, acquistion
fransaction costs and movement on coningent consideration (see Note 1 to
the Accounts)

Revenue % of Group Profit % of Group

33% 30%

36  Halma plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Market trends

Increasmg health and safety legistation 18 the man growth driver

in our Infrastructure Safety sector Fire regulations are being tghtened
up throughout Asta and in Europe new Construction Products
Regulations (CPR} come into force in 2013

The pnncipal technology trend in fire detection Is the packaging of
muttiple sensor technologies within a single detector to provide
greater Iife safety protection and lower installation costs

Fire detection system complexity 15 increasing and demand for
voice alarms is growing faster than traditional audio-visual devices
Customers increasingly specify products with intermationally
recognised, rather than local, approvals

In 2013 new European standards for visual alam dewices for fire
systems will take effect New harmonised European construction
products regulatons will also be implemented dunng 2013

We have developed new visual signalling preducts that mest

the new regulations

Competitive pressure 1S nsing in our tradittonal pedestnan door
markets, we continue to diversdy nto Industnal and transportation
automatic door control niches New regulations are drving growth In
China, door sensor demand has stabiksed, due to the construction
slow down, but demand is strong In the Asia Pacific region

New UK and European intruder detection system standards have
created nsing demand for our secunty sensors certified to meet the
new regutations




Driving innovation

In April 2013 we extended the technology
portfohio of our wide area smoke detector
manufacturer wath the acquisition of
Talentum, a specialist n flame detection
This acquistion brngs two of the UK’s
leading specialist fire protection busnesses
together

This Talentum muli-spectrum flame
detector senses both infrared and uftraviolet
ght It 15 sensitve to low frequency,
fickenng radiation emitted dunng
combustion it detects aimost all flames,
including those iInasible to the naked eye,
and can recognise other sources of berugn
radiation such as sunlight, welding and
lightrung
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Geographic trends

In our largest regronial sector, EMEA, we are seaing tough trading
conditons continuing  Trading n Southemn Europe has required
enhanced credit nsk control Middle East demand remains strong but
competitive pressure 1 Increasng Sales m China, SE Asia and
Australia continued to grow Opportunities exist across ASEAN
countnes which have a strong preference for ‘branded systems' with
UL or EN approvals, athough there I1s also demand for lower cost
products approved to less well-known standards

In the USA the fast-growing ‘home automation’ market 1s providing
opportunities This market, which is the bundiing of secunty, Ife
safety, ntemet services, healthcare monitonng, energy management
etc, 15 focused on existing homeowners and does not depend on
‘new bulld’ for growth

Strategy

We are developing our presence in higher growth areas such as
Russia and Eastern Europe, ASEAN naticns and Brazl We have also
entered adjacent markets, such as Ife-safsty carbon mencxde
detectors and horme automation We are achievng cost savings in
our Chinese plants which feed our European and Amencan
operatons In some undeveloped temtones, we are forging new
partnerships by offenng |P-protected, Ul-approved technology

to enable fire market entry by bulding management and

secunty companies

Cur door sensor business 1s focused on new product development
for targeted industnal and transport niches to diversify our custormer
base and reduce dependence on the pedestnan doors sector In
keeping with other Halma sectors, R&D has also been decentralised
from headquarters with ncreased spending on product development
at our US and Chinese facilties New sensors developed in China
and in the USA will contnbute significantly to sales revenues in

the future

Cur technology strategy 1s to mantain competiive advantage in
wireless secunty products designed for commercial environments
We are posittoning our secunty business to offer more integrated
buldng montonng solubons via technology parinerships with other
manufacturers, including those within Halma

Performance

Infrastructure Safety delvered another solid year Revenue ncreased
1% to £205 3m (2012, £204 3m) and profit' grew by 7% to £41 8m
{2012 £391m) Retun on Sales mproved from 19 1% to 20 3% with
a significant factor beng the improved profitabilty following the
recrganisation of our companies selling elevator products Crganic
revenue growth at constant curmrency was 1% which, following a flat
first half, reflected a sight tmprovement dunng the second half This
resilience in demand comes from our focus on safety-cntical product
niches for regulated non-residential applications  Approximately
two-thirds of sector revenue 18 installed in existing nfrastructure rather
than new construction

New product introductions and increased investment in sales
resources contnbuted to strong growth in the USA where organic
revenue growth (constant currency) was 18% HElsewhere we saw
modest rates of growth in the UK and Asia Pacific whie,
unsurpnsingly, almost every business in this sector expenenced
difficult conditions 1n Maintand Eurcpe, resuling in organic revenue
decline there of 8%

Outlook

We anticipate continued Infrastructure Safety growth due to
technclogy advances, regulatory pressure and new locahised
products Eurcpean demand for certified products will be a pnncipal
drnver and we are well-placed to benefit from wider adoption of
integrated bullding monitonng systems and intruder alanms based on
wireless communication

Growth n mature marksts will be modest, while developing
economies will grow strongly Russia, Eastermn Europe, Middle East,
Latn Amenca, ASEAN nations and China all offer good growih
potential In the USA and Western Europe legislation-dnven adjacent
markets offer good growth prospects

1 See Note 1 to the Acoounts.
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SECTOR REVIEW CONTINUED

MEDICAL

Products used to improve
personal and public health

Devices used to assess eye health,
assist with eye surgery and primary
care applications. Fluidic components
such as pumps, probes, valves and
connectors used by medical
diagnostic OEMs.
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SECTOR REVIEW CONTINUED
MEDICAL

Sector revenue

£136m+

Sector profit

6%

£36M+37%

Products used to improve personal and
public health.

Performance

Sector Group
KPIs performance target
Revenue growth' 355% >5%
Profit growth' 36 9% >5%
Return on Sales? 26 4% >18%
ROCE? 97 0% >45%
R&D % of Revenue® 38% >4%
Contnbution to Group
£m 2013 2012 201 2010 2009
Revenue 136 100 82 69 66
Profit 36 26 20 17 14

1 Sector revenue and adjusted® sector profit before finance expense are compared
to the equivalent prior year figure

2 Return on Sales 15 defined as adjusted® profit before finance expense and
taxation expressed as a percentage of sector revenue

3 Adusted® sector profit bafore finance expense expressed as a percentage of
sector operating net assets

4 Sector research and development expenditure expressed as a percentage of
SECtor revenue

5 Adusted to remove the amortisation of acquired intangible assets acquistion
transaction costs and maoverment on contingent conaideration (ses Note 1to
the Accounts}

Revenue % of Group Profit % of Group

22% 25%
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Market trends

Medical market growth dnvers are pnncipally woridwide population
ageing, Increasing Ife expectancy, ncreasing access to healthcare In
developing economies, new technologies and mproved or new
surgecal or pharmaceutical therapies

The proportion of people aged over 60 continues to nse and dnves
demand for healthcare both In developed and developing
gecgraphies Population ageing is a key dnver for our ophthalmology
and hypertension management businesses since these health 1ssues
are age-related

A key medical niche, the ophthalmic diagnostic equipment market,
will grow at 2 5% from 2009 to 2016 as new technologies, population
ageing and nsing healthcare expectations and affordability i
developing economies continue to underpin demand

The global market for cataract surgery devices s forecast to grow
at a compound annual growth rate of 3% between 2010 and 2017
Growth dnivers mclude nsing demand for surgery due to population
ageing and technological advances such as micro-Incision

eye surgery

Regulatory comphance and medical product approvals, particularty in
China and Brazi, continue to get tougher and more costly This
delays returms from new products, increases development costs and
puts pressures on marging On the plus side, ngorous regulatory
regimes create higher barmers to entry for new competitors

The in-vitro medical diagnostic market, our largest fludic components
niche, 1s largely concentrated in the USA In recent years uncertamty
over healthcare reforms has dampened demand The US healthcare
market has retumed to growth with nsing sales for existing platforms
and higher actmty In customers’ new product development pipelines
Growth in Asia s expected to outpace other geographies, with a
forecast market growth rate to 2016 of 11 8% for the region, and

18 8% in China

Geographical trends

The US Govenment is seeking healthcare budget cuts but the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) will ncrease
spending In 2013 US health costs are projected tonse by 3 8% The
situation changes dramatically in 2014 when twenty-two million more
Amencans gain healthcarg insurance and spending Is predicted to
nse by 74% The PPACA also introduces a 2 3% Medical Dewice Tax
on medical products

Financial austenty in Europe continued to depress demand
Despite recessionary pressure, a retumn to growth is forecast in the
medium term  Industry analysts predict average European medical
device market growth of 16% per year between 2014 and 2018




Driving innovation

We acquired SuriTech Medical, one of the
world's leading suppliers of clinical grade
non-invasive biood pressure monitonng
products, in May 2012 This business
complements our subsidiary Riester, which
also sells blood pressure and vital signs
monifors

This ambulatory blood pressure system
monitors, records and analyses a patient’s
blood pressure at regutar intervals 24 hours
aday It s cinically vahdated by all three
intemational standards bodies
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We continued to invest in sales resources and new medical
distnbution channels in Asia and South Amenca Brazil, with a
poputation of over 190 millon and a well-developed, expanding
healthcare system, 1s the largest South Amencan medical equipment
market and forecast to grow by 12 6% CAGR between 2011 and
2015 Our S&o Paulo faciity has now achieved ANVISA? ragistration
from the Brazihan govemment which lets us gain approvals for
healthcare products in our own name

Economic development across Asia is rapidly Increasing access to
healthcare In China, where healthcare is a key social priorty, medical
spending 1s forecast to nse by almost three tmes between 2011 and
2020 Demographic drvers are producing a rapid increase In chronic
conditions like diabetes and hypertension (high blood pressure) as
populations age, people move to cities and Ifestyles change About
130 milion Chinese between the ages of 35 and 74 suffer from
hypertension Increased awareness of this health Issue, and
programmes to combat it, will increase demand for hypertension
diagnosis devices

In China we established an R&D unit to dnve localised product
development Our recently acquired US-headquartered blood
pressure monitonng business adds an 80 person manufactunng
and R&D centre in Shenzhen

Strategy
Our Medical sector strategy 1s to ncrease organic growth through

* nnovative new products
s penetration of new geographical markets
= expansion into adiacent market niches

Acquisihon of addmonal value-enhancing healthcare businesses
will also add significant further growth We am to increase R&D
investment, particularly in ophthalmology and hypertension
management Focusing on Asia and South Amenca, market
extension will be achieved through additional sales resources,
sales inteligence shanng and cooperative marketing between
Group companies, and new channel partnerships

Our focus on relatively low-cost medical devices avoided the impact
of government austenty budget cutbacks which mainly affected
capital equipment

Local manufacture in emerging markets, to better satisiy local
customer needs and strengthen competitiveness by avoiding import
tanffs, 1s a key strategic medical sector goal From 2013, we plan to
assemble health optics products in Brazi

Our fludic components businesses am for Increased customer
diversification, focusing on laboratory and health-care markets They
now have joint product development teams and sell into the Chinese
medical diagnestics sector jointly via a new Halma Fluid Technology
business umt

Performance

Medical had an outstanding year, increasing revenue by 36% to
£136 1m {2012 £100 4m) and profit' by 37% to £359m

{2012 £26 3m} Return on Sales increased further from 26 2% to
26 4% The underying organic revenue growth {constant currency)
was 12% As expected, slowly mproving demand for fiuid control
components from major medical OEM customers, steady growthin
ophthaimclogy markets and our ncreased product nnovation were
the significant contnbutory factors to this excellent result

Our strategic focus on small medical devices and components rather
than high value caprtal equipment, enabled us to miigate the negative
impact from government austenty spending cuts n certain markets
The fundamental market drivers of an agemng population in the West
and a growing and wealthier population in the East, give us continued
confidence for the future

Both the USA and Mamntand Europe performed well with orgaric
revenue growth (constant currency) of 12% and 17% respectvely,
whilst the UK saw orgamic revenue decline of 3% Revenue from
outside thesa three major temtones increased organically by 12%, to
now represent 25% of the sector Qur real exposure to these faster
growing markets is greater, as a sizeable proportion of our revenue
from the USA and Manland Eurcpe 1s tc global OEMs who
subsequently export theyr firished systems to other global regons

Three new US-based businesses acquired in 2012 expanded our
healthcare technology portfolio and extended our geographic reach
We added ultrasound technotogy to our ophthalmic diagnostic
instrumentation, new hypertension management technology and new
single-use surgical dewices

Outlook

Ageing populations in developed economies and nsing populations
with access to affordable healthcare in the developing world should
create continued favourable conditions for growth We anticipate
consistently nsing sales into the healthcare and medical diagnostics
markets dnven by enhanced distnbution n export markets, new
products and further acquistions

Growth n South East Asia should remain strong as govemments
continue to Improve therr healthcare systems China wall build
thousands of new hospitals in the next few years Investment in
Chinese product registrations should deliver nsing sales Growthin
Brazil should accelerate based on our new regulatory status

* Sea Note 1 to the Accounts

2 ANVISA — Brazfian Natonal Health Surveilance Agency responsible for regulation of
medical devicas
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SECTOR REVIEW CONTINUED

ENVIRONMENTAL
& ANALYSIS

Products and technologies for
analysis in safety, life sciences and
environmental markets

Market-leading opto-electronic technology
and gas conditioning products. Products
to monitor water networks; UV technology
for disinfecting water; and water quality
testing products.
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SECTOR REVIEW CONTINUED
ENVIRONMENTAL & ANALYSIS

Sector revenue

£152m (1)%

£30mM (4)%

Products and technologies for analysis in
safety, life sciences and environmental
markets.

Performance

Sector Group
KPls performance target
Revenue growth! 0 5% »5%
Profit growth’ 3 8% >5%
Return on Sales? 19 9% >18%
ROCE? 69 8% >45%
R&D % of Revenue® 6 8% >4%
Contribution to Group
£m 2013 2012 201 2010 2009
Revenue 152 154 136 109 10
Profit 30 32 26 18 15

1 Sector revenue and adjusted® sector profit before finance expense are compared
to the equivalent pror year figure.

2 Retumn on Sales 1s defined as adjusted® profit before finance expense and
taxaton expressed as a percentage of sector revenue

3 Adusted® sector profit before finance expense expressed as a percentage of
sector operating net asseats

4 Sector research and development expenditure expressed as a percentage of
sector revenus

5 Adusted 1o remove the amortisation of acquired ntangible assets, acquismon
transaction costs and movernent on contingent consideration (see Note 1 to
the Accounts).

Revenue % of Group Proft % of Group

25% 22%
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Market trends

In the Environmental & Analysis sector our businesses serve a vary
dverse range of end-user markets The underiying growth cnvers are
nising demand for basic resources such as energy and water,
increasing enmaronmental monitonng and regulation and demand for
healthcare

Water qualrty, water scarcity and the need to reduce water treatment
energy costs are the key dnvers behind increasingly stnct regulation
and growth in demand for our water analysis and water and
wastewater treatment systems These dnvers are assumng ever
greater mportance due to populaton growth, urbanisation and
climate change The market for water disinfection systems 1S
estimated $o be growing annually by 10% to 12% and water
monitonng demand 1s growing by 5% per year

Independent product valdations are becoming increasingly mportant
In water treatment We expect continued investment by industnat
customers, driven by legislation, but difficult market condtions in the
municipal segment We anticipate significant sales growth in the
manne Ballast Water Treatment (BWT) market The BWT market 1s
forecast to grow by over 50% a year between 2008 and 2020

We anticipate continued steady growth from three core end-user
markets environmental monitoring, biotechnology and chemical
analysis Worldwide growth in these markets 1S dnven by increasing
environmental legislatlon and healthcare intiatives  Rising concem
over food safety, adulteration and contamination 1s creating growing
sales opportunities in both developed and developing economies

The global ervironmental monitonng market 1s predicted to grow by
6 5% per year between 2011 and 2016 Strong annual growth of 6%
15 also forecast for the laboratory analytical market over the

sarme penod

Concem over chmate change 1s ancther driver of demand for our
analytical Instruments, water conservation and energy management
technology Throughout the world govemments are continually
introducing new legislation and inbatives designed to improve energy
efficiency and reduce carbon dioxde output




Driving innovation

We acqured Sensorex, a manufacturer of
electrochemical water analysis Sensors, in
Apnl 2012 The company supplies the
growmg ervironmental, dnnking water,
wastewater, lfe sciences and
phamaceutical markets Its products are
used by OEMs makang systems for water
quality monitoning and control

This transmutter/analyser monitors industnal
process fluid parameters fike pH, oxidation
reduction potental and temperature and
connects with process control or data

logging systems
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Geographic trends

With such diverse end-markets, the geographic trends are dverse
oo However, we see opportunities for growth in all global regions
although the ratio of growth in Asia, and China in particular,

15 expected to be higher

For example, China now has over 30 laws and 1,000 separate
reguiations to prevent poliution and protect natural resources
China recently Introduced stncter air pollubon monitonng standards
which should increase dermand for our products that monitor
sources of poliution and measure arr quality

Like marny countnes, China faces the challenge of nsing water
demand while available water resources are actualy faling
The market for water treatment products in China s forecast
to grow al 10% annually to 2015 with the industnal market
offenng the largest growth opportunities

Strategy

We will maintain world leadership in systems which reduce loss of
treated water In distnbution networks via technological leadership
This wall be supported by newly acquired ‘machine-to-machine’
communication technology which 1s in increasing demand for
environmental data collection and 1s buiit nto smart meters for
remots data recording

Our strategy for opto-electronic anatytical products s to grow organic
profit by extending our offenng in the bfe sciences and ermvaronmental
monitonng sectors To reduce the cychical impact of US federal
spending pragrammes, we ars repositioning these businesses

to service a higher proportion of end users in non-government
funded markets

We work closely with both acaderic and commercial researchers
to develop iInnovative new technologies and solutions In China,
for example, we are involved with 12 university science labs

This basic science strategy reveals new product niches and
revenug streams when research s commercialised

Performance

Ermaronmental & Analysis had a relatively disappointing year as
revenue declined by 1% to £152 4m (2012 £153 4m) and profit!
reduced by 4% to £30 4m (2012 £316m) Retum on Sales was
19 9% (2012 20 6%} Organic revenue at constant currency was
down 6% Reduced govermment research spending in the USA
and lower iInvestment by water utlites in the UK were the two
majar adverse market factors

These market factors are clearly reflected in the regional trends with
organic revenue {constant currency) dechnes of 14% in the UK and
10% in the USA Organc revenue from Mamntand Eurape fell by 4%
Our companies continue to INvest m growth in markets outside

the UK, Mamnland Europe and the USA with revenue from these
developing markets being 27% of the total sector, contnbuting
organic growth of 6%

Outlook

Despite the challenges faced by Environmental & Analysis in the past
year, we are confident that the management and crgarusational
changes currently being made will improve performance in future

These nclude smplifying global sales channels and manufactunng
operatons together with increasing senior management resources to
focus on accelerating growth n Asia and from recent new technology
nnovation It 1s expected that the total cost of this reorganisation will
be around £1m in 2013/14

" See Note 1 to the Accounts
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' In addition to those figures reported under IFRS Halma uses adiusted figures as key
performance ndicators The Direclors believe the adjusted figures gve a more
representative wew of underhing performance  Adjusted profit figures exclude the
amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition and disposal costs, tar value
adustments on acquistion contingent consideration and prefit on disposal of
operations, a of which are iIncluded in statutory figures More details are given
n Note 3 to the Accounts

2 See Financial Highlights
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Halma'’s financial model sustaining success

Once agan Halma delvered record results, achieving growth coupled
with high retumss  Strong cash generation funded the conbnuabon of
our long-tenm record of dvidend increases Intemational expansion
continues to be a key part of our story as does M&A, with considerable
success i the year In making six acguistions and one disposal Cur
financial position remains strong

Record revenue and profit

Revenue ncreased by 6 8% to £619 2m (2012 £5799m), up £393m
Of this increase, acquisitions in 2012/13 and the pnor year, net of
disposals, contnbuted £26 S5m so organic revenue was up 2 2%
There was a small adverse impact from currency translation and
consequently organic revenue growth at constant currency was 2 9%
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Revenue and profit growth Percentage change
Organic
growth" at
2013 2012 Increase Organc constant
£m £m £m Total growth® currency
Revenue 6192 5799 393 68% 22% 29%
Adiusted' profit 1307 1205 02 85% 41% 53%

Organc growth? 1s calcutated excluding the results of acquistions and disposals

This is the tenth consecutive year of record results with adjusted’
profit before taxaton growing by 8 5% to £130 7m (2012 £1205m)
Organic profit growth was 4 1% and adjusting for adverse cumrency
translabon impacts, orgarnic profit growth at constant curency was
53%

Statutory profit before taxation grew by 9 2% to £122 3m Statutory
profit s after chargng the amortisation of acquired intangible assets
of £14 2m (2012 €10 4m), acquisttion transacton costs and
movements on acquisibon contingent consideration ncluding related
foresgn exchange movements of £2 3m (2012 €16m) and after
crediting the profit on disposal of Tntech of £81m

Revenue growth was 7% in the second half of the year following a 6%
increase In the first half Adusted’ profit grew by 11% n the second
half, following a 6% increase in the first half, so the first halt/second
half split of profit was 47%/53%, with the revenue spht at 48%/52%
This 1s consistent with previous years, with higher revenue and
profitability in the second half of the year

Sector reporting changes

As announced on 14 February 2013 we are reporting Group
performance under four market based sectors This evolution in ocur
reporing follows significant growth in the former Health & Analysis
sector Comparative figures have been restated (see Note 1 to the
Accounts)

We saw the highest growth this year in the Mediical sector There was
a small decline in the Emvironmental & Analysis sector where we
antcipate recrganisation costs of appraximately £1m in the first half of
2013414 to underpin improved future performance In 2012/13 costs
of £0 8m were charged in the Group Income Statement, manly in the
first half of the year, n relation 10 the successful reorgarisation of
certan Infrastructure Safety busnesses

Central adrministrabion costs ncreased in the year predominantly to
finance continued global expansion and pecple development actraty
Including our new Halma Graduate Development Programme:

Strong growth in USA and Asia Pacific

The geographic revenue growth pattem was very consistent between
the first and second half The USA continues to be our largest sales
destination growsng by 20% this year and accounting for 31%

Geographic revenue growth

(2012 28%) of Group revenue Acquisiions boosted the US growth
and there was 4% organic growth at constant currency Mamiland
Europe revenue was only 2% below the pror year despite the tough
economic environment, with the Medical sector achieving more than
20% growth there UK revenue dechined by 8%, although excluding
the impact of disposals in the current and prior year the revenue
decline was only 3% Asia Pacific grew strongly at 15% with all four
sectors growing i this region China revenue was up 25% and 1s
now aimast 6% of Group revenue

We are targeting to have 30% of Group revenue coming from outside
the UK/Mainiand Eurcpe/USA by 2015 and this percentage mcreased
from 23 8% last year to 25 4% this year This shows good progress
and compares with a figure of 19% five years ago Half of our revenue
growth this year came from outside the UK/Mainland Europe/USA

Increased Retum on Sales

Group Retum on Sales has been above 16% for the last 28
consecutive years Our current target 1s to operate in the 18% to 22%
range We believe that a consistently high Retum on Sales 1s a key
ndicator of the value our customers place on our products and of
good cost management In 2012/13 Return on Sales increased once
agan to 211% (2012 20 8%j) due to M&A actmty and the mix of
strong business performances In the second half of the year Return
on Sales was 21 8%

A high Gross Margin {revenue less direct matenal and direct labour
costs) remains a stable element of our profitability and this year
increased o 684 0% (2012 63 5%), a good achieverment aganst the
background of cost and pnce pressures, reflecting the value of cur
ncreasing Investment in customer-led innovation

Currency impacts

Halma reports its resuilts in Sterling The most important other trading
currencies are the US Dollar, Euro, and to a lesser extent the Swiss
Franc Approximately 40% of Group revenue is denominated in US
Dollars and 14% in Euros

The Group has both translatonal and transactional curmency exposure
Translational expesures anse on the consoldation of overseas
company results into Sterling Transachonal exposures anse where the
currency of sale or purchase transactons differs from the functional
currency in which each company prepares s kocal accounts

2013 2012

% of % of Change %

£m total £m total £m growth

United States of Amenca 1950 3% 1620 28% 330 20%
Mantand Europe 1516 25% 1544 27% ) %)
United Kingdom 1156 16% 1256 21% {100 B%)
Asta Pacific 1005 16% 873 15% 132 15%
Other Countnes 565 9% 506 9% 59 12%
6192 100% 5799 100% 393 7%
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Currency rates

Weighted average rates used
in Income Statement

Year end exchange rates used
to translate Balance Sheet

2013 2012 2013 2012
US Dollar 158 160 152 160
Euro 123 116 119 120

We take a neutral iew of the future movements of curencies  After
matching cumency of revenue with currency costs wherever practical,
forward exchange contracts are used to hedge a proportion (up to
75%) of the remaining forecast net transaction flows where there1s a
reasonable certanty of an exposure We hedge up to 12 months and in
certain specific crcumstances 24 months, forward At 30 March 2013
over 50% of our next 12 months currency trading transactions were
hedged There 1s a good degree of natural hedging within the Group
in US Dollars but we typically buy fewer products in Euros than we
selland so have a net exposure of approxmately €30m at any time

There was a small negative net curency translational mpact on the
201213 results Relative to Stering the US Dollar strengthened by 1%
and the Euro weakened by 6% on average in the year and the net
currency translation impact was 0 7% adverse on revenue and 1 2%
adverse on profit

Based on the curent mix of curmency denominated revenue and
profit, a 1% movernent n the US Dollar relatve to Sterling changes
revenue by £2 4m and profit by £0 5m Similarly, 2 1% movement in
the Euro changes revenue by £0 9m and profit by £0 2m

Increased finance cost

Net financing cost In the Income Statement ncreased to £3 8m
(2012 £14m) Net bank mterest and funding costs increased due to
higher average levels of debt and slightly higher average interest rates
(see table ‘Average debt and interest rates’ on page 49) as well as the
tugher costs of funding our mereased bank facility frorm October 2011

The net pension financing charge s also part of our financing cost
and this year it mcreased from £0 2m to £0 5m This charges
dependent on the level of pension scheme liabiiies and assets at the
start of the year as well as the discount ratefrates of returmn apphed to
them In 201213 the cost of higher liabilities exceeded the return on
increased assets In 2013714 the pension accounting rules under
1AS19 (Employee benefits) will change and this change will affect the
Group Income Statement The pnncipal change relates to the
requirement to use the schemes’ discount rate to calculate the retum
on assets rather than using a rate of retumn appropnate to the vanous
asset classes At current discount rates, the change Is expected to
reduce the adjusted profit by approximately £2m for 2013/14
onwards Comparative figures will be smilarty restated, so overall
Group reported growth rates will be largely unaffected

Higher Group tax rate

The Group has its man operating subsidianes n 14 countnes 50 the
Group's effective tax rate 1s a blend of these different national rates
applied to locally generated profits Cur approach to taxation is to
manage the tax burden in a responsible manner, keeping good
relatronships with tax authonties based on legal comphance,
transparency and cooperation Intercompany trading 1s seton a
commercial am’s length basis

The effective tax rate on adusted profit increased to 24 2%

(2012 23 5%) Approximately one-third of Group profit 1s generated
and taxed in the UK and the UK Corporation Tax rate fell from 26% to
24% this year, with 1t forecast to fall to 20% in 2016 Cffsetting this
was the tax on increased profits generated in higher tax rate
junsdictions, in particular the USA

We anticipate that the effective tax rate mn 2013/14 will be similar to
that n 201213

48 Halrna plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Increasing earnings per share and dividends

We have consistently delivered value to shareholders through growth
N eamings per share and dvidend increases Adjusted? eamings per
share increased by 7 2% to 26 22p below the rate of increase n
adjusted? profit due to the huigher effective tax rate compared with the
pror year Statutory eamings per share increased by 9 6% with the
higher acquisition related expense being more than offset by the

£8 1m profit on disposal of Tritech

Anincrease In the final dwvidend of 71% to 6 37p per share (2012

5 95p} 1s recommended which, together with the 71% increase in the
ntenm dvidend, gives a total dmdend of 10 43p per share 2012
974p) Halma has a long record of growing its dmvidend, and with this
latest nse, will have increased the dvidend by 5% or more for every
one of the last 34 years, paying out £300m to shareholders in the last
decade The final dmdend for 2012/13 1s subject to approval by
shareholders at the AGM on 25 July 2013 and will be paud on

21 August 2013 to shareholders on the register at 19 July 2013

We have maintained a progressive dvidend policy that balances
drdend increases with organic growth rates achieved, taking into
account current and potential acquistion spend and the mantenance
of moderate debt levels Dvidend cover (the rato of adjusted profit
after tax to ddends paid and proposed) remains the same as 2012
at 2 5 times QOur policy 15 to mantan dvidend cover, based on
adjusted profit, above two times and we will continue to monitor
dradend payout each year as dwvidend cover nses

Good cash generation

Strong cash generation is cntical to the long-term health of the Group
Cur cash performance in 2012/13 was good Adjusted operating
cash flow was £113 /m (2012 £105 4m} and represents 84% (2012
86%) of adjusted operating profit This new cash conversion KPlis in
keeping with best practice amongst our peers and this year's result s
In hne with our newly revised KPP target of 85% cash conversion

Operating cash flow summary 2013 2012
£m £m

Operating profit 1184 1099

Net acquistion costs and contingent 22 17

consideration fair value adjustments

Amorhsaton of acquistion-related 142 104

acgurred intangibles

Adjusted operating profit 134 8 1220

Depreciation and other amortisation 17.7 173

Working capital movements {109) (76)

Capital expendrture net of dispesal {14 6) (153

proceeds

Additional payments to pension (8.3) 64

schemes

Other adjustrnents {50) 46

Adjusted operating cash flow 137 1054

Cash conversion % 84% 86%
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At the year end net debt was £110 3m (2012 £18 7mj, a combmnaton

Non-o { h flow and 2013 2012
roo ton e net dabt m e 0 £160 0m of debt and £49 7m of cash hekd around the world to
- ] 105 finance local operations The increased net debit 1S a result of our
Adjusted operating cash flow 137 4 success in secunng high quality acquisitions dunng the year offset by
Tax pad {25 5) 278 good cash generation and disposal proceeds The ratio of net debt to
EBMDA was 073 tmes (2012 014 times), well below the level of 125
it f businesses and shares of 153 19 '
m’gg{?ﬁmm cash/debt acqured (1837) o8 times within which we feel cormfortable operating Net debt
p represents 5 6% {2012 13%) of the Group's year-end market
Net finance costs and arrangement fees 2.3) B2 caprtalisation
Dmdends pad {378) 352
Issue of sharestreasury shares 51) @s) Average debt and interest rates 2013 2012
purchased Average gross debt (Cm) 1337 884
Disposal of businesses 196 36 Weighted average inferest rate on 134% 116%
Effects of foreign exchange {05) {11) gross debt
Movement in net debt {916) 184 Average cash balances {Em) 452 373
Weighted average interest rate on cash 043% 057%
Opening net debt (187} 371) Average net debt () 885 Sl
Weighted average interest rate on net debt 1B0% 158%
Closing net debt {(110.3) (187 Record acquisition spend
Acquistions and disposals are an important part of our growth
model We buy already successful businesses in, or adacent to,
Net debt to EBITDA 2‘::1':‘5 zcgi niches in our chosen areas of operation
During the year we spent £137m on six acquistions {excluding net
Operat oft 118 4 1009
peraling prom 9 cash/{debt) acquired of £5m) plus £16m in payment of contingent
Depreciation and amortisation 9 277 consideration on acquisiions made in previous years A provision has
EBITDA 1503 13786 been made for £23m of contingent consideration on current year
acquisitions, being our best estmate of the amounts lkely to be
payable Goodwill of £82m and intangible assets of £69m were
Net Debt to EBITDA % 73% 14%

A summary of the year’s cash flow 1s shown in the table above
Working capital movements, compnsing changes n nventory,
debtors and creditors, totalled £10 9m (2012 £76m) Working capital
management 1s the responsibifity of each individual subsidiary board
and therefore receves close attention This year's ncrease in debtors
reflects the growth in our business and recenves continued focus to
ensure cash generation remans sirong

Expenditure on property, plant and computer software this year was
£15 5m (2012 £16 5m) slightly below the pnor year when there were
some larger caprital investment projects This year's spend represents
110% of depreciation, {allng within the 100% to 125% range we
expect

Taxahon pad was £25 5m 2012 £27 8my) a Iitle below the relatively
hugh prior year figure with a lower UK Corporaton Tax rate and higher
pension contnbutions coninbuting to the change

Strong financial position

Halma s highly cash generatve and has substantial bank faciites
We have access to competitvely pnced finance at short notice
and spread our nsks to provide good iquidity for the Group
Group treasury policy 1s conservative and no speculatve
transactions are allowed

In Qctober 2011 we refinanced our revoiving credit facility We have
in place a £260m faciity for five years to 2016 with five ntemational
banks The Group continues to operate well within its banking
covenants We use debt to accelerate the Group’s development
and review our funding needs regularly to ensure we have

ample headroom

recognised on the acquisitions made in the year and the weighted
average acqusiion muttiple was 9 2x EBIT, based on the inibal
acquistion consideraton

In August 2012 we sold Titech for £22m A gain of £8 m has been
recognised In the Group Income Statement after accounting for the
assets sold, Including the asscaiated goodwill In April 2013 we made
a further small acquisition for an intal consideration of £2 6m

The businesses acquired in 2012/13 and in early 2013/14, together
with the one disposal in 2012/13, are expected to add a net amount
of £21 7m to revenue and £4 9m (after financing costs) to profit in
2013/14 based on ther run rates at the tme of acquisihon/disposal

Pension commitments

The Group pnmanly provides ether defined benefit (DB) or defined
contnbution pension armangements for ts employees The DB
sections of the Group’s pensicn plans were closed to new entrants in
January 2003 There are now fewer than 400 employees retaining
access to future accrual under the OB plans so our key focus 1s on
miigating the impact of the past service deficrt.

On an lAS 19 basis the deficit on the DB plans at March 2013 was
£47 2m (2012 £33 0m) before the related deferred tax asset Plan
assets increasad to £176 3m (2012 £153 Om) with some further
recovery In equity values and our addiional cash contnbutions In
total, 57% of plan assets are invested in retum-seeking assets, 35% N
equites and 22% in dversified growth funds providing a higher
expected level of retum over the longer term Plan babiliies increased
to £223 5m (2012 £186 Om) manly due to the reduction i the
discount rate used to value these liabilibes
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“Halma has a long record of
growing its dividend and with this
latest increase will have increased
the dividend by 5% or more for
every one of the last 34 years,
paying out £300m to shareholders
in the last decade.”

We continue to make extra contnbutions to the plans at a rate agreed
with the frustees and expect this to be at the rate of £7m per year for
the Immediate future with the objective of eliminating the deficit over
the next six years We continue to develop and implement plans to
reduce the nsk in the future cost of cur DB pension plans

R&D investment

Expenditure on R&D ncreased to £311m (2012 £27 4m) an increase
of 13% and representing 5 0% (2012 4 7%) of revenue All four
sectors Increased both the absolute spend and ther percentage of
revenue spent on R&D in the year Environmental & Analysis has the
highest spend per £ of revenue at 6 8%

We are required under IFRS 1o caprtalise certain development
expenditure and amortse It over an appropnate pencd, for us three
years R&D by tts nature cames nsk and all R&D projects, partcularty
those requinng capitalisabon, are subyect to close scrutiny and a
ngorous approval and review process In 2012413 we capitalised £5 4m
(2012 £47m) and amortised £3 5m (2012 £3 7m) This results in an
asset camed on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, after £0 4m of
foreign exchange movements and disposals, of £12 0m {2012 £105m)

Managing risks and going concern considerations

and the year ahead

The main nsks facing the Group and how we address them are
reviewed on pages 53 10 55 The key operating nsks are covered
in the Chief Executive's Strategic Review and Sector Reviews

A key nsk mihgation 1s that we spread nsk across the Group via
well-resourced independent operating units There are extensive and
regular reviews of operations at local and Dwvisional levels These
revigws are supplemented by Intemal Audit As we expand our
business internationally, we continue to focus on mantaning the
quality of people and the controls operating across each country

Cur policies and processes to mitigate Bnbery & Cormuption together
with our Code of Conduct have been rolled out across the Group
including newly acquired businesses This supports our long-
standing ethica!l approach to business In 2013/14 we will be
supporting increased growth in subsidiary companies by further
developing the strategic use of Information Technology having this
year rolled out a centralised [T disaster recovery solution

The Board considers all of the above factors in its review of
‘Going Concem’ as descnbed on page 69 and has been able
to conclude its review satisfactonly

Halma takes a disciplined approach to managing nsk, to sustan tigh
retums and deliver growth over the long term In the year ahead we
will continue to focus on strong cash generation to enable Investment
In existing and new businesses, finance dwidends and delver
sigrificant value to shareholders

Kevin Thompson
Finance Director
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Adjusted' profit before tax

£130.7m

2013 £130 7Tm
2012 £1205m
2011 £104 6m
2010 £86 2m
2009 £79 1m
Return on sales
21.1%
2013 21 1%
2012 208%
2011 20 2%
2010 188%
2009 17 3%
Dividend paid and proposed
7 %) INcrease
2013 £39.4m
2012 £36 7m
2011 £34 3m
2010 £32 0m
2009 £29 7m




RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control

The Board meets regularly throughout the year and has adopted a
schedule of matters which are required to be brought to it for
decision This procedure 1s Intended to ensure that the Directors
mantan full and effective control over all sigrificant strategic, financial
and organisational Issues

Dunng the year, actions to strengthen the control environment
continue to be taken centrally by Group management, particularty n
the areas of health and safety, anti-bnbery and corruption, and export
controls The duties and responsibiliies of subsidiary management
are continually refreshed as well as documented in a manual
crculated to all subsidiary managing directors and available on our
collaboration platiorm A comprehensve induction programme for
subsdiary finance directors was launched last year and our internal
financial review procedures are currently being refreshed We
strengthened the resources dedicated to identifying and investigating
potential acquisitions and the policies to ensure a rapid and
successful integration following acquisiton The scope of the Group's
policies and the programme of compliance audits are regularty
reviewed to ensure they are sufficient to address cument nsks The
Group placed additional emphasis on updating our business
continuity plans over recent years ensunng that they are mutually
complementary to our Nsurance programme

The Group's treasury and hedging policy 1s kept under review to
ensure that appropnate accounting and banking arrangements are
ahgned with the Group’s growth and to ensure continued complance
with accounting requirements

The internal audit function has operated independently since 2004,
reporting to the Audit Committee In 2008/09, a dedicated Intemal
Audit manager was added to support the function and dunng
2010/11 an intemal auditor based iIn China was recruted Each year
we implement further improvements to our intemal Audit procedures
to enhance effectiveness

The processes which the Board has applied n reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group's system of ntemal control are
summansed below

* gperating companies carry out a detaled nsk assessment sach
year and identfy mitigating actions in place or proposed for each
signficant nsk A nsk register i compiled from this information,
against which action 1s monitored through to resolution Group
management also compiles a summary of significant Group nsks,
documenting existing or planned actions to miigate, manage or
avold nsks,

each menth the board of every operating company meets,
discusses and reports on its operating performance, its
opportunities, the nsks facing it and the resultant actions The
relevant Dmsional Chief Executive charrs this meeting Dwvisional
Chef Executives meet regularly with the Chief Executive and
Finance Director and report on dvistonal progress to the Executive
Board,

financial and trading *‘waming signs' are reported to Group and
dsional management Weekly data on cash management and
sales and orders are also reported directly to the Chief Executive,
the Finance Director and the Group finance team This framework
Is designed to provde an early warming of potential nsks and to
direct appropnate action where necessary,
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» the Chief Executive submits a report to each Halma plc Board
meeting which includes financial information, the main features of
Group operations and an analysis of the significant nsks and
opportunities facing the Group The report alse covers progress
aganst strategic objectives and shareholder related issues,

regular Director visits to Group companies are scheduled and open
access to the subsidiary company boards i1s encouraged, cyclical
and nsk-based intemal control wisits are camed out by internal audit
or senior finance staff resuting In actions being fed back to each
company and followed up by Dvisicnal Finance Directors and
Dmisional Chief Executives Reviews are coded in terms of nsk and
a summary of afl such reviews 1s given to the Audit Committee, with
any sigrificant control falings being reported directly to the Audit
Committee, senior finance staff also conduct financial reviews at
each operating company before pubhcation of half-year and
year-end figures We have a Groupwde IT policy supported by a
programme of IT audits, and

the Chief Executive, Finance Director and Intemal Audit function
report to the Audit Committee on all aspects of intemal control The
Board receves regular reports from the Audit Committee charman
and the papers and minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are
used as a basis for its annual review of mternal control
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL CONTINUED

Group nisk management

Board

Operational

Chief Executive

Executive Board

Divisional Finance Directors

Group nsk 1s mitigated by means of an operating structure which
spreads the Group’s actmties across a number of autonomous
subsidiary companies Each of these companiesisfed by a
high-quality board of directors Including a finance executve

CGroup companies operate under a system of controls which ncludes
but 1s not brmited to

-»

a defined organisational structure with an appropnate delegation of
authonty to operational management which ensures appropriate
segregation of key dutes,

the identfication and apprasal of nsks both formally, through the
annual process of prepanng business plans and budgets, through
an annual detaled nsk assessment camed out at local level

and informally through close monitonng of operations,

a comprehensive financial reporting system, regularly enhanced,
within which actual and forecast results are compared with
approved budgets and the previcus year's figures on a monthly
hasis Weekly cash/sales/orders reporting including details of
financial institutions are alse martaned within the financial
reporting system, all of which 1s reviewed at both focal and Group
level,

an investment evaluation procedure to ensure an appropnate level
of approval for all capital expenditure and other capitalised costs,

self-certification by operating company management of
compliance and control Issues,
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Compliance

Audrt Committee

Company Secretary

Internal Audrt

Whistleblowing

= arobust structure for electronme communication and conducting

g-commerce to ensure that the Group 15 not negatvely impacted
by threats to its mformation technology infrastructure and to
minimise potental for business disruptions The Group has a wide
range of measures, policies and framework in place which includes
a virtual private network covenng over 80 sites woridwide, secure
firewalls, information management audits, disaster recovery and a
mobile devices management system, and

an acquistticns and disposals framework which governs the due
diigence, negotation, approval and integration processes to ensure
that value enhancing, qualty nvestments are made n order to
mest our strategic objectives




PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risk descnption

Operational Risk
Remoteness of
operations and
glcbalisation

A key operational nsk
emanates from remoteness
of operations from Head
Office and the ncreasing
global spread of our
businesses

Operational Risk

Staff quality

The actions and quality of our
employees affect the growth
of, and level of nnovation in
the business

Operational Risk
Competihion

The Group faces competition
in the form of pneing, service,
reliability and substriution

Operationa! Risk
Pressure-pont
Exposures

including

Large customer nsk

- indwidual operating
companies are at some nsk
of over-rellance on larger
customers

Key suppher nsk — we rely
on high quality service from
our supply partners

Operational Risk
Research & Development
New products are cntical to
our organic growth and
underpin our abilty to eam
high margins and high retums
over the long term

Trend*

Potential impact

* Weakening of
financtal control and
drvergence from
overall Group strategy
In remote operations,
leading to unexpected
financial outcomes
Failure to comply with
local laws and
regulations in
urtarmiiar termtones,
leading to legal or
regulatory disputes

Failure to retan key
staff could lead to
reduced innovation
and progress in the
business

Unethicat actions of
staff could cause
reputational damage
to the Group

Loss of market share
due to pnce pressure
and changmg
markets

* Reduced financial
perforrmance ansing
from competitive
threats

Loss of market share
and reduced financial
performance due to
loss or falure of a
major customer
Disruphon of service
to customers through
supply chan
interruption

Loss of market

share resulting

from product
obsolescence and
failure to Innovate to
meet customer needs
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Mitigation

» Controt ts exercised locally in accordance with the Group's policy of
autonomous management We seek to employ local igh qualty
experts

« The Group's acquisition modei ensures retention of management and
staff n acquired businesses meaning that local expertise s maintaned

* Dnasional Chief Executives {DCEs) ensure that overall Group strategy 1s
futliled through on-gong review of the businesses  The nght balance
between autonomy and adherence to the overall objectives of the
Group 1s a key function of the DCEs and Divisional Finance Directors

* Regutar visits by senior management, finance staff and Intermal Audit
support local control

Key KPIs Intemational expansion, Values alignment,
Development programmes

* Group Development Programmes enhance the skills of executives and
middle managers needed in therr current and future roles

* Comprehensive recrutment and ongeing evaluation processes assist
high quality hinng and development

» The Group regularty surveys staff to assess the ahignment of indviduals
with Group values

Key KPIs Development programmes, R&D investment,
Values alignment, Organic revenue growth

* By empowenng and resourcing INnnovation I kocal cperations to
respond to changing market needs, the potential adverse mpact of
downward pnce pressure and competition can be miigated and
growth maintained

* We recognise the competitive threat coming from emerging economies
and by operating within these economies, typically using local staff,
we are better placed to make fast progress oursehlves

« The Group operates in specialised global niche markets offering
high bamers to entry

Key KP!s R&D investment, Returm on Sales;
Organic revenue growth, Development programmes

* We do not place undue rellance on any one Group company nor does
the Group rely heawvity on one customer, supplier or transaction

* We address customer concentration at Company level through actve
dwersification of the customer base No customer represents more
than 2% of Group revenue

* We am tc manage the nsk of timing and qualty of component supply
by dual sourcing and through lengstancing werlang relationships

Key KPls Organic revenue growth

* By devoving control of product development into the autonomous
operating businesses, we both spread nsk and ensure that the people
best placed to senace the customer's needs are dmving innovation

* New product development ‘best practice’ 1s shared between Group
companies and return on Investment of past and future innovation
projects is tracked monthly This ensures that the collectve expenence
and expertise of the Group can be utilised to maximum effect

« Large R&D projects, especially those which are caprialised, require
Head Office appraval, ensunng that the Group's significant projects are
aligned to overall strategy

Key KPIs R&D investment, Development programmes

* Trend indicates management s percepton of how the pre-mibgation nsk has moved year on year
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

Risk descniption Trend*  Potential impact Mrigation

Operational Risk
Intangible resources
Protection of our nteliectual
property bulds competitive
advantage by strengthening
bamers to entry Our
intangible resources nclude
patents, product approvals,
technological know-how,
branding and our workforce

Operational Risk
Information Technology/
Business {nterruption
Group and operational
management depend on
timely and reliable mformaton
from our software systems
We seek to ensure
continuous availabity,
secunty and operation of
those systems

Strategic Risk
Acquisitions

The wentification and
purchase of businesses
which meset our demanding
financial and growth critena 1s
animportant part of our
strategy for developing the
Group, as 1s ensunng the new
businessas are rapwdly
ntegrated into the Group

Legal Risk

Laws and regulations
Group operations are subject
to wide-ranging laws and
reguiasons Including business
conduct, employment,
ermaronmental and health and
safety legislabon There s also
exposure to product lihgaton
and contractual nsk

The laws and reguiations we
are exposed o as our
businessas expand around
the world increase each year
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* Loss of market share
resutting from a talure
10 protect key
intellectual property

Delay or impact on
decision making
through lack of
avadabiity of sound
data

Reduced service to
customers due to
poor information
handling or
nterruption of
business

Faiure to delver
expected results
resutting from poor
acquistion selection
+ Reduced financial
performance arsing
from failure to
integrata acquisitions
nto the Group
Unforeseen labiities
ansing from a failure
o understand
acquisition targets
fully

Reputational damage
leading to customer
loss and brand
damage

Deversion of
management
resources creating
opportunity costs
Penaltes ansing from
breach of laws and
regulations

* Workiorce qualty and retention 15 a central objectve This focus
ensures that intangible resources stay and grow within the business

* Operating businesses are actively encouraged to develop and protect
know-how In local jJunsdictons

* Innovation 15 encouraged and fostered throughout the Group via the
Halma Innovation Awards

Key KPls Crganic revenue growth, R&D mvestment,
Development programmes

* There 1s substantial redundancy and back up built into Groupwide
systems and the spread of business offers good pratecton from
indmdual events

* We have a small central resource, Halma IT Services, to assist Group
companies with strategic [T needs and to ensure adeguate [T secunty
policies are used across the Group

* We carry out regular IT audits

* We utitse external penetration testing and have completed the rollout of
a centralised [T disaster recovery solution to supplement local
processes Business Continutty plans are well advanced in each
business unit

* We acquire businesses whaose technology and marksts we know well
Dmisional Chief Executives are responsible for finding and completing
acquistions in therr business sectors subject to Board approval
supported by central resources to search for opportunties We employ
detaled post-acquistion ntegration plans

+ Thorough due diigence s performed by a combination of in-house and
external experts to ensure that a comprehensive appraisal of the
financial position of every target 1s obtaned

» Incentives are aligned to encourage acquistions which are value-
enhancing from day one

Key KPIs- Acquisttion spend, ROTIC

¢ The Group's emphasis on excellent financial control, high ethical
standards, the deployment of high quality management resource and
the strong focus on qualty control over products and processes In
each operating business help to protect us from product failure,
itgation and contractual 1Issues
Each operating company has a heaith and safety manager responsible
for compliance and our performanca in this area s good Updated
Health and Safety policies and gudance were issued recently, with
enhanced monthly reporting Our well established policies on bnbery
and comuption have been maintamed dunng the year to ensure
continued complance with best prachce mternally, wa the Group Code
of Conduct and extemnally via appropnate clauses mciuded in third
party agreements
* \We carry comprehensive nsurance against all standard categones of
insurable nsk. Contract review and approval processes mitigate
exposure io contractual habifity

Key KPIs Values alignment




Risk description Trend*

Fmancial Risk

Cash

A key nskis that the Group
may run out of cash or not
have access to adequate
cash in addition, cash
deposits need to be held In
a secure form and location

Financial Risk

Treasury Risks

Foreign currency rnisk i1s the
most significant treasury
related nisk for the Group In
times of increased volatility
this can have a significant
impact on performance The
Group 1s exposed to a lesser
extent to other treasury nsks
such as interest rate nsk and
kquidtty nsk

Financial Risk

Pension Deficit

Monitonng the funding needs
of the Group’s pension plans
1s essential to meeting our
pension obligations
effectvely Our UK defined
benefit pension plans are
closed to new members

Economic Risk
Economic Conditions

In tmes of uncertain
economic conditions
businesses face addtional or
elavated levels of nsk These
include market and customer
nsk, customer defautt, fraud,
supply chain nsk and hquidity
nsk Uncertanty in the
Eurozone in particular adds to
current uncertanty

Potential mpact

» Constrants on, or
inability to, trade
Inability to delver on
growth strategies
Permanent loss of
shareholder funds

L]

Reduced orwolatie
financial performance
ansing from
translation af profit
from overseas
operations or poorty
managed foresgn
exchange exposures
Dewviation from core
strategy through the
use of speculative or
overly complex
financal nstruments
Financial penalties
and reputational
damage ansing from
breach of banking
covenants

* Excesswve
consumption of cash,
Iimting investman
Unexpected vanabilty
In company results

= Reduced financial
performance

* | oss of market share

* Unforeseen liabilities

* Disruption of service
to customers

Overview 02-09

Business review 10-59
Govermnance 60-86
Financial statements a7-147

Mitigation

+ The strong cash flow generated by the Group provides financial
flexibilty

* Cash needs are monrored regulady In addition to short-term overdraft
facilites the Group renewed and increased to £260m its five-year
revohing credit facilty dunng the prior year providing securty of funding
ard sufficient headroom for its needs Debit levels increased this year
but the Group has adequate funding avallable to it

* Cash deposits are monstored centrally and spread amongst a number
of high credt rated banks Subsdianes report therr cash status to Head
Office every week.

Key KPIs Cash generation

» The nsk has ncreased because more of the Group's profits are derved
from non-Stering currencies. Currency profits are not hedged
Currency hedging must fit with the commercial needs of the business
and we have in place a hedging strategy to manage Group exposures
This requires the hedging of a substantial proportion of expected future
transactions up o 12 months [and N exceptional cases 24 months)
ahead Longer term currency trends can only be covered through a
wide geographic spread of operations

The Group does not use overly complex dervative financial Instruments
and no speculative treasury transactions are undertaken

We clesely monitor performance against the financial covenants on our
revolving credtt facility and are operating well within these covenants

There 1s regular dialogue with pension fund trustees and pension
strategy 1s a regular Halma Board agenda tem The Group's strong
cash flows and access o adequate borrowing facities mean that the
pensions nsk can be adequately managed

The Group has maintaned addiional pension contnbutions with the
overall objectve of paying off the deficit In ine with the Actuary's
recommendations We monrtor and consider altematrve means of
reducing our pension nsk in ight of the best long-term interest of
shareholders

Risks are pnmarity managed at the operating company level where
local knowledge 1s situated  The financial strength and availability of
pooled finance within the Group mrtigates local nsks faced by operating
companies as does the robust credit management processes in place
across the Group

The Halma Executive Board identifies any wider trends which require
action Other than potential exposure to the current macro-economic
uncertainty In the Eurczone, none have been notad

The Group's dversity kmits is exposure to economic nsk ansing in any
one terntory Group sales to Manland Europe represent 25% of overall
sales and sales to southern Eurozone economes and lreland represent
fewer than 5% of totat Group sales The Group does not have
sigrificant operahions, cash deposits or sources of funding in these
areas

Key KPIs International expansion, Cash generation,
Development programmes
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CORPORAI

RESPONSIBIL

Govermmance and commitment to Corporate
Responsibility

Halma comparues are invalved in the manufacture of a wide range of
products that protect and improve the qualtty of Iife for people
worldwide Therefore, safety is cntical to the Group and 1s a major
pnonty for management Reduction of the Group's carbon footpnnt
has recewved increased attention since 2007 with the imbial objectve
of a 10% reduction n relative carbon usage in the three years to
March 2010, renewed for the subsequent three years to March 2013
and agan for the three years to March 2016

Qur core values are Achievernent, [nnovation, Empowenment and
Customer Satisfaction These core values have been selected
following extensive surveying of employees across the Group Our
culture 1s one of openness, INtegnty and accountabilty We
encourage our employees to act farly in thetr dealings with fellow
employees, customers, supphers and business partners We
recognise that our employees detenmine our success and therefore
continue to Invest in and encourage therr development more and
more each year, not only with a sute of Halma development
programmes, but also through clear leadership and decisive action
By ensunng that our team has the approach and skills required to
succeed we are better placed to meet the challenges of the future

We recognise the necessity of safeguarding the health and safety of
our own employees while at work and operate s0 as to provide a safe
and comfortable working environment for employees, wisttors and the
pubhke Our palicy I1s to manage our activities to avoid causing any
unnecessary or unacceptable nsks to health and safety and the
environment

Halma has an excellent health and safety record and a culture of
safety 1s deeply embedded within the Group We have continued to
actively promote our safety culture throughout the year through a
senes of ndependent Health and Safety reviews covenng each
operating cornpany

We support the concept of sustainability and recognise that, in
common with all businesses, our activities have an environmental
impact Our strategy 1s not to have capital-intensive manufactunng
processes and o operate close to our end markets in terms of
geography, so the environmental impact of our operations

1s relatrvely low compared to manufacturers in other sectors We also
recognise that we can improve cur own environmental performance
and so resources are deployed to actively reduce our own

carbon footpnnt

Halma has been a member of the FTSE4Good UK index since its
establishment in July 2001

A summary of our progress and performance for all areas of
corporate responsibhility follows Halma has developed meaningful key
performance Indicators (KPis) that reflect the mportance the Group
places on corporate responsibility and enable the Board to monttor
the Group's progress In meeting its objectives and responsibiies in
these areas Details are given on pages 16 and 17
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The environment

We have an excellent long-term record and a clear strategy for
addressing ervironmental Issues that affect our businesses and for
developing products that protect the environment and improve safety
at work and n public places

Qur products

Many of our innovative products play a very positive role in montonng
and improving the emvaronment Halma brands lead the world in a
number of technologies which help to minmise environmental
damage Qur principal environmental technologies are water leakage
detection and wireless monitonng, gas emissions monitonng, water
and effluent analysis, UV water treatment and optical sensing We
promote the use of UV water steniisation which eliminates the need to
use dangerous chermicals, as well as products that minimise the
waste of clean water

Our commitment to the development of equipment for measunng
and monitonng environmental changes and controling the damaging
impact of ndustnal actmties 15 long term We are the major world
suppler in several of these areas

Carbon policy

The Group's policy on carbon 1s published on our website and has
been distnbuted and explained to all Halma business units A senior
executive In each of our higher iImpact business units I1s responsible
for implementing the carbon policy at local level Our Finance Director,
Kevin Thompson, has pnncipal responsibility for coordinating and
monitenng the policy

Environmental Management System

We are committed to developing and mplementing an environmental
management system (EMS) throughout the Group o measure,
control and, where practical, reduce our environmental impacts We
have developed performance indicators that assist local management
in mplementing the policy and ulimately developing an EMS The
requirement for an EMS and the related reporting has been rolled out
to all UK busmess units, which represent approximately 36% of
Group production faciities in terms of external tumover

Al Group companies are encouraged to underiake 1SO 14001, the
intermational environmental accredtaton, where warranted The
requirement to mplement an EMS will be extended to the rest of the
Group n the medium temm In terms of revenue, currentty 20% (2012
22%) of the Group has ISO 14001 approval

Our impact

The environmental effect of our operations 1s relatively low compared
to manufacturers in other sectors Our manufactunng modet 1s
decentralised permitting our operations to be located close to ther
customers Manufactunng operations are established across the
world for this very reason rather than to save labour costs The ethos
of being close to our customers reflects the mportance we place on
the qualty of our products and the serwice levels we prowide to our
customers i also makes our operations more flexible and responsive
to therr markets and customers With operations spread around the
globe, our supplier base 1s understandabty fragmented Therefore,
responsibility for vetting and managing supphers 1s devolved to local
management while meeting the Group’s ethical standards




Nevertheless, Group companies are encouraged to rmprove energy
efficiency, reduce waste and emissions and reduce the use of
matenals in order to minimise ther emvironmental impact The Group
established baseline data in 2004/05 on emissions to ar and water,
water and energy consumption, and waste production, the results of
which are updated on the Halma website each year The data
collected for the past five years has enabled the Group to set
comprehensive and quantifiable objectives for reducing its
environmental impacts in those areas and to set and monitor targets
for reduction In key areas The collected data confirms that the man
area of mpact on the environment 1S enargy consumptton

The Group does not operate a fleet of distnbution vehicles although
we do own a number of company cars From May 2007, we
Implemented a cap on permissible CO; emissions of all UK company
vehicles and have extended an equivalent requirement to the USA
and Europe This mit 1s reduced each year so as to consistently
reduce our vehicles' environmental irmpact

We are committed to reducing our carbon foctpnmt We set a target
1N 2007 to reduce the Group's total carbon emissions relative to
revenues by 10% over three years We have worked hard fo reduce
the energy impact of our faciites and mantaned that target for 2010
to 2013

We are pleased to report that consistently over three years we
reduced our carbon emissions resulting N an overall reduction of 10%
in three years We continue to support a number of carbon reduction
Intiatives, particularly in the UK, which are designed fo help us meet
our targets

From Apnl 2010, we have worked with a provider of energy efficiency
and carbon reduction solutons to ensure complance with the new
Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme (CRC)
which Is the UK's mandatory climate change and energy saving
scheme administered by the Environment Agency We are in full
compliance with the CRC requirements Already we have rolled out
Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) technology to the majorty of UK
sites All major UK sites have receved an energy survey and set an
action plan for mproved energy usage This intiative 1s backed up by
specialist carbon management scftware and comprehensive training
on its use The Group's ervironmental performance will continue to
be reported both in the Annual Report and on our website

We have plans to step up our activities mtemationally to comply with
the incoming mandatory carbon reporting requirements which UK
public ksted companies are subject to under the UK Govermment's
forthcoming Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Directors’ Report)
Regulations 2013 We are In the process of reviewing service
providers who will assist us In establishing the next stage approach
for montonng our emvironmental performance and future external
reporting requirements

The Group 1s commiited to examining the establishiment of ‘green’
procurement pohcies and increasing our use of recycled matenals

Cverview 02-09
Business review 10-5¢
Govemance 60-86
Financial statements 87-147

Health and safety

Halma companies are nvolved in the manufacture of a wide range of
products that protect and mprove the quality of ife for people
worldwide Therefore, safety 1s citical to the Group and 18 a major
pnonty for management

The Group manages 1ts actmvties to avoid causing any unnecessary
or unacceptable nsks to health and safety to our emplayees in the
work place or to the public as a result of our actmties The policy 1s
understood by all Group companies and was renforced in 2010/11
through improved guidance and reporting following a comprehensive
review led by an extermnal expert

To ensure each Group company has appropnately embedded the
updated Health and Safety procedures in ther business, we required
ndependent Health and Safety reviews to be performed and these
will be completed by July 2013 These reviews are conducted with a
view to ensunng a consistent approach in qualty of reporting, intemal
processes, Integration in operations, approprateness of compary
policies, cutture of Health and Safety and also as a means of
identifying any patterns or underyng causes of reported incidents As
aresuft, reporting of Health and Safety mcidents and comrective action
where needed has been given an even higher profile

Grven the autonomous structure of the Group, operational
responsibility for comphance with relevant local Health and Safety
regulations 1§ delegated to the directors of each Group company We
believe Health and Safety traiming 1s important and it 15 camed out
within companies as appropnate Adequate internal reporting exists in
order that the Group’s Finance Director can monitor each company’s
compliance with this policy

Injunes recorded 2013 2012 2011
Days lost due

to reportable”

work-related injunes 382 I 455
Total recorded injuries

to all employees 320 362 505

" Specfied major mury ncderts and reportable modents which resutt n more than
three workung days lost

The Group collects details of its worldwide reported Health and

Safety mcidents, and these are avallable on our website at www

halma com We are also pleased to report that there were no fatalites

In 2012413 or pnor years
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
CONTINUED

Our people

The Group has a policy of equal opportuniies and preventing
harassment, which apphes i relation to recruitment of all new
employess and to the management of existing personnel This gives
us access to the widest labour market and enables us to secure the
best employees for our needs We offer all of our staff training relevant
to therr roles and we believe that this contnbutes to an ncrease In
employee motvation and job satisfaction The culture alignment
survey results mentioned below support our efforts

Penodically we compiete a survey of employees to determine whether
our core values are authenhc in our organisation The survey
establishes the values indmdual employees wish to see In our
operating culture and to what extent they esast n our current culture

In 2008, our survey of senior managers showed that tive (50%) of the
values they wanted to see in our business were actually present In
2012, our survey of senior managers showed that six (60%} desired
values were present in our business This Indicated that there was a
healthy level of alignment between the culture we aspire to have and
the culture we actually have For 2013, we increased the participation
N the survey by 76% by making it available in paper format as well as
online This year's survey still showed a good level of alignment with
five {50%) matches

No survey 1s capable of captunng all the appropnate sentments, but
our executives, who regularly wisit all Group companies, agree that
observable and valuable improvements in the Group cutture have
occured over recent years The Group will continue to monitor the
survey results to enable us to better support our people in bringing
these values and strengths to work so that they and we may denve
further benefit from them

Diversrity

Gender diversity

The Board of Directors responded to the consultation document that
the UK's Financial Reporiing Council issued in respect of ‘Gender
Diversity on Boards'

Qur expenence s that throughout Halma, women are under-
represented at manager and executive levels and we aim to increase
the proportion of women n senior roles and on the Board of Directors
by refreshing our policies and behaviours from both a ‘top down' and
‘bottom up’ approach To that end, we issued a Diversity Policy
dunng the pnor year which is available on our website We appreciate
the task ahead of us in sectors where relevant graduates are more
than 80% male, so part of our strategy will Involve ensunng that
Halma has a culture and working practices that make it more
attractive to women The diversity of the current year intake of
graduates into the HGDP 15 already demonstrating our success in
aftracting women to Halma

Racial and geographical diversity

Our efforts are directed towards ncreasing the proportion of
ndmduals with expenence In the business and geographic markets
in which we see our operations trending

Our strong preference is to develop policies and actions which
support our ams rather than establishing measurable targets We
believe the former evolves into part of the corporate culture more
readily than simply setting a target
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DIVERSITY POLICY

Halma beteves that the diversity of our staff is a significant
contnbutor to our success

* Diversity in our organisation attracts talented people to join the
Group and to develop 1o thewr full potential

* Dversity within our leadership improves decision making
processes and effectve teamwork

* Diversity encourages fresh thinking and challenges the status
quo and boosts Innovation

Our policy’s objectives are

1 To buld a culture that encourages talented people of all
backgrounds, belefs or any form of personal identity to want to
work for Halma

2 To use recrutment, traning, development, promotien and
compensation to Increase diversity N our organisation

3 To ensure that our procedures, systems and behaviours are not
discnmnatory

Each year our Board of Directors reviews these policies and our
implementation to ensure thal they create and maintain a diverse
and inclusive organisation

Disabled employees

Apphications for employment by disabled people are atways fully
considered, beanng n mind the apttudes of the applicant concemed
In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effortis
made o ensure that ther employment with the Group continues and
that appropnate traning 1s arranged |t 1s the policy of the Group that
the trairing, career development and promotion of disabled people
should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees

Employee consultation

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of ts
employees and has continued to keep them informed on matters
affecting them as employees and on the vanous factors affectng the
performance of the Group This 1s achieved through formal and
informal meetings, the Group intranet and the annual Financial
statements

Employee representatives are censulted routinely on a wade range of
matters affecting their current and future interests An employee share
ptan has been running successfully since 1880 1t 1s opento all UK
employees and aligns the nterests of all UK employees to those of
shareholders

People development
People development i1s a key part of our organic growth strategy

We run a number of pecple development programmes The Halma
Executive Development Programme (HEDP), whichis based on our
recogniton of the fundamental part our people play In the success of
the Group, continued to strengthen in recent years HEDP 1s an
integrated development plan for our senior people = Including the
next generation of Managing Directors and Dmsional Chief
Executives Our ochiective 1s to prowde these indmduals with the tools
and training they need to achieve more m ther existng role and
potentially to advance through the crganisation f therr achievermnents
ment it




Traning 2013 2012 2011

Cumulative number of
candidates that have
completed HEDP 221 194 166

Cumulative number of
candidates that have
completed HMDP am 392 319

Cumulatve number of
candidates that have
completed HCAT 51 36 19

HEDP s asmed at employees already senvang on subsidiary boards
but we also encourage applications from semor functional managers
who can demonstrate they already have equivalent responsibiiites
and will benefit from the programme

There are approxmately 272 such eligible employees in total

The programme has been developed from a proven course structurs
and is spectfically and continuously talored to suit Halma's needs,
aligning the content to the Group's four core values of Achievement,
Innovation, Empowenment and Customer Satisfaction It focuses
strongly on strategic and leadership capabilities and developing
personal atinbutes - commitment, determination and resilence
There 13 an emphasis on performance management and team
development It mcludes skill based elements such as sales and
marketing management, project leadership, corporate govemance,
finance and innovaton, but all are presented in a strategic context

Sixteen programmes have been successfully completed

Once a significant proportion of executives completed HEDP, a follow
up programme, HEDP+, was introduced to prowde updated traning
and to renforce the onginal course contents, and four such courses
were held in the year

Complementing the HEDP 1 a programme for subsidiary managers
and supervisors — the Halma Management Development Programme
(HMDP) Dunng the year, four HMDP and two HMDP+ programmes
were completed Programmes were held in the USA, Europe and
Asia

In 2011, we introduced a new programme, Halma Certfficate of
Appled Technology (HCAT), targeted at our technical engineers to
equip therm with a broader understanding of Halma’s technology,
improve their productivity and prowide spectfic skills traning in areas
such as project management Three such programmes, with 51
participants, have been completed with great success

The Halma Graduate Development Programme (HGDF} was
ntroduced dunng 2011/12 and the first participants started working
with us in Summer 2012 HGDP s targeted at engineenng, science
and technical graduates with the potential to become future leaders
of our companies, or next generation specialists dmang our
technology

The programme lasts 18 to 24 months and 1s based on placements In

our vanous operating companies Through project work participants
quickly assume responsibility and leam n detail how businesses
operate We support participants through residdental training modules
0 help develop communication and teamwork skills alongside a
mentonng programme for personal development
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Responsible investment

Investing in Halma shares meets the ¢ntena of many professional and
private Investors who base ther decisions on emmaronmental, ethical
and social considerations The Group s a world leader in several key
environmental technologies and has a reputation for honesty and
integnty In its relationships with employees, customers, busmess
partners and shareholders

Social conditions can be mproved for all through the creation of
wealth Halma creates wealth responsibly allowing our employess,
custormers, business partners and shareholders to determine where
this wealth Is best distnbuted

Halma's policies reflect the core requirements of the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights and the ILO Declaration on
Fundamental Pnnciples and Rights at Work We do not tolerate
practices which contravene these international standards Regulatory
demands upon us vary considerably around the world, so Halma
establishes the core structure to ensure that Group companies fully
comply with legisiative and regulatory requirements while permitting
them to talor ther approach to therr particular needs

Ethics

The Group culture 1s one of openness, ntegnty and accountability
Halma requires its employees to act faty in therr dealings with feflow
employees, customers, suppliers and business partners Halma
introduced a new Code of Conduct dunng 2011/12 which applies to
all Group employees and our extemal business relationships We
require suppliers to be of high quality and to operate to accepted
intemational standards Halma operates a confidenhal whistieblowing
policy with an extemal call centre, which enables all Group employees
to raise any concerns they may have

Halma has a zero-tolerance policy on bnbery and corruption which
extends to all business dealings and transactions n which we are
mvolved This ncludes a prohibiion on making polittcal donations,
offenng or recenving inappropnate gifts or making undue payments to
influence the outcome of business dealings Cur robust policy and
gudance in this area, which was updated dunng the pror year in ine
with best practice, are routinely revewed

Cautonary note: This Busmess Review has been prepared solely 10 assist shareholders
10 assess the Board's strategies and thewr potental to succesd It should not be relied on
by any other party for other purposes Forward-looking staterments have been made by
the Directors n good fath using Information avaiable up untd the date that they
approved the Report. Forward lootang statements should be regarded with caution
because of the mherent uncertantes n economic trends and business nsks

Halma pic Annual Report and Accounts 2013 59




Geoff Unwin

Non-executive Chairman of
Halma

Location UK

Geoff was appointed non-executive
Charman of Halma in 2003, having
been appointed to the Board in 2002
He s Chairman of Xchanging plc and
OpenCloud Lid Geoff s alsoa
member of the Adwvisory Board of
Palamen Caprtal Fartners and chairs
one of ther investments, RD Card
Holdings Ltd Previously he was
Chairman of Taptu Limrted from 2007
to 2012, a non-voting Board Director
of Capgemin Group, Chairman of
Liberata plc from 2003 to 2011,
Allance Medical Group until
December 2010, United Business
Media plc from 2002 to 2007 and
Chief Executive of Cap Gemini Emist
& Young until 2002

Steve Marshall

Non-executive Director of Halma
Location UK

Steve was appointed a non-executive
Director of Halma in July 2010 He s
non-executive Chasrman of Balfour
Beatty plc, Wincanton plc and Biffa
Group Holdings Limtedt Heis a
former charman of Delta plc, Queens’
Moat Houses pic and Torex Retail plc
as well as a former non-executive
drrector at Southerm Water Services
Lmited He was Group Chief
Executve of Raittrack Group plc

and prior to that Thom plc, having
also served as Finance Director at
each company His earlier career
included a wide range of corporate
and operational roles at Grand
Metropoltan pic, Burton Group, Black
& Decker and BOC Group Heisa
fellow of the Chartered Instdute of
Management Accountants and a
member of its Govarning Council
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Andrew Willams

Chief Executive

Location UK

Andrew was appointed Chief
Executve of Halma plc in February
2005 He was promoted to Director of
the Halma ple Board in 2004 Andrew
became a member of the Halma
Executive Board in 2002 as Drasional
Chiet Executive after joning Halma in
1894 as Manufactunng Director of
Reten Acoustcs {now HWM-Water,),
where he became Managing Director
In 1997 Andrew 15 a Chartered
Engineer and a preduction
engineenng graduate of Birmingham
University He attended the Advanced
Management Program at Wharton
Business School, University of
Pennsytvania in 2004

Stephen Pettit

Semor Independent Director of
Halma

Location UK

Stephen 1s the Senior Independent
Drector He was appointed a
non-executve Director of Halma n
September 2003 Previously Stephen
was a non-executive director of BT
Group plc - Equality of Access Board,
a non-executive director of National
Gnd ple, non-executive Charman of
ROK plc, an executive drector with
Cabte & Wireless PLC and a dmsional
chief executve with BP PLC Stephen
has an MSc from London School of
Economics and an MBA from
INSEAD and 15 an economics and
poliics graduate of Cardiff University
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Kevin Thompson

Finance Director

Location UK

Kevin was appointed to the Halma plc
Board in 1998 He became Group
Finance Director in 1997 after joining
the Halma Executive Board as
Finance Dwector in 1895 Kewn joned
Halma as Group Financial Controller
n 1987 Kewvin qualfied as a Chartered
Accountant with Pnce Waterhouse
and I1s an economics and accounting
graduate of Bristol University He
atiended the Advanced Management
Program at Harvard Business School
n 2007

Paul Walker

Non-executive Director and
Chairman Designate of Halma
Location UK

Paul was appainted non-executve
Director and Chairman Designate

of Halma in Apnl 2013 He will be
apponted Charman following the
proposed retrement of Geoff Linwin,
Halma's current Chawrnan, after the
Halma Annual General Meeting on
25 July 2013 Paul iIs non-executve
Chairman of Periorm Group pic,

a non-execubive director of Expenan
plc and a non-executve director of
WANdisco ple He was CEQ

at The Sage Group plc from 1994

to 2010 and has previously served
on the boards of Diageo plc and
MyTravel Group plc Paul qualified

as a Chartered Accountant with Emst
& Young, having graduated from York
University with an economics degree

Neil Quinn

Chief Executive, Industrial Safety
Dwvision

Location UK

Nerl was appointed to the Halma plc
Board in 1998 and 1s Chief Executive
of the Incdustnal Safety Dmsion He
jomed the Halma Executive Board In
1995 as Dvisional Chief Executive He
became Managing Director of Apollo
Fire Detectors in 1992, after joining as
Sales Director in 1987 Nelhas a
matenal sciences degree from
Sheffield University

Carol Chesney

Company Secretary

Location UK

Carol was appointed Compary
Secretary of Hama plc in 1998

She joined Halma in 1995 as Group
Finance Manager having spent three
years with English China Clays plc
Carol 1s a non-executive director of
Renishaw plc She qualfied asa
Chartered Accountant with Arthur
Andersen and 15 a mathematcs
graduate of Randolph-Macon
Woman's College, Virgima




Adam Meyers

Chief Executive, Health Optics
Dvision

Location USA

Adam joined the Halma pic Board in
Aprll 2008 and s Chief Executive of
the Health Optics Dmsion He
becarne a member of the Halma
Executive Board in 2003 as Dmsionat
Chief Executive, having joined Halma
In 1996 as President of Bio-Chem
Valve Adam gained his MBA from
Harvard Business School and 1s a
systems engineenng graduate of the
University of Pennsylvania

Jane Alkkman

Non-executive Director of Halma
Location UK

Jane was appointed a non-executive
Director of Hatma in August 2007 She
1s Chwef Operating Officer and Chief
Financial Officer of Phoenx IT Group
plc Prevously Jane was Finance
Director of Infinis Limited, Wilson
Bowden Plc and Pressac plc She
spent three years as an internal audn
rnanager with GEC Alsthom and five
years i1 East Asia with Asia Pulp and
Paper Co Limited Jane qualified as a
Chartered Accountant with Emst &
Young and has a degrea in cwvil
engneenng from Brmingham
Unnersity

Make-up of our Board (as at 30 March 2013)

o1
2-3
45
610
=10

Gender
Male
Fernale
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Daniela Barone Soares

Non-executive Director of Halma
Location UK

Damela was appointed a
non-axecutive Director of Halma

n November 2011 She s Chief
Executve of Impetus — The Private
Equity Foundation She s on the
adwvisory board and a trustee of a
number of non-sted, social sector
organsations in the UK and Brazil
Danigla’s past business roles have
included Head of insttutional Support
at Save the Children, Assistant Vice
President of Private Equity and
Varture Capital at BancBoston
Capttal, Inc and roles at Goldman,
Sachs & Co (New York) and Citibank,
NA (Braz) Danela has an MBA
from Harvard Business School

and a BSc in economics from
Unversidade Estadual de Campinas
UNICAMP), Brazil

Norman Blackwell

Non-executive Director of Halma
Location UK

Normman was appointed a
non-exacutive Director of Halma

N Juty 2010 He is non-executive
Charman of Interserve Pic, a
non-exacutive drrector of Lioyds
Banking Group Plc and a non-
executve director of Clcom, the
communications regulator His past
business roles have included Semor
Independent Birector at both
Standard Life Pk: and SEGROC ple,
Director of Group Development at
NatWest Group and Partner at
McKinsay & Company He was
Charman of the independent Cantre
for Policy Studies from 2000 to 2009
where he remains a board member
Normman was created a Life Peer in
1997 and served as Head of the
Prme Minister's Policy Unit from
1995 to 1997

Committee membership

Board composition

10%  Chaman
20%  Executve Drrector
20%  Non-executve Dwector

20%  Company Secretary

Nationality
80% UK
0% USA
Brazil

Audt  Nom' Rem?

Geoff Unwin . .
0% Andrew Willams .
40% Kevin Thompson
0% Stephen Pettt . - .
Nei Quinn
Jane Alkman .
Adam Meyers
Normman Blackwell . . .
80%  Stewe Marshall . . .
10%  Danela Barons Scares .
10%  Paul Walker® . .
* Chasman = Member
* Nomination

2 Remuneration
2 Appointed in Apnl 2013
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Charles Dubois

Philippe Felten

Chief Executive, Fluid Technology Chief Executive, Securtty and

Dwvision

Location USA

Charles was appomted to the
Executve Board in Apnl 2008 and 1s
Chisf Executve of the Fluid
Technology Dvision He joined the
Group In 1999 as Vice President of
Perma Pure LLC and was previousty
President of Diba industnes He
eamed his MBA from the FW Olin
School of Busingss at Babson
College and holds a Bachelor's
dagree In physics from the College of
the Holy Cross Charles attended the
Advanced Management Program at
Harvard Business School in 2013

Allan Stamper

Chief Executive, Water Division
Location UK

Allan was appointed to the Executive
Board in October 2007 and 1s
DCwsional Chief Executve of the Water
Dmsion He joined Halma in 2002 as
Managing Director of Crowcon
Detection Instruments  Allan has an
MBA, from Cranfield and s an
engneenng graduate of bath
Loughborough Unversity (BSc) and
Impenal College (MSc)
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Door Sensars Diwviston

Location Belgum

Phiippe was appointed to the
Executive Board in Apnl 2012 and s
Chief Executive of the Securty and
Door Sensors Division He 15 Chief
Executve of BEA Group where he
foned 1n 1998 as Sales Director for
Europe Philippe completed the
Programme for Executive
Development at IMD Lausanne, holds
a Bachelor degree in marketing and
management ICHEC - Brussels) and
15 an Electro-Mechanical Engineer
{ECAM - Brussels)

Nigel Trodd

Chief Executive, Elevator Safety
and Fire Division

Location Singapore

Nigel joined the Executve Board in
July 2003 and 1s Chief Executive of

the Elevators and Fire Dmsion He had

oined Halmain July 2003 as Chief
Executve of the Process Safety
Draston: Niged s a member of the
Chartered Instiute of Marketing and a
business studies graduate of Thames
Valley Unmversity He relocated to
Singapore in Apnl 2012
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Mark Lavelle

Chief Executive -

Corporate Development
Location UK

Mark joined the Executive Board as a
Dwvisional Chief Executive in 2007
after having joined Halma as
Managing Director of Keeler
Instruments i November 2001 Mark
has an MBA from INSEAD and a
chemistry degree from Cambnidge
Universtty

Martin Zhang

Director - Halma China

Location China

Martin was appointed as Adwser to
the Halma Executive Board in
February 2008 He joined the Group
inJung 2006 as Drector of Halma
China and successfully established
Halma China offices n Beyng and
Shangha Martin hoids an Executive
MBA from the Unwversity of Texas at
Arington (Tongy University Shanghai)
and a Bachelor's degree in chemical
engneenng from Chengdu University
of Science and Technology

Rob Randelman

Chief Executive, Photonics
Diwvision

Location USA

Rob became a member of the
Executive Board in Apnl 2011 and 1s
Chief Execuive of the Photonics
Drasion He joined the Group in 2006
as Vice President of Sales at Ocean
Optics, where he became President
In 2007 Rob ganed his PhD and MSE
in chemical engineenng from Lehigh
Unversity and is a chemistry and
physics graduate of Ursinus College

Executive Board
Andrew Willams

Kevin Thompson

Charles Dubois

Philtpe Felten
Mark Lavelle
Adam Meyers

Neil Qumnn

Rob Randelman

Allan Stamper

Niget Trodd

Martm Zhang
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present Halma's Corporate Governance report

on behalf of our Board The repoent deals with how the Board and
its committeas discharged therr govermance duties which | hope
provides you with a clear and meaningful explanation of how we
apply the principles of good govemnance enshnned in the UK
Comorate Govermance Code (the Code) There have been several
reviews and consuliahons on govermance matters in the past year
Although Halma will report in accordance to the revised September
2012 Code nits 2013414 Annual Report, the Board has considered
the revised provisions when prepanng this report

The Board 1s committed to maintaining very high standards of
corporate govemance and ensunng values and behaviours are
congsistent across the business We have sought to manage the
affarrs of the Comparty not by merely followang regmented rules,
but by promoting open and transparent discussion, constructve
challenge and support in the Board and across the Group |
continue o be pleased with the progress Halma has made We
continually seek to ensure best practice 1s mantained and that
govemance s integral to our strategy and decision-making
processes for the benefit of our shareholders

As lindicated in last year's Annual Report, we strengthened and
refreshed the composition of our Board with the appaintment of
Daniela Barone Soares In November 2011 | am now delighted to
welcome Paul Walker as our newest non-executve Director and
Charman Designate He will be appointed Chaimman upon my
retirement iImmediately following the Annual General Meeting (AGM}
on 25 July 2013 He 1s a member of the Nominabon and
Remuneraton Committees and he will succeed me as Chaimnan of
the Nomination Committee upon my retrement  Paul was part of
the onginal team at The Sage Group pic, a leading worldwide
provider of business software which has a global footpnnt, a
devolved management structure and an entrepreneunal culture

Paul also has wrde-ranging non-executrve director expenence Hes

a valuable addition to the Board and | am sure will be an excellent
leader and Chairman to our Board and team | am proud to have
served as Charrman over the past ten years and am honoured to
have worked wath a team of such high calibre

“The Board is committed to
maintaining very high standards
of corporate governance and
ensuring values and behaviours
are consistent across the
business.”

| have always mamtaned that a chamman's role Involves ensunng
that there 1s a sufficient cadre of ndmduals being nurtured
throughout the Group to enable effective succession planning
The promotien of several MDs to the Executive Board dunng my
tenure, demonstrates the importance the Group places on
developing in-house talent Reviews of management capabilties
and potental are performed on a routine basis and | am satisfied
that suffictlent resources exist within the Group, and that talent

continues to be developed through programmes such as the Halma
Executve Development Programme which itseff evolves to meet the

changing needs of the Group Whenever we identify a need for
improvement 1o management resources we take action to ensure
full strength 15 attained as soon as practicable

Lastly, | would like to encourage all shareholders to find the tme
to attend our AGM on 25 July 2013 [tis an excellent opportunity
to meet the Board, the Executive Board and a selection of the
Managing Directors from our operating companies

Geoff Unwin

Chairman
13 June 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANC

Compliance with the Code of best practice

As required by the Listing Rules of the Financial Sernces Authonty
this Report explains how the Company apples the panciples and
comphes with the provisions of the Finanaial Reporting Counail UK
Comorate Governance Code (the Code) published in June 2010
which appled to the Company throughout the year ended

30 March 2013

Throughout the year, the Company has fully complied with the
provisions as set out n secton 1 of the Code

The Board has determined its ideal composttion as a Charmnan,

five iIndependent non-executive Directors and four executive
Brrectors The Board adudged this composttion as an appropnate
structure for the Company prowiding valuable diect knowledge of
operations and effectve challenge surrounding the issues facing the
Group The Board will revert to its ideal compaosition following Geoff
Urwin's retirement after the 2013 AGM

Therefore, with the exception of Geoff Urwin, in accordance with
the Code each of the Directors, baing eligible, will offer themselves
for election or re-electon at the AGM

Board meeting attendance

[ 1]

The Board

The Board considered the independence of the Chairman, Chairman
Designate and each of the non-executive Directors and subjected
Stephen Pettit's term as a non-executve Director to particular
ngorous review Details are given on pages 67 and 72 The Board
continues to regard Stephen Pettit as ndependent and considers
the Chaiman, Chaiman Designate and all non-executive Directors
to be mdependent of management and free from business and other
relatonships which could interfere wath the exercise of independent
Judgrment now and i the future The Board believes that any
shareholdings of the Charman and non-executive Directors serve

to ahign ther interests with those of shareholders

Upon appointment and at reguiar intervals, all Directors are offered
appropnate traring Under the Company’s Articles, each Director
is subject to re-election at least once every three years however,
commencing In 2011, the Board has agreed that each Director shall
stand for annual re-election The Board confirms that all Directors
standing for election or re-election continue to be effective and
demonstrate commitment to ther roles

Detalls of Directors’ biographies appear on pages 60 and 61
and in the Nobce of Meeting

The Directors retain responsibility for the formulation of corporate
strategy, Investment decisions and treasury and nsk management
policies There 1s a formal schedute of matters reserved for the
Board’s decision and the Board meets at least six times each year
with further ad hoc meetings as required Dwrectors are issued an
agenda and comprehensive Board papers in the week preceding
each Board mesting Ali Directors have access to the adwice and
senvices of the Company Secretary as well as there being an
agreed procedure for obtaming independent professional adwice

Dunng the year attendance by Directors at Board and Committee meetings was as follows

Committees

Overall
attendance
Board attendance Board Audrt Remuneration Nomination? %
Total meetings 6 3 5 2
Geoff Unwin 6 - 5 1 100%
Andrew Willams 6 - - 1 100%
Kevin Thompson' 5 - - - 83%
Stephen Pettit 6 3 5 2 100%
Neill Quinn 6 - - - 100%
Jane Akman 6 3 - 1 100%
Adam Meyers 6 - - - 100%
Lord Blackwell 6 3 5 100%
Steve Marshall 6 3 5 2 100%
Darela Barone Soares 6 3 - 100%

' Kevin Thompson attended all meetings except the November 2012 meeting due to famiial medical crcumstances

* There was an ordinary June Nomination Committee meeting constituted by the usual members Geol Unwin Andrew Wiliams  Stephen Pettit and Steve Marshall The second
Normunation Committee meeting consisted of the reformutated Nomination Commuttee apponited for the Chaxrman succession search compromused of four non-executive

Dwrectors, led by Stephen Petit, the Sensor Independent Director
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Chairman’s responsibilities

Governance

* promotng high standards of corporate governance,
* leading, channg and managing the Board,

= ensunng all Board committees are property structured and
operate with appropnate terms of reference,

¢ to regularty consider the composition and succession planning
of the Board and its commiitees,

ensunng that the Board and its committees’ perfonmances
are evaluated on a regular basss, and

* ensunng adequate time 15 available for all agenda tems

Strategy
* leading the Board in developing the strategy of the business
and achievement of its objectives,

« promoting open and constructive debate in Board meetings,

* ensunng effectve implementation of Board decisions with the
support of the Chuef Executrve,

» ensunng the Board manages nsk effectively, and

= consutting where appropnate with the Semior Independent
Director on Board matters

People
¢ channg the Nominaton Committee,

= identifying and meeting the induction and development needs
of the Board and its commuttees,

+ developing a strong working relationship wath the Chuef
Executive,

* ensunng a strong working relatonship between executive and
non-executive Directors,

* setting clear expectations conceming the Company’s culture,
values and behawiours, and

* ensunng effective relationships are mamntained with all major
stakeholders in the business

Overview 02-09
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Chief Executive’s responsibilities

providing coherent leadership and management of the
Company with the Chaimman,

developing objectives, strategy and performance standards
to be agreed by the Board,

providing Input to the Board's agenda,

prowviding effective leadership of the Executive Board to acheve
the agreed strategies and objectves,

secunng an Executve Board of the nght calibre, with specific

responsibility for its compossition, and that its succession plan
1S reviewed annually with the Chairman and the non-executive
Dwrectors,

momtonng, reviewing and managing key nsks and strategies
with the Board,

ensunng that the assets of the Group are adequately
safeguarded and maintained,

bulding and mantaring the Company’s communications and
standing with sharehclders, financial instituttons and the public
and effectively communicating the Halma plc investment
proposiion to all stakeholders,

ensunng the Board 15 aware of the view of employees on issues
of relevance to Halma ple,

Imng and fostenng the Group values which promote ethical
practices, integnty and a positve work cimate, enabling the
Group to attract, retain and motrvate a diverse group of high
quality employees, and

leading by example in establishing a performance onentated,
customer focused and publicly responsible Group cufture
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Board constitution

Halma made further progress in refreshing the composition and
diversity of our Board with the appomntment of Daniela Barone Soares
in Novermmber 2011 and the recent appointment of Paul Walker as our
new non-executive Directer and Chairman Designate The Nominaton
Committee appainted for the Chasrman succession search compnsed
four non-executive Directors, led by the Senior Independent Director,
Stephen Pettit A global search firm, Kom Ferry Whitehead Mann,
which has no other connection to Halma was apponted A wide range
of hugh callbre candidates was considered for the role and each
Director had the opportunity to meset Paul Walker ahead of his
appointment The Board confimmed Paul Walker's independence upon
appaintment and was unanimous In its decision to appont Paul
Walker

Board induction

Newly appointed non-executive Directors follow an induction
programme which include scheduled tnps to a vanety of companies
n each of the four sectors All new Directors appointed to the Board
have a comprehensive induction programme tallored to therr
indmdual needs Paul Walker met with the Company Secretary to
review an mduction pack which included Halma's govemance and
nsk management structure, Board evaluations, Board and Commuttee
meetings minutes, strategy papers, recent analyst and broker reports
on Halma, and access to Halma's policies and procedural notes was
also provided As well as providing a schedute of mestings with

Board induction

Jane Aikman and Daniela Barone Soares, non-executive
Directors, extended ther understanding of the Group's actmties
when attending HITE in May 2013

Board activity throughout the year
February Apnl
¢ Budget (initial)

* Remuneration Committee proposals

« Results of Board effectveness survey
and meetings

* Budget

* Intenm Management Staterment
* Update on FTSE postion

+ Chawman and NED salanes

+ HITE and CEQ conference chiectives
= Pensions strategy update

= 2015 Board Calendar

executrves and company wvisits, Paul Walker also attended the rennial
Halma Innovation and Technology Exposiion (HITE) to gamn a better
understanding of the Halma group, our strategy, our operating
companies, ther management teams and their products

Board diversity

The Board reviewed the report of Lord Davies published in February
2011 on Boardroom Dversty and contnbuted to the FRC review

of Gender Diversity on Boards noting 1ts support for the benefits

of greater diversity, which s not Just gender specific, but relates also
to other factors such as market and interaticnal expenence and
dersity of thought It was agreed by the Board that a manufactunng
and technology company such as Halma would have to adopt
policies to attract a greater number of fermales INto management
roles The Board hopes to support these ams through the adoption
and mplementaton of Halma’s Diversity Policy {detaled on page 58)
rather than set quctas Halma aims to improve the representation of
women in semior roles and on the Board of Directors by refreshing our
polcies and reviewing implementation to ensure that they create and
mantan a diverse and inclusive culiure

As at year end, the Board has a total of ten Directors The skill set

of the non-executive Directors includes financial, economics,
banking, engineenng, technology, IT, communications and consumer
expertise They include exght Bntish, one Amencan and one Brazhan
natonals 20% of the Board are women

Halma has the ambrion to increase the number of executives based
outaide Europe and the USA to better reflect the proportion of our
revenue generated outside those markets

Board activity throughout the year 2012/13

Durng the year the Board recenved trammg and brefing updates on our
sectors, market assessments and changes, acquisttion opportuniies
and geographical pnonties, succession plannng, changes n comporate
governance, nsk management and complance, audits, bnbery

and corruption, health and safety, ervironmental matters, city and
shareholders matters, doing business in Russia, China profitabxdity
and other relevant legislative and accounting changes

The Directors have a programmed schedule of meetings and

visits with the Executive Board, Group companies and Halma's
development programmes to eénsure that they are able to engage
with management and emplcyees at all levels The Directors also
have the opportunity to attend the biennial HITE and the associated
conferences

June

¢ Preliminary Results

« Bvaluation of pnor year objectves

« Set annual olyectves for Group/Board

= Dmdend proposal/planning

* Pension fund accounts

¢ Assessment of upper quartile perfomance
* Special Guarantees guidelines update

« Matters Reserved for the Board




Board performance and evaluation

The Board considers the evaluation of its performance and that of the
Audit, Nomination and Rernuneration Committees annually, with each
Committee also evaluating its own performance Last vear, the Board
engaged an external faciiitator, Dr Tracy Long of Boardroom Review,
for full Board and Commities evaluations This year, the Company
Secretary tacitated an intemnal evaluation of ns performance and that
of the Audit, Nommnmation and Remuneration Committees

The key conclusions of the 2012/13 evaluation were first discussed
with the Charman and subsequently presented to the full Board
The evaluation results were discussed by the Board at the February
2013 Board meeting

The 2013 internal review supported the 2012 extemal evaluation
concluston that the Board was effective, methodical and thorough
in the way it approaches s work There continues to be an open
and transparent debate and an even contnbution from all members
of the Board and an actve and collaborative approach to
performance management reflected in the constructive debates in
the Remuneration Committee The Board spent a significant amount
of ime constdenng nsks and controls and was assisted by strong
financial nformation, effective intemal and external audit processes
and a strong Audit Committee Overall, the process confirmed the
nght blend of behaviours and skills around the Halma Board table
The Board freely and cpenly expresses any concems which results
In more considered outcomes emphasising collective responsibility,
fransparency, clanty and integnty

The most significant issue ansing from the 2013 review sumounded
the importance of Chamman and Senior Independent Director
succession planning and the preservation of the Group's positive
culture dunng such a transtion in these roles In addition, the Board
recognises the importance of the non-executive Directors investing
sufficient tme to enable them to operate with a sound knowledge of
both the Company and to establish relatonships with the executive
Directors

To address the above ponts, the appomntment of Paul Walker and the
extension of Stephen Pettit's appointment serve to ensure contmuity
and that an appropnate transition process Is undergone with the am

of preserving the Group's culture while permitting healthy reflecton on

our current structure and processes Stephen Pettit will reman on the
Board until such tme as his expenence of Halma's culture 1s
embodied in his colleagues The Board and Executive Board have
also infroduced more opporturities for interaction around topics of
strategic and operatonal mportance
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As in prior years, the Beard also met in February 2013 before the
scheduled Board meeting There was a mesting of the Chairman and
non-executive Directors with the Chief Executive  This was followed
by a meeting of the Charman and non-executive Directors only The
Senor Independent Director also led a meeting with the non-
executve Directors without the Chairman present The Executives
were also given the opportunity to meet with the Charman and/or
the Servor Independent Director separatety The outcome of these
meetings was then fed back to mdmduals by the Charman, Senior
Independent Director or Chief Executive, as appropnate

Performance evaluation cycle

Year 1

External evaluation facilitation

Year 2

Internal review

Year3

Internal review

July October November
* AGM * Strategy/3-year plan = Half-yearty results
* AGM trading update/IMS » Relatve attractions of different sectors * PSP vesting update
* Emaronmental policy annual approval * Candidates for acquisition/disposal * Consideration of Board Evaluation
and target setting process - Intemal/External review
* Review progress towards annuat
* PSP awards cbjectives
= SIP award consideration » External sum of the parts valuation
» Debt/capital structure considerations
* Update on FTSE position
* Succession planning update/
management bench
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Board governance structure

Board

Key committees
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee

Committees of the Board

Our Committees are a valuable part of the Company's corporate
governance structure The workload of the Cormmuttees ncludes the
table of scheduled meetings as well as ad hoc meetings and
communications frequenty requinng considerable amounts of time

Halma has sex committees and sub-committees of the Board the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committeg, the Share Plans Committee, the Bank Guarantees and
Facities Committee and the Acquistions and Disposals Committee
Each of these Committees has terms of reference which have been
recently reviewed and approved by the Board, copes of which are
avalable on the website or on reguest from the Company Secretary

Minutes of Committee meetings are made available to all Directors
and the Charmen of each of the three key Board Committees, the
Audit, Nominationt and Remuneration Committees, provide regular
updates to the Board

A chart setting out the Company’s Board and Committees’ structure
15 given above with the Board and Committee memberships and
Directors’ biographical details shown separately on pages 60 and 61
The responsibilities of the key Board Committeas and the key issues
and actmtres dunng 2012/13 are set out In the following Committee
reports on pages 70 to 82

investor relations

The Board recogruses the importance of effective cormmunication
with our shareholders In regular meetings with shareholders and
analysts the Chief Executive and Finance Director communicate
the Group's strategy and results, disclosing such nformation as 1s
permitted within the guidelines of the bisting Rules Such meetings
ensure that nstitutional shareholders representing over 50% of the
Company’s issued share capital meet or hold discussions with the
Company on a regular basis Major shareholders are also offered
the opportunity to meet the Chainman and/or Senior Independent
Director Notes from all investor meetings are circulated to the
Chairman wath investor feedback results from roadshows circulated
1o the whole Board

All shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general

meeting where they can gan a better understanding of the Comgpany
Shareholders are able to pose questions to the Beard on the matters
put to the meeting, Including the Annual Report and the management

of the Compary Major sharsholders are also mwvited to bnefings

following the half-year and annual resutts In February 2013, the Chief

Executive, Finance Director and a Dmsional Chief Executive held a
Capital Markets Day at which an update on the Group's strategy and
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Other committees

Share Plans Bank Guarantees Acquisitions
Committee and Facilities and Disposals
Committee Committee

the new reporting sectors was detaled and the Group’s mergers and
acquisitions performance was reviewed In Apnl 2013, approximately
40 of Halma's mayor shareholders were also invited tc HITE so they
could better understand Halma's culture, strategy and our operating
companies’ products and markets The occasion also afforded both
mernbers of the Board and major shareholders the opportunity o
develop a better mutual understanding of one another’s views The
content of presentabons to shareholders and analysts at results
announcements and all announcements are avallable on the Group
website www halma com

The Group websrite also contains electronic versions of the latest
Annual Report and Accounts, Half-Year Reports, biographical
information on Directors and the Executive Board, share pnce
information, and full subsidiary company contact details as well as
links to therr own websites The website also features the facility to
request e-mai alerts relating to announcements made by the Group
and there i1s a feedback form to invite suggestions for mprovements
to the website and our investor relatons actvities

Shareholders can keep up to date with the latest Halma financial
news, on the move, wath our Investor Relations IPad app Thisis
avallable as a free download from the Apple iTunes store, as detaled
below The app 1s updated at the same tme as our website and
delivers news releases, regulatory announcements, presentations,
reports, webcasts, videos, financial documents and the share pnce

To help nvestors understand the scope of our business we have
produced a new ‘Introducton to Halma' animated wideo This can be
viewed from the home page of our website (www halma com) and
from our IPad inwvestor app

Type this Ink Into your browser to go to the Halma Investor Relations
app download page on iTunes

http figoo gl/Awaly
or scan this QR code

The Financial calendar 1s set out on page 146




Shareholders {number) at 16 May 2013

1-5,000 - 76.6%
5,001-25,000 - 14.5%
25,001-100,000 - 4.5%
100,001-750,000-3.1%
750,001 and over — 1.3%

Analysis of shares (number) at 16 May 2013

Results of our 2012 AGM
1 Report and Accounts
2  Dmdend
3  Remuneraton Report
4-13 Directors
14 Reappontrment of Auditors
13 Auditors’ rermuneration
16 Authority to aliot shares
17  Disapphcation of
pre-emphion nghts
18 Authonty to purchase
own shares
18 Notce of general meetings

1-5000-1.8%
5,001-25,000 - 24%
25,001-100,000 - 3.6%
100,001-750,000 - 15.0%
750,001 and over - T72%
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Internal control

The Board has overal responsibitty to the shareholders for the
Group's system of intemal control and nsk management, and the
review of the system’'s effectiveness has been delegated to the Audit
Committee Whilst not prowiding absolute assurance aganst matenal
misstatements or loss, this system s designed to identify and
manage those nsks that could adversely mpact the achieverment of
the Group's obiectves  The Group's nsk management structure and
process is detaled on pages 51 and 52 The Group's prncipal nsks
and uncertanties are detalled on pages 53 to 55

The Board confinms that there s an ongoing process for dentifying,
evaluating and managing the significant nsks faced by the Group,
which has been in place for the year under review and up to the date
of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts This process has
been reviewad by the Board and the Board 1s satisfied that the Group
accords with the Turnbull gudance The Board made several
enhancements in the conduct of the process dunng the year and will
continue to review the system routinely to ensure that the system of
internal control and nsk management remains fit for purpose

The Group's external auditors, Delortte LLP, have audrted the financial
statements and have reviewed the Intemal financial control systems to
the extent they consider necessary to support therr audit report

Going concern

The Group’s business activities, together wath the man trends and
factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
pasition, and the financial posttion of the Group, its cash flows,
kquidity position and borrowang faciities, are set out in the Business
Review In addition, note 26 to the financial staternents mcludes the
Group’'s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital,
its financial nsk management objectives, details of s financial
instruments and hedging actvties, and its exposures to currency and
liquidity nsks

The Group has considerable financial resources (including a £260m
five-year revotving credit facility, of which £105m was undrawn at
30 March 2013} together with contracts with a diverse range of
customers and supphers across different geographic areas and
Industnes No one customer accounts for more than 2% of Group
tumover The Directors have considered the Group's potential
exposure to the Eurazone cnsis and have concluded that this 1s
minimal due to the fact that less than 5% of sales anse n areas
expenencing macro-economic uncertanty and the Group does not
maintan significant bankang or other business relatonships In these
arsas As aconsequence, the Drrectors believe that the Group 1s well
placed to manage its business nsks successfully

After conducting a formal review of the Group's financial resources,
the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources to contnue n operational
existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue
lo adopt the going concem basss In prepanng the Annual Report
and Accounts
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Audit Committee Report

70

Audit Committee members

* Jane Atkman {Charrman)
* Stephen Pettrit

« Norman Blackwell

* Steve Marshall

* Danela Barone Soares

Allocation of time %

FAnancd statements
and reports 25%

Risk management 22%

Responsibilities

The Audit Committee 1s appointed by the Board from the non-
executve Directors of the Group The Audit Committee’s termns of
reference nclude all matters indicated by Disclosure and Transparency
Rule 71 and the Code The terms of reference are considered annually
by the Audit Committee and are then referred to the Board for approval
The full terms of reference were updated in Apnl 2013 I line with the
revised recommendations of the September 2012 Code and can be
found on the Company’s websrite or can be obtaned from the
Company Secretary

The pnmary responsaibihes of the Audit Committee are to

+ monitor the ntegnty of the financial statements of the Group and any
formal announcements relating to the Group's financial performance
and review significant financial reporting judgments contained therein,

* have oversight of nsk management, ncluding the review of the
Group's financial, operatonal and compliance intemnal controls,
as well as whistieblowng and fraud prevention procedures,

« monitor and review the effectiveness of the Group’s Intemal Audit
function,

* make recommendations to the Board, for a resolution to be put

to the shareholders for therr approval at the general mesting,
on the appontment of the extemnal auditors and the approval of the
remuneraton and tenms of engagerment of the external auditors,

Intemal audt 14% = review and monitor the external auditors’ ndependence and

External audt 31%
Other 8%

Audit Commuttee activities

Financial statements and reports

= reviewed the 30 March 2013 Annual
Report and Accounts, the 29 September
2012 Half Year report and the IMSs
1ssued in July 2012 and February 2013
As part of these reviews the Commuttee
recenved a report from the extermnal
auditors on ther audit of the Annual
Report and Accounts,

* reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s

intemal controls and disclosures made in

the Annual Report and financial

statements,

considered acquistion valuation

methodology;

review of pension fund accounts, and

review Of taxation provisions
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objectvity and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking into
consideration the penodic rotation of audit personnel and relevant UK

professional and regulatory requirerments, and

¢+ develop and mplement a policy on the engagement of the extemal
auditors 1o supply non-audst services, taking nto account relevant
gudance regarding the promsion of non-audit services by the extemal

aud firm

Key 1ssues and actinties

The Committee not only reviews the financial reporting of the Compary,
but spends a significant amount of its tme reviewing the effectveness
of the Group's ntemal control process Combined with the Commttee’s

review of the ntemal and extenal audit funchions, it 1s able to obtan
sufficient information to discharge its responsibiites

More specifically, dunng the year the Committee reviewed its own
effectiveness and looked at its actvites as detalled in the table below

Risk management

* considered the output from the
Group-wide nsk review process to
identify, evaluate and rmitigate nsks,
the Group's changing nsk profie and
future nsk reports,

+ devoled addiional tme to adequately
address nsk management in the Group,
and

* export controls

Internal audit

* evaluated the effectiveness and the
scope of work to be underiaken by
the Intermal Audit function,

= reviewed management responses to
audit reports 1ssued dunng the year;

« reviewed the Group's whistieblowing

policy which allows Intemal Audit to
recerve, In confidence, complants on
accounting, nskIssues, intemal controls,
audiing issues and related matters, and
* reviewed the resourcing of Internal Audit

External auditors and non-audit

work

» reviewed, considered and agreed the
scope and methodology of the audit
work to be undertaken by the external
audrtors,

¢ evaluated the mdependence and
objectvity of the extemal auditors, and

» agreed the terms of engagement and
fees to be paid to the external auditors for
therr audit of the 30 March 2013 financial
statements




Governance

The Audit Committee was in place throughout the financial year with
Jane Alkman as the Charr All five members are independent
non-executive Directors in accordance with prowision G 31 of the
Code The Chief Executive, Finance Director and representatves from
the external Auditors attend Commuttee meetings by invitation in order
1o provide appropnate adwce The Committee meets at least three
tirmes per year and routinely meets the Auditors without the
nvotvernent of the executive Directors The Commuttee meets with
the Internal Auditor on a regular basis throughout the year The
Finance Director works closely with the Chairman of the Audit
Committee to ensure open communicaton between them The
Board has designated Jane Aikman as the member of the Audit
Committee with recent and relevant financial expenence Sheisa
chartered accountant, 1s a finance director and has listed company
expenence

Traming

The Audit Committee has extended all of its meetings by an hour to
incorporate addibonal time for nsk-related topics and franing on
relevant topics, for example valuation of acquisitions and disposals,
financial reporting (including addmonal coverage of audit procedures,
scope and methodology), fraud, internal contral and govemance

Auditor mdependence

Delaitte LLP has been the external Auditor of the Group since 2003
and an annual revew of the ndependence of Delostte LLP s
undertaken each year At the year-end the Auditors formally confirmed
therr ndependence and that objectmty has been mantaned The
Committee conciuded that the relevant mdependence continues to be
met In addibon, the Auditors are required to rolate the audit partner
responsible for the Group audit every five years  Following a ngorous
evaluation of the audit service and a change 1n audit partner in 2010/11,
the Audt Committes agreed that a full tender was not required for the
2011/12 audit The Committee reconsidered its review dunng 2012/13
and concluded that a full tender 15 not curently required The
Comimitiee has noted the revisions to the UK Corporate Governance
Code introduced by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) in
September 2012 and effective for Halma's 2013/14 financial year and in
parbcutar the recormmendation to put the extenal audit out to tender at
least every 10 years The Committee noted the proposed transiional
amangements with respect to audit tendening to fit the five yearly cycle
of partner rotation Consequently the Committee will consider its
externd tendenng amangements in anticpation of the next audit partner
rotation, and provide an update in the 2013/14 Annual Report The
Committee will continue to focus on the effectveness, cbiectmty and
independence of the Auditor inits reviews

Policy of auditor independence and services

Prohibited non-audit services

= appraisal or valuation services,

+ financial Information systems design
and implementation,

* bookkeeping serices,

* management funchons,

* execuiive recruiting and resource
sences,

* broker-dealer serices, and

* legal services

<£100,000

from a third party,

compliance

+ audits of businesses acquired or o be
sold and due dilgence services,

* opinions/audit reports on wiformation
provided by the company upon request

* achvice on accounting policies,
+ elactronic data processing audits, and
* tax services including local tax
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The Group’s 'Policy on Auditor Independence arxd Services
provded by the External Auditor’ sets out restnchons on the
categones of non-audit services which the extemal Auditors are
allowed to provide to the Group A summary of which 1s provded In
the table below This policy is regularty reviewed and states that the
Group will only use the appointed extemal auditor for non-audit
services In cases where these services do not conflict wath the
auditor's independence

The Committee confirms that Deloitte LLP remains best placed

to actvise the Group on matters related to tax complance and the
structure of the Group The Committee accepts that certan work
of a non-audit nature 1s best undertaken by the extermal Audttors,
and appointments are made taking nto account factors including
expertise and fees The Committee regularty reviews the amount
and nature of the non-audit work the external Avditors perform
The Audt Committee is notified of all non-audit services with
extemnal auditors' fees between £50,000 and £100,000 The pohkcy
also sets a fee level per project of £100,000 above which non-audit
services are subject {0 a tendenng process The above fee levels
for non-audit services are also subject to an annual cap equal to
the audit fee At each meeting, the Audit Commuttee also recenes a
summary of all fees, audit and non-audt, payable to the external
Auditor

The audit fees payable to Deloitte LLP dunng 2012/13 were
£740,000 (2012 £660,000) and non-audit service fees were
£307,000 (2012 £210,000) The pnncipal non-audit service Is
tax-acvisory related A summary of fees pad to the external
auditors 1s set out in note 6 to the Accounts on page 103

In accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK &
Ireland) 260 and Ethical Standard 1 1ssued by the Accounting
Practices Board, and as a matter of best practice, the external
Audrtors have confimed ther ndependence as Auditors of the
Company, in a letter addressed to the Directors

Accordingly, the Committee unanimously recommended to the
Board that a resolution for the reappointment of Deloitte LLP as the
Company’s iIndependent Audrtors be proposed to shareholders at
the AGM in July 2013 and the Board has accepted and endorsed
this recommendation

On behalf of the Audit Committee

Jane Aikman

Chairman
13 June 2013

Audit-related services not subject Permitted non-audit services,
to separate tender if fees

subject to approval

¢ due dhgence senaces relating to
acquisiions with fees In excess of
£100,000,

* public reporting on nvestment circulars,

» Yquidahon services In respect of
redundant subsidianes or associate
companies, and

* tax-adwvisory fees in excess of £100,000
where the fim's exising knowledge of
the Group structure is preferred
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT
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Nomination Committee Report

Nomination Committee members

» Geoff Unwin {Chaiman)

* Andrew Willams

* Stephen Petiit

+ Steve Marshall

* Normmnan Blackwell (appointed 24 July 2012)
* Paul Walker {appointed 12 Apnl 2013}

Allocation of time %

Succession planning 91%
Compostion of Board 5%
{Re)-election of Dectors 4%

Responsibilities

The Nomination Committee 1S appointed by the Board from the
non-executive Directors of the Group and the Chief Executive
The Nomination Commuttee's termns of reference include all
matters indicated by the UK Corporate Governance Gode The
terms of reference are considered annually by the Nomination
Committee and are then refemed to the Board for approval The
full terms of reference were reviewed dunng the year, but remain
unchanged and can be found on the Company's website or can
be obtained from the Company Secretary

The premary responsibiliies of the Nominaton Committee are to

¢ regulary review the structure, size and composition including
the skills, knowledge, expenence and diversity) of the Board
compared to its curent position and making recommendations
to the Board with regard to any changes,

» gve full consideration to succession plannmng for Directors and
other senior executives in the course of its work, talung nto
account the challenges and opportunities facing the Company
and the skills and expertise needed on the Board in the future,
and

¢ dentify and nominate, for the approval of the Board, candidates
to fill Board vacancies as and when they anse
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Governance

The Nomination Commitiee was in place throughout the financial
year 1t 1s chawed by the Chaiman of the Company who was
deemed to be independent on appontment to the Board Four of
the five members of the Committee are independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with provision B 2 1 of the UK Code

Key issues and activities
The Committes and the specially formed sub-committee met on
several occasions dunng the year and considered

* the re-election of all Directors at the July 2012 AGM,
* succession planning,

+ axternal board evaluabon,

¢ Geoff Unwin's proposed retirement,

¢ Stephen Petht's re-election to the Board and ts Committees,
and

+ the nomnation and post year-end appointment of Paul Walker
as a non-executive Director and Charrman Designate and his
membership of the Nomination and Remuneration Committees

When the need to appoint a Director 1s idertified, a candidate
profile 1s developed ndicating the skills, knowledge and expenence
required taking into account the Board's existing composiiion
External search consultancies are retained when recruiing
non-executive Directors and are used to evatuate intemal and
external candidates for succession planning

As disclosed on pages 64 and 68, the Nomination sub-committee
appointed for the Charman succession search compnsed four
non-executve Directors, led by the Senior independent Director A
global search

firm with no other connection to Halma was appointed A wide
range of high calibre candidates was considered for the role The
Board confirmed Paul Walker's independence upon appointment
and was unanimous N its decision to appoint Paul Walker

As noted on pages 64, 66 and 67, the process of appointments to
the Board 1s paramount in ensunng the Company’s performance 1s
mantained and continually improved upon

On behalf of the Normination Commitiee

Geoff Unwin

Charrman
13 June 2013




REMUNERATION REPORT

Remuneration Comnmittee Report

Remuneration Committee members

* Steve Marshall {Chairman)

* Geoff Urwin

* Stephen Pettt

* Nomman Blackwell

» Paul Walker (apponted 12 Apnl 2013)

Allocation of time %

Remuneration framework 22%

Remuneration
recommendabons 28%

Incentve targets 21%
Equity ncentves 20%
Pension arangements 9%

Responsibilties
The primary responsitbiiities of the Committee are

* The Committee makes recommendations to the Board on the
framework for executive Directors’ and senior executives’
remuneration based on proposals formulated by the Chuef
Executve,

¢ determining and agreeing with the Board the policy and
framework for the remuneration of the Chainman, Chief
Executive, the executive Directors, the Comparty Secretary and
members of the Executive Board,

* approving the design of, and determining targets for, any
performance-related pay plans operated by the Company and
agreeing the total annual payments made under such plans,

* reviewing the design of all share incentive plans for approval by
the Board and shareholders, and determining, each year,
whether awards will be made, and if so, the overall amount of
such awards, the indmdual awards to executrve Directors and
other serior executives and the performance targets to be set,
and

» determining the policy for, and scope of, pension arangements
for each executive Director and other senior executives
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The Committee also monitors and considers, with the Chief
Executve, the framework of rermuneration for subsichary chief
executives and directors and ensures a consistent approach 1s
apphed

The full terms of reference, which were reviewed dunng the year
and updated in Apnl 2013, can be found on the Company’s
website or can be obtaned from the Cormpany Secretary

Governance

The Remuneration Committee, which meets at least twice per year,
was in place throughout the financial year All members are
independent in accordance with provision C 31 of the UK
Corporate Govermance Code

None of the Committee has any personal financial interest (other
than as shareholders), conflicts of iInterests ansing from cross
directorships or day-to-day involvernent 1n running the business

The Committee makes recommendations to the Board No
Director plays a part in any discussion about his or her own
remuneration In determining the Directors’ remuneration for the
year, the Cormmittee reviews Andrew Willams' (Cheef Executive)
proposals and relates the proposals 1o remuneration packages at
comparable bsted companies The Committee consults Kepler
Associates, who was appointed dunng the previous financial year,
regarding the structunng of executive remuneraticn packages and
reviews other external published matenal Independent pension
advice s provided to the Company by Lane, Clark & Peacock LLP
Neither Kepler Associates nor Lane, Clark & Peacock LLP are
connected parbes
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REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED
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Activities

Dunng 2012/13, the Committee continued to review the Company’s
remuneration strategy such that executives remain appropnately
ncentvsed to meet the Group's objectves Qur prudent
remuneration arrangements seek to support the demands of our
business model and take into account pnnaiples of sound nsk
management and the social cimate in which we operate The
Company’s strategy Is that a substantial proportion of the
Remuneration of executive Directors should be performance
related The strategy relies upon three key components which
produce an appropnate balance between fixed and vanable pay
over the short and long term

» sefting salanes below median market rate levels,

* aperformance related bonus scheme, rewarding growth in
economic value added, and

= aperformance-granted long-term equity-based mcentive
rewarding relative TSR performance and ROTIC

Hawng reviewed the salary trend over the past few years, the
Committee noted a dnft towards and below lower quartile salary
levels amongst the executives and sought to address an element
of this trend with salary increases marginally higher than inflation
The Commitiee does not expect to make such adjustments each
year, but penodically as appropnate Accordingly the Comimitiee
agreed that

» executive Director base salanes for 2013714 should be increased
by an average of 5 9% (2012 3 6%%),

+ the annual targets for the granting of performance shares were
set appropnately, and

= the award of bonuses in respect of 2012/13 should only be
based on objective measures and be related to the Company’s
performance

The Committee has reviewed the Remuneration Report for 2012/13
and the Company’s remuneration strategy, policy and details of
executive remuneration follow

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee

Steve Marshall

Chairman
13 June 2013
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Report on remuneration strategy and policy

Introduction

This report has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 to the Accounting Regulatons under the Companies Act 2006 The report also
meets the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authonty and descnbes how the Board has applied the
pnnciples relating to directors’ remuneration n the UK Corporate Govermance Code  As required by the Act, a resolution to approve the report
will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company at which the financial statements wall be approved

The Act requires the auditors to report to the Company’s members on certain parts of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and to state
whether In therr opinion those parts of the report have been properly prepared iIn accordance with the Accounting Regulatons The report has
therefore been dwvided into separate sections for unaudited and audited information

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Remuneration policy

Executive remuneration packages are designed to attract, retain and motvate the high calibre executives needed to manage the Group
successfully and align ther interests with those of the shareholders by rewarding them for enhancing value to shareholders

The packages also seek to reward achievernent of stretching performance targets without drmang unacceptable behaviours or encouraging
excessve nsk taking

The performance measurement of the executve Directors and key members of senior management and the determination of therr annual
remuneration package are undertaken by the Remuneration Committee

There are four main elements of the remunerabon package for executive Directors and semor management

Element of How this supports Opportunity Performance Changes for
remuneration the strategy 201213 measures/structure 2013/14
Salary Provides fixed remuneration  CEQ - £450 000 Reviewed annually from 1 Apnt CEO - £482,000
that will attract and retan key  CFO - £290 000 Benchmarked against appropnate CFC - £310,000
employees and reflect ther UK DCE - £231,000 market comparators UK DCE - £241,000
expenence and personal US DCE - $394,000 Linked to indmdual performance US DCE - $415000
contribution to Group and contnbution
strategy
Annual incentve Incentmses the achievernent  100% of salary paid ncash ~ Bonus s based on both growthin None
of an objective annual target the Economic Valus Added EVA)
which supports the short — to compared with a target based on a
medium-term strategy of the weighted avarage of the previous
Group three financal years (cap set at 90%
of salary}, and on revenue growth
outside the UK, USA and Europe

{cap set at 25% of salary), there 1s an
overall cap on annual ncentives of
100% of salary There are no
indmidual objectves

Equity ncentve Incentvises executrves o Al executive Drrectors —up to 50% based on TSR relatve to a None
achieve superior returns to 140% of salary delvered in comparator group of the FTSE 250
shareholders over a Halma pic shares plus excluding financial comparnies, full
three-year penod drdend equivalents settled in vesting reguires upper quartile
Retains key indmduals and  cash on full-term vestings performance 50% based on ROTIC
aligns nterests with axceeding 9 5%, full vesting requires
shareholders reflecting the RCTIC to be 17% (2011112 and pnor
sustainability of the business 149} or greater
maodal over the long term
Pension Prowdes competitve CEQ - pensionable salary* of Executives participate in ether a CEQ - pensionablg salary” of
post-retirement benefits £146 423 plus cash Group defined benefit pension plan, £149,644 plus cash supplement
supplement paid Group defined conmnbution pension
CFO-defemred member of  plan or the US 401k money
pension plan, cash purchase amangement Cash
supplement paid supplermnents in leu of company
UK DCE - retired member pension contributions are made to
of pension plan some ndmduals

S DCE — 401k partcipant

The maxamum pensionable salary on whch future pensions are based rs capped The cap 15 increased each April by CPI Fnal pensions are a proporton of tha final pensionable
salary based on the number of years of service

As descnbed above and below, executve Directors may earmn annual bonus payments of up to 100% of ther basic salary together with the
benefits of participation in share plans which are subject to a maximum value, in the year of grant, of 140% of basic salary

Each executive Director currently holds shares in the Company in excess of the guideline of one year's salary {see page 80)
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Executive Director pay mix {2012/13)

The spiit of the actual package in the year under review reflects modest outcomes (of between threshold and target) under the annual bonus
plan and the full vesting of the 2009 PSP awards n relation to the achieverment of top quartile TSR performance and ROTIC of more than 14%
pa over the past three years The Committee is satisfied that this outcome 1s closely aligned wath, and reflectve of, Halma's strong undertying
performance over this penod

Split of package (expected) % Split of package (actual) %

Salary (hase) 42% Salary (base) 26%
Pension (employer Pension femployer
contnbubons) 6% contrbutions) 4%
Annual Incertive (expected) 26% Annual incentve {paxd) 19%
Equity mcentive (expected value Equity mcentve (vested) 51%
at grant) 26%

Basic salary

Prior to the beginning of each year, each executive Director’s basic salary 1s reviewed by the Committee aganst the market, Company
performance and future strategy and when an ndmdual changes position or respensibility The Chief Executive 1s responsible for assessing
the performance of each senior executive taking account of the complexity of the operations under therr control, therr opporturshes for
advancement with the Group, therr remuneration relative to other executives in the Group and ther bonus eaming potential He then
formulates a remuneration proposal for the Committee's consideration In deciding appropnate remuneration tevels, the Commuttee also
considers the Group as a whole and relies on objective external research which gives nformation on a comparater group of companies

As noted earlier, having reviewed the salary trend over the past few years, the Committee noted a dnft towards and below fower quartie
salary levels amongst the executives and sought to address an element of this trend with salary increases marginally higher than inflation
The Comimittee does not expect to make such adjustments each year, but pencdically as appropnate

Basic salanes are reviewed in February of each year with increases, as appropnate, taking effect from 1 Aprl Executive Directors' contracts
of service which nclude detalls of remuneration wall be avalable for mspection at the Annual General Meeting

Annual bonus payments

Dunng the year the Commuittee carefully assessed existing incentive arrangements and determined that incentive levels are appropnately set
The Committee established the economic value added (EVA) objectives that must be met for each financial year If a cash bonus 1s to be paid
In setting appropnate bonus parameters the Committee determined that bonuses of approximately 60% of salary are payable on the
achievernent of targeted levels of growth The maxamum performance-related bonus that can be paid i 100% of basic annual salary

For the Chief Executive and Finance Director, bonuses are cajculated as above but based on Group profit exceeding a target calculated from
the profits for the three preceding financial years after charging cost of capital, including the cost of acquistions

In the case of a Dvsional Chief Executive a bonus 1s eamed 1f the profit of the Division for which they are responsible exceeds a target
calculated from the profits of the three preceding financial years The profits calculated for this purpose regard each Division as a standalone
group of companies charging it with the cost of capital it utilses including the cost of acquisitions

Executive Director bonus payrments for 2013 totalled £834,000 versus £725,000 in the prior year reflecting the Group's performance in terms
of reported profit, EVA and the relative contrbutions of organic and acquistion growth

This performance-related bonus plan, which applies to executive Directors and Dvisional Chief Executives, Is reviewed annually by the
Committee and approved by the Board

EVA calculation

Profitfor eachyear Minus Minus Plus/minus Minus Equals
a charge on cost acharge on unrealsed profit the resuftant bonus tseff the Economic
of acqustions working caprtal n inverdory {to make it self-financing) Value Added (EVA)
for each year

The elements of the EVA calculation performed for bonus purposes renforce the Group's business model as outined on page 11 The profit
for the year 1s a function of the extent to which the Company has achieved both ris organic growth target and its success in identifying
appropnate acqisition targets in current and past years Ensunng that the cost of funding acquistions 1s reflected in the bonus model means
that executives share the benefit of an acquisiion that outperforms expectations, but equally bears the cost of overpaying for an acquistton -
alin their bonus  Equally, good or poor management of working capital 1s reflected in the final EVA and impacts on the bonus eamed in a year
As the EVA for each year is utiised for a further three years in the comparator calculations, executives cannot ignore the medium-term
interests of the Group without the potential for an adverse mpact on ther capacity to eam a bonus

Transitional provisions exist for dmsional restructunng to ensure Divisional Chief Executives remain appropnately ncentmsed Subsidiary
directors participate in bonus arangements similar to those established for senior executives
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The Directors have long believed that share plans are an excellent way 1o provide motivation and align the longer-term interests of senior

management with those of shareholders The Committee, recognising the need to assess and evaluate such mcentives, adopted a

performance share plan following shareholder approval at the 2005 Annual General Meeting This PSP replaced the existing share option

plans in respect of future share awards The Committee has responsibiity for supervsing the PSP and the grants under its terms

How the PSP works
Performance critena determine the amount to be granted and, after three years, the amount to vest as illustrated below
Stages Award critena Award assessment

Process Performance cntena determine the  The assessment of the

number of shares to be granted out  indnadual’s achievemnent of
of a Maximum Award level Pnmary  therr objectives establishes

Vesting critena Final shares vested

50% of the amount granted issubject  Awards vest on a sliding
to TSR growth relatrve to the FTSE 250, scale, as set out in the PSP

excluding financial comparees, over the vesting table below

emphasis 1s placed upon the the proportion of the three-year vesting peniod
attanment of personal strategic Maximum Award that an 50% of the amount granted 1s subject
objectves coupled with financial and - indmaduat s granted (the to ROTIC performance over each of
operational success Actual Award in the table the three years
below)
Timeline Cnena set one year pnor to grant Assessment occurs Vesting conditions apply throughout Three years from grant cor
immediately prior to grant the three-year vesting penod pro-rata for good leavers
PSP value Opportunity to receve Maximum % attainment of indmdual % attanment of Group Final shares vested
Award objectrves performance condtions

The Committee believes that any Incentive compensation awarded should be tied to the interests of the Company's shareholders It thergfore
decided that the prncipal measures of those interests should be Relative Total Shareholder Retun {TSR) and Return on Total Invested Capital

(ROTIC)
PSP vesting table %
2012 and after awards TSR {percentile)
Percentage of award which vests <50% 50% 75% 100%
ROTIC {post-tax) <9 5% 00 167 500 500
12 0% 167 333 667 667
14 5% 333 500 833 833
170% 500 667 1000 1000
2010 and 2011 awards TSR (percentile)
Percentage of award which vests <50% 50% 75% 100%
ROTIC (post-tax) <8 5% 00 167 500 500
1 0% 87 333 667 667
12 5% 333 500 833 833
14 0% 500 667 1000 1000

ROTIC (Return on total invested caprtal) %

The Committee recognised that the Group's improving performance
inrespect of its absolute ROTIC percentage metnc mented a

2013 158 recalibration of the performance target at which fulf vesting of the
ROTIC element 1s achieved To that end, the Committee determined

2012 168 that full vesting would now occur at a ROTIC performance of 17%

2011 155 for awards made n 2012 and after

2010 13B

2009 131

Vested awards are satisfied in shares with sufficient shares being sold to meet tax and social costs owing, at the recipient’s cirection, and the

net balance of shares transferred to the ndmdual
Awards lapse if they do not vest on the third anniversary of ther award

Current vesting expectations for awards made in 2010, 2011 and 2012 range from 47% t0 89%
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Maximum award Actual award Estimate of vesting in
Performance agamnst objectives permstted* 2012/13* 2015/16*
Chief Executive 140% 128% 1%
Finance Drrector 140% ﬁ '”d”'d“ﬁgm 136% Céftﬁ,g% 76%
Executive Directors 140% level 130% expectation 72%
Other Exgcutive Board members 100% 95% 52%
Managing Directors and Dvisional Finance Dirsctors 40% 28% 16%
Gther subsidiary drectors 10% 9% 5%

Expressed as a percentage of 2012/13 base salary

Awards vest after thres years on a sliding scale, as set out above, subject to the Company's relatve TSR performance against the FTSE 250,
excluding financial companies, combined with a measure based upon an absolute ROTIC

The Plan contains provisions permitting share option grants, restncted share awards and performance share awards To date, the Commities
has used the PSP only to award both approved and unapproved performance shares

The five-year graph to the left shows the Company’s TSR

Total shareholder retum {fve years) pertormance over the five years to 30 March 2013 as compared to
350 the FTSE 250 and the FTSE 350 Blectronic & Blectncal Equipment
a0 sectorndices Over the penod indicated, the Company's TSR was
260 312% compared to 161% for the FTSE 250 and 270% for the FTSE
20 350 Blectronic & Electreal Equipment sector

150 At the commencement of the five-year penod depicted in the graph,
100 the Halma plc ordinary share pnce was 191 5p and the total of

dmdends paid Iin the year ended 29 March 2008 was 7 33p per

52 share The Halma plc ordinary share price at 30 March 2013 was
2008 2008 2010 2011 o012 2013 518 Op and the total of divdends paid in the year then ended was
10 O1p per share
Haima
FTSE 250

FTSE 350 Blectronic & Bectncal Equpment

Share option plans

The 1999 share option plan prowided for the grant of two categones of option both of which are subject to performance cntena No further
grants may be made from this plan which has been replaced by the PSP approved by shareholders at the 2005 Annual General Meeting The
granting of options was spread over the Iife of the plan

Dilution
The total dilution effect under these vanous discretionary share plans is less than 5%

The Company does not operate any long-term incentive plans other than the share plans descnbed above No significant amendments are
proposed to be made to the terms and conditions of any entitlerment of a Director to share options or performance share awards

Pension arrangements

Except as noted below, the executive Directors participate in the appropnate secton of the Halma Group Pension Plan (the Plan) This section
1s a funded final salary occupatonal pension plan registered with HM Revenue & Customs, which prowides a maximum pension of two-thirds
of final pensionable salary after 25 or more years' service at normal pension age (60} Up to S April 2006, final pensionable salary was the
greatest salary of the last three complete tax years immediately before retirement or leaving serace From 6 Apnl 2011, final pensionable salary
was capped at £139,185 and 1s Increased annually thereafter by CPI {currently £149,644)

Bonuses and other fluctuating emoluments and benefits-in-kand are not pensionable nor subject to any pension accrued supplement, The
Plan also prowides for Ife cover of three times salary, pensions in the event of earty retirement through fl-health and dependants’ pensions of
one-half of the member's prospectve pension

Earty retrement pensions, currently possible from age 55 with the consent of the Comparny and the Trustees of the Plan, are subject to
actuanal reducton Pensions in payment increase by 3% per annum for service up to 5 Apnl 1997, by pnce inflaton (subject to a maximum of
5%) through to 31 March 2007 and 3% thereafter
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Whilst pension benefits are accruing, executve Directors receve pension supplements to compensate them for the fact that therr pension
accrual entilement under the Halma Group Pension Plan defined benefit arrangements 1s imited by a pensionable salary cap introduced from
6 Aprl 2006 The Company mtroduced a pensionable salary cap in order to address changes affecting the Plan made in the Pension Act
2006 Without the Introduchion of such a cap, there would, effectively, have been no benefit imits This could have resutted in benefits in
excess of prescnbed levels with some indmviduals suffenng penal rates of tax and potentially causing a imitation on the tax deductibiity of
employer contnbutions The Company oblaned external advwice regarding the changes to the Plan and executive pension arrangements and
required each affected executive to obtain ndependent advice prior to implementing the changes These changes reduce the Plars future
habiites and ther associated funding nsk

Prior to recemng pension payments, to the extent that an executive's current salary exceeds the Plan salary cap, the Company compensates
him at an annual rate of 26% of the excess n Apnl 2006, Kevin Thompson chose ta cease entirely future service accrual in the Halma Group
Pension Plan in retumn for the pension supplement on s full salary

Benefits-in-kind
The executve Directors recesve certan benefits-in-kand, pnncipally use of a car and prvate medical nsurance

Dwrectors’ contracts
It 55 the Company's policy that executve Directors should have contracts with an indefinite term providing for a maxsmum of one year's notice
The details of the Directors’ contracts are surmansed in the table below

Date of contract Notice penod

Andrew Willams Apnl 2003 ong ysar
Kavin Thompson Apnl 2003 one year
Neil Quinn April 2003 one year
Adam Meyers July 2008 ONe year

In the event of early termination, no predetermined compensation 1s provided for in the Directors’ contracts

Non-executive Directors

Unless otherwise iIndicated, all non-executive Directors have a specific three-year term of engagement which may be renewed for further
three-year terms if both the Director and the Board agree Stephen Pettit, who 1s the Semor Independent Director and 1s proposed for
re-election, had his terms of engagement extanded for a third three-year term in 2009 and has agreed to reman on the Board for an
addttional penod to provide stability and continuity following the appointment of Paut Walker as Chairmnan Designate The Board wilt contnue
to evaluate this mandate annually

The remuneration of the Charman and the non-executive Directors 1s determined by the Committee and the Board based on independent
surveys of fees paid to the Charman and the non-executive Directors of similar companies The Chairnan receives a basic fee and the
non-executive Directors receve a basic fee supplemented by additional fees for membership and/or charmanship of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nominaton Committees

The contract in respect of Paul Walker's services provides for termination, by exther party, by gving not less than six months’ notice Stephen
Petit, Jane Aikman, Norman Blackwell, Steve Marshall and Damela Barone Soares have contracts in respect of therr non-executive Director
services which can be terminated, by ether party, by gmng not less than three months’ notice Geoff Unwin has tendered hus resignation to be
effective at the close of the Annual General Meeting on 25 July 2013 and the Board has accepted his resignation

The Charman's and the non-executive Directors' fees, as detailed below, were reviewed by the Board n Apnl 2013 with increases taking
effect from Apnl 2013

2014 2013 2012
Fees £ £ £
Chayman 175,000 165,000 145,000
Base non-executive Director 42,000 40,000 35,000
Senior Independent Director 5,000 5,000 5,000
Audit Committee Char 10,000 10,000 7.500
Rermuneration Committee Charr 7,500 7,500 5,000
Committee Member 2500 2,500 2,500
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AUDITED INFORMATION
Aggregate Directors’ remuneration
The total amounts for Directors’ remuneration were as follows

2013 2012
£000 £000
Emolumeants 2,532 2307
Pension supplements 154 150
Gans on vesting of performance shares 2,564 2,587
Gains on exarcise of share options 408 126
5,665 5170
Directors' remuneration
Salanes Pension 2013 2012
and fees Bonus Benefits supplement Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Geoff Unwin 165 - - - 165 145
Andrew Willams 450 218 27 79 772 71
Kenan Thompson 290 138 15 75 518 474
Stephen Pettrt 53 53 46
Neil Cvunn 23 231 13 475 41
Jane Aikman 50 - - - 50 42
Adam Meyers® 249 249 14 512 479
Noman Blackwell 45 — - - 45 40
Steve Marshall 53 - - - 53 46
Danela Barone Soares™ 43 — — — 43 16
Richard Stone™ - - - - - 17
1,629 834 69 154 2,686 2,457
Remuneratad in US Dollars and translated at the prevailing average exchange rate for the year
" Toffrom date of retrement/appontrment.
Directors’ interests
The Directors who held office at 30 March 2013 had the following interests in the ordinary shares of the Company
Shares Shares
31 March 2013 2 Apni 2012
Geoff Unwin 85,750 68,250
Andrew Willams 501,501 420,806
Kevin Thompson 341,044 315,154
Stephen Pettit 2,000 2,000
Neill Quinn 271,736 261,041
Jane Alkman 2,000 2,000
Adam Meyers 267,313 203,064
Norman Blackwell 2,000 2,000
Steve Marshal 2,000 2,000
Danela Barone Soares 738 -

Included within Geoff Urin's shareholding as at 30 March 2013 1s a non-beneficial holding of 17,500 shares for which he 1s trustee There are
no other norn-beneficial interests of Directors There were no changes in Directors’ interests from 30 March 2013 to 13 June 2013 Paul Walker
has no interests in the ordinary shares of the Company
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Performance share plan
The movements In performance share awards dunng the financial year were as follows
Five-day
average share
Asat Granted/{vested) price on grant As at
Date of grant 31 March 2012 in the year {pence) 30 March 2013
Andrew Willams Aug 09 226,610 {226,610) 194 36 -
Aug-10 200,215 28108 200,215
Aug-11 164,912 362 34 164,912
Aug-12 141,658 40370 141,658
Kevin Thampson Aug-09 157473 {157,473) 194 36 -
Aug-10 124,126 28108 124,126
Aug-11 103,571 362 34 103,571
Aug-12 98,066 40370 98,066
Neil Guinn Aug-09 125,620 {125 620) 194 36 -
Aug-10 97 531 28108 97,531
Aug-11 80,810 36234 80,810
Aug-12 70,954 40370 70,954
Adam Meyers Aug-09 80,909 {80,909) 194 36 -
Aug-10 110,005 28108 110,005
Aug-11 88,552 36234 88,552
Aug-12 82,408 403 70 82,408

Performance condibons for the awards made in the financial year are set out above The 2009 grants vested In August 2012 at a value of
406 7552p per share with 100% of the onginal number of shares granted being transferred to participants net of any tax and social charges
The current vesting expectation for grants made in 2010 1s 99%, for grants made in 2011, 74 5% and for grants made in 2012, 46 7%

Share incentive plan

As part of their participation in the performance share plan, UK executive Directors were awarded a proportion of ther awards in Free Shares
under the provisions of the UK share incentive plan (SIP) on 1 October 2012, as follows Andrew Willams, 695 shares {October 2011 921
shares), Kevin Thompson, 695 shares (October 2011 349 shares}, and Neil Quinn, 695 shares {October 2011 949 shares) The Fres Shares
are held in trust for the participants and may transfer to them from the third annversary of the award, on request and subject to continued
employment The share pnce on the award date was 431 1p ([October 2011 315 6p) SIP shareholdings are ncluded in Directors’ interests
above

Drrectors’ share options
The movements in share options dunng the financial year were as follows

As at Share pnce As at 2013 2012

31 March on exercise 30 March Gains on Gains on

2012 Lapsed Exercised [(9)] 2013 Exercise (£) Exercise ()

Andrew Willams 91,837 22,171) - - 69,666 - -
Kevin Thompson 144,186 {40,186) - - 104,000 - -
Netl Quinn 137,156 {40,186} - - 96,970 - -
Adam Meyers 269,481 {34,643} {127,376) 456 40 107,462 408,004 125,718

There were no share option grants dunng the financial year The gans are calculated by deducting the exercise pnce from the closing middle
market pnce at the date of exercise or the actual gross sales proceeds if appropnate
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Detads of Directors’ options outstanding at 30 March 2013 are set out in the table below The status of the options ¢an be surmmansed as
follows

1 Exercisable at that date at a pnce less than 518p

2 Not yet exercisable, will only be exercisable when the performance cntena, set out 1 note 23 10 the accounts, have been met and have an
exercise pnce per share of less than 518p

Weighted

average

exercise price

Status Year Number (pence}

of options of grant of shares per share

Andrew Willams 2 2003-2004 69,666 138 66
Kewin Thompson 2 2003-2004 104,000 13846
Ned Quinn 2 2003-2004 96,970 13819
Adam Meyers 1 2005 31407 14567
2 2003-2004 76,065 13813

All options lapse if not exercised within ten years from the date of grant

The Company’s Register of Directors’ Interests, which 1s open to inspection at the Registered Office, contains full details of Directors’
shareholdings and share options

“There have been no vanatons to the terms and conditions or performance cntena for share options dunng the financial year

The closing middle market price of the Company's ordinary shares on Thursday, 28 March 2013, the last trading day preceding the financial
year end, was 518p per share and the range dunng the year was 373 1p to 531 5p

Directors’ pension entittements
Two Directors are accruing benefits under the Company's defined benefit pension plan as follows.

Years of Accrued Accrued

pensionable pension Increase in pension

Age at service at 2012 the year 2013

30 March 2013 30 March 2013 £000 £000 £000

Andrew Willams 45 19 50 5 55
Kevin Thompson 53 18 103 5 108

The accrued pension shown 1s that which would be paid annually on retirement at age 60 based on service to the end of the year
Kevin Thompson's Increase In accrued pension relates entirely to inflation as he ceased future serice accrual n 2006

Increase in value

Directors’ net of
Transfer value contnbutions contnbutions Transfer value
31 March 2012 £000 £000 30 March 2013
Andrew Willarms 691 16 109 216
Kevin Thompson 1938 - 218 2,156

The transfer values disclosed above do not represent a sum paid or payable to the indmidual Director Instead they represent a potential labiity
of the pension plan  The transfer values are Gilt related and depend upon the relatve standings of the Gilt market at the respective valuation
dates The Increase in transfer values is predomnantly due to the significant reduction in the yields avalable on UK Gilts over the year The fall
i yields has been widely attnbuted to the Bank of England's continued pohcy on Quantitative Easing and the Euro cnsis Other factors that
have Increased the transfer values are the Impact of any addrbonal service, revaluation in ine with inflation and any real salary increases as well
as the anbopated ageng of the members

These values have been calculated on the basis of actuanal adwice in accordance with Actuanal Gudance Note GN11

Adam Meyers 1s a member of the US 401k money purchase scheme Company contnbutions paid in the year were $12,500 (£7,911)
(2012 $12,489 (C7,806)

The report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

Steve Marshall

Remuneration Committee (Chairman)
13 June 2013

W
Pl
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Activities
Halma plc 1s a holding company A list of its prncipal subsidiary companies and therr actmibies 15 set out on pages 142 to 145

Ordinary dividends

The Directors recommend a final dvdend of 6 37p per share and, if approved, this dvidend will be paid on 21 August 2013 to ordinary
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 19 July 2013 Together with the intenm dividend of 4 08p per share already paid, this
will make a total of 10 43p (2012 9 74p) per share for the financial year

Share capital and captal structure

Detalls of the share capital, together with details of the movements in the share capital dunng the year, are shown in note 22 to the accounts
The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income  Each share cames the nght to one vote &t general
meetings of the Company

There are no other classes of share capital There are no specific restnctions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, with both
govemed by the general provisions of the Articles of Association and prevailing legislation No person has any special nghts of control over the
Company’s share caprtal and all issued shares are fully pad

Rights and obligations of ordinary shares

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to attend and speak at general meetings of the Company and to appoint one or more proxies or, if the
holder of shares 1s a corporation, one or more corporate representatives On a show of hands, each holder of ordinary shares who (being an
indradual) s present in person or (beng a corporation) is present by a duly appointed comarate representative, not being himself a member,
shall have one votg, as shall proxies {unless they are appointed by more than one holder, In which case they may vote both for and against the
resolution n accordance with the holders’ instructions) On a poll every holder of ordinary shares present in person or by proxy shall have one
vote for every share of which he s the holder Electronic and paper proxy appointments and vobing instructons must be recerved not later than
48 hours before the meeting A holder of ordinary shares can lose the entitlement to vote at general meetings where that holder has been
served with a disclosure notice and has faled to provide the Company with information conceming interests held in those shares Except as
set out above and as permitted under applicable statutes, there are no imitations on voting nghts of holders of a given percentage, number of
votes or deadlines for exercising voting nghts

Restrictions on transfer of shares

The Directors may refuse to register a transfer of a certificated share that 1s not fully paid, provided that the refusal does not prevent dealings in
shares in the Company from taking place on an open and proper basis or where the Gompany has a hen over that share The Directors may
also refuse to register a transfer of a cerificated share unless the mstrument of transfer 1s () lodged, duly stamped {if necessary), at the
registered office of the Company or any other place as the Beard may decide accompanied by the certificate for the share(s) to be transferred
and/or such other endence as the Directors may reasonably require to show the nght of the transferor to make the transfer, (i) n respect of
only one class of shares, (i) i favour of a person whe 1s not a minor, iInfant, bankrupt or a parsen of unsound mind, or () N favour of not more
than four persons jointly

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be camed out using CREST and the Directors can refuse to register a transfer of an uncertificated
share in accordance with the regulations governing the operation of CREST

There are no other restnctions on the transfer of ordinary shares n the Company except certan restnctons which may from time to tme be
timposed by laws and regulations (for example insider trading laws), or where a shareholder with at least a 0 25% mnterest n the Comparny's
certificated shares has been served with a disclosure notice and has faled to provide the Company wath information concermning interests in
those shares The Drrectors are not aware of any agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that may result in restnctions on the
transfer of secunties or on voting nghts

Treasury shares
Shares held in treasury do net have voting nghts and are not eligible for dvidends

Employee share plans
Detalls of ermnployee share plans are set out in note 23 to the accounts

Appointment and replacement of directors

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors, the Company 1s govemed by its Articles of Association, the UK Corporate
Govemance Code, the Companies Act and related legislation Directors can be appointed by the Company by ordinary resolution at a general
mesting or by the Board If a Director 1s appanted by the Board, such Director wall hold office until the next annual general meeting and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code all the Directors wall retire and, being
elgible, will offer themselves for re-election at this year's Annual General Meeting The Company can remove a Director from office, including
by passing a special resolution or by notice being given by all the other Directors The Articles themselves may be amended by special
resolution of the shareholders

Power of Directors
The powers of Directors are descnbed in the Matters Reserved for the Board, copies of which are available on request from the Compary
Secretary, and the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 64 10 69

Essential contracts and change of control
There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company, principally bank loan
agreements and employee share plans
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The only significant agreement, in terms of its fikely impact on the business of the Group as a whole, containing such provisions s that
goverming the £260m syndicated revoling credt factity which, if within 10 days of a change of control notice to the Loan agent, can result In
30 days’ notice being given Lo the Company by any Lender, for all amounts outstanding to that Lender, to be immediately due and payable, at
which time the commutment of that Lender will be cancelled Hf all of the Lenders give this notice the whole facility woutd be cancelled

The Group has contractual arrangements with a wide range of suppliers The Group 1s not unduly dependent upon contractual amrangements
with any particular customer Whilst the loss or disruption to certan of these arrangements could temporanly affect the Group’s business,
none Is considered to be essential

The Company’s share plans contan provisions as a resutt of which options and awards may vest and become exercisable on a change of
control of the Comparwy in accordance with the rules of the plans

The Drrectors are not aware of any agreements between the Company and tts directors or employees that prowde for compensation for loss
of office or employment that occurs because of a takeover bid

Allotment authority

Under the Companies Act 2006 the Directors may only allot shares if authcnsed by shareholders to do so Al the Annual General Meeting an
ordinary resolution will be proposed which, If passed, will authonse the Directors to allot and issue new shares up to an aggregate nominal
value of £12,500,000 {up to 125,000,000 new ordinary shares of 10p each), being just less than one-third of the iIssued share capital of the
Company (excluding treasury shares) as at 12 June 2013 {the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice of Meeting)

n accordance with the Directors’ stated intention to seek annual renewal, the authonty wall expire at the conclusion of the annual general
mesting of the Company in 2014 Passing this resoluticn will give the Directors flexibility to act in the best interests of shareholders, when
opportunities anse, by 1Issuing new shares

As at 12 June 2013 {the latest practicable date pnor to the publication of the Notice of Meeting), the Company had 378,880,622 ordinary
shares of 10p each in sssue of which 1,303,209 were held as treasury shares, which 1s equal to approximately O 3% of the 1ssued share capital
of the Company (excluding treasury shares) as at that date

The Companies Act 2006 also requires that, if the Company 1ssues new shares for cash or sells any treasury shares, it must first offer them to
existing shareholders in proportion to therr current holdings At the Annual General Meeting a special resolution will be proposed which, if
passed, will authonse the Directors 10 ssue a imited number of shares for cash and/or sell treasury shares without offenng them to
shareholders first The authonty s for an aggregate norminal amount of up to 5% of the aggregate nominal value of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 12 June 2013 {the latest practcable date prior to the publication of the Notice of Meeting) The resolution will also modify
statutory pre-emption nghts to deal with legal, regulatory or practical problems that may anse on a nghts i1ssue or other pre-emptive offer or
issue The authonty will exprre at the sarme time as the resolution confernng authonty on the Directors to allot shares The Directors consider
this authonty necessary In order to give them flexibility to deal with opportunites as they anse, subject to the restnctions contained in the:
resolution There are no present plans 1o 1ssue shares, except under share plans prewously approved in general meeting

Directors
The names of the Directors of the Company who served throughout the year induding bnef biographies, are set out on pages 60 and 61

Directors’ indemnities
The Company has entered into deeds of indemrity with each of the current Directors, which remain in force at the date of this report These
are qualfying third-party indemnity prowisions for the purposes of the Comparies Act 2006

Purchase of the Company’s own shares

The Company was authonsed at the 2012 Annual General Meeting to purchase up to 37,800,000 of its own 10p ordinary shares in the

market This authomty expires at the end of the 2013 Annual General Meeting In accordance with the Directors’ stated intention to seek annual
renewal, a special resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to renew this authonty, until the end of next year's annual general
mesting, in respect of up to 37,700,000 ordinary shares, which is approximately 10% of the Company's 1ssued share capital (excluding
treasury shares) as at 12 June 2013 (the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice of Meeting) The Directors consider it
desrable that the possibiiity of making such purchases, under appropnate crcumstances, 1s avalable Ther present intention 1s that the
shares purchased under the authonty wall be held in treasury for future cancellaton, sale for cash or transfer for the purposes of, or pursuant
to, an employes share plan, although in the light of crcumstances at the tme t may be decided to cancel thernimmediately on repurchase
The effect of any cancellation would be to reduce the number of shares inIssue For most purposes, while held in treasury, shares are treated
as f they have been cancelled {for example, they carmy no voting nghts and do not rank for dmdends)

Following approval of the Performance Share Plan (PSP) at the 2005 Annual General Meeting, the Directors made, and intend to continue to
make, routine purchases of Halma shares in the market for holding in treasury until required for vesting under the PSP In the year to 30 March
2013, 1,296,006 shares, with a nominal value of £129,600 60, which 1s 0 3% of the Company's issued share capital as at 12 June 2013 (the
latest practicable date pnor to the publication of the Notice of Meeting), were purchased in the market for treasury Otherwise, the Directors
have no present ntention of using this authonty In reaching a decision to purchase shares, the Directors will take into account the Company’s
cash resources, capital requirements and the effect of any purchase on the Company’s eamings per share It 1s anticipated that renewal of the
authonty will be requested at subsequent annual general meetngs

As at 12 June 2013, which 1s the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice of Meeting, options were outstanding to subscnbe
for a total number of 1,261,444 ordinary shares, or 0 3% cof the Company's issued share capital if the proposed authonty were to be used in
full and all of the repurchased shares were cancelled (but the Company's Issued share capital otherwise remained unaltered), the total number
of ophons to subscnbe for ordinary shares at that date would represent approxamately 0 4% of the Company's 1ssued share capital (excluding
treasury shares)

84  Halma plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013




Overview 02-09

Business review 10-59
Governance 60-86
Financial statements 87-147

Supplier payment policy

The Compary does not follow any partcular suppher payment code of practice The Company has due regard to the payment terms of
supplers and generally settles all undisputed accounts within 30 days of the due date for payment At 30 March 2013 the Company’s trade
creditors, amounting to £16m (2012 £1 3rm), represented 41 days (2012 25 days) of its annual purchases

Donations
Group companies made chantable donations armounting to £46,025, principally to universities, (2012 £46,015) dunng the financial year

There were no poliical donations (2012 £nd)
Substantial shareholdings

On 12 June 2013, the Company had been notified, In accordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, of the following
voting nghts as a shareholder of the Company

30 March 2013 12 June 2013

Percentage of Percantage of

veting nghts and voting rights and
No of erdnary 1ssued share No of ordinary 1Issued share Nature
shares capital shares capital of holdings
Massachusetts Financial Senvces Company 18,904,896 500 18,904,896 501 Incirect
Caprtal Research and Management Company 18,804,168 498 18.804,168 498 Indirect
Sprucegreve Investment Management Ltd 18,776,510 497 18,776,510 497 Indirect
Schroder Investment Managerent 18,667,466 494 18,667,466 494 Indirect
Sanderson Asset Management Ltd 14,891,762 394 14 891,762 3M Direct
Norges Bank Investment Management 14,872,138 394 14,872,138 394 Direct
Barclays Bank PLC 14,646,007 388 14,648,007 388 Indirect
Mawer Investment Management Limited 11,333,276 300 11,333,276 300 Direct
Legal and General Group Plc 11,248,247 298 11,248,247 298 Diract

Annual General Meeting
The Cormpany's Annual General Mesting wall be held on 25 July 2013 The Notice of Meeting, together with an explanation of the proposed
resofutions, 1s enclosed with this Annual Report and 1s also avalable on the Company's website at www halma com

Special Business

The Board will propose three special resolutions under Special Business at the Annual General Meeting, In accordance with the EU
Shargholder Rights Directive implemented in August 2009, to permit the Company to retain the ability o call general meetings {other than
annual general meetings} at 14 days’ notice rather than 21 days’ notice

Audrtors
Each of the persons who Is a Director at the date of approval of this Annual Report confirms that

» so far as the Director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit Information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

« the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a drector in order to make himseli/herself aware of any relevant audit
nformation and to establish that the Comparty's auditors are aware of that inforrmabon

This confirmation s gven and should be intemreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006

Delotte LLP has expressed its wilingness to continue in office as auditor and a resolution to reappoint Delortte LLP will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting

By order of the Board

Carol Chesney Ca/\@Q A
Company Secretary =

13 June 2013
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors are required to
prepare the Group financel statements in accordance wath International Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted by the European
Urion and Article 4 of the IAS Regulaton and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company iaw the
Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr view of the state of affarrs of the Company
and of the profit or loss of the Company for that pencd

In prepanng the parent company financial staterments, the Directors are required to
* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

= state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explaned in
the financial statements, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis uniess it is Inappropnate to presume that the Company will continue
in business

In prepanng the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors
¢ properly select and apply accounting policies,
* present information, ncluding accounting pehcies, In a manner that prowndes relevant, refiable, comparable and understandabls information,

= provide addiional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and condiions on the entrity’s financial position and financial performance, and

* make an assessment of the Company’s abilty to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficent to show and explan the Company’s transactons
and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financal
staternents comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence

for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imegulanties

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integnty of the corporate and financial nformation included cn the Comparny’s
website Legislation in the United Kingdom goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation
in other junsdictons

Directors’ responsibility statement
We confirm that 1o the best of our knowledge

» the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financtal reporting framework, give a true and far view of the assets,
habities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and

+ the management report, which is iIncorporated into the Directors’ Report, includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consoldation taken as a whole, togsther with a descnption
of the pnncipal nsks and uncertantes that they face

By order of the Board
Andrew Williams Kevin Thompson
Chief Executive Finance Director

1§ June 2013 ; E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT >

TO THE MEMBERS OF HALMA PLC . o

We have audited the Group financial statements of Halma plc for the 52 week penod ended 30 March 2013 which compnse the
Consolidated Income Statement, the Consoldated Staternent of Comprehensive income and Expenditure, the Consolidated Balance
Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Reconciliation of Net Cash Flaw
to Movement in Net Debt and the related notes 1 to 31 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in ther preparation s
applicable law and Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’'s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinicns we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditor

As explained mere fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group
financial stalements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our responsibility 1S to audit and express an opinion on
the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and 'reland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's {(APB’s} Ethical Standards for Audrtors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate 10 the Group's circumstances and have been consistently

apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to
identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstaterments or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the Group financiat statements

+ give a true and far view of the state of the Group’s affars as at 30 March 2013 and of its profit for the 52 week penocd
then ended,

« have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors' Repaort for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
15 congistent with the Group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, n our opinien

« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specrfied by law are not made, or
+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listng Rules we are required to review

» the Directors’ Statement contained within Corporate Govemance in relation 1o going cancern,

 the part of the Corporate Govemnance Staterment relating to the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the UK
Comorate Governance Code specified for our review, and

» certain elements of the report to the shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remuneration

Other matters
We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Halma plc for the 52 week penod ended
30 March 2013 and on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that i1s descnbed as hawving been audited

/4(% BUW

Alexander Butterworth ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

Reading, UK

13 June 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT

52 weoks to 30 March 2013 52 weeks to0 31 March 2012
Before Adjustments* Before Adpstments”
Adjustments” {note 1} Total Adjustments (nota 1) Total
Notes 2000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Continuing operations
Revenue 1 619,210 - 619,210 579,883 - 579,883
Operating profit 134,844 (16,477) 118,367 121,944 (12,034) 109,910
Share of results of associates {352) - {352} {37 - (37)
Profit on disposal of continuing
operations 29 - 8,070 8,070 - 3,543 3,543
Finance income 4 8,964 - 8,964 10,070 - 10 G670
Finance expense 5 (12,795) - (12,795) {11,512 - {11,512
Profit before taxation 3] 130,661 (8,407) 122,254 120,465 8,491) 111,974
Taxation 9 (31,670) 4,632 (27,038) {28,256) 2,996 (25,260}
Profit for the year attnbutable
to equity shareholders 1 98,991 (3,775) 95,216 92,209 (5,495) 86,714
Eamings per share 2
From continuing operations
Basic 26 22p 2522p 24 46p 2301p
Diluted 2519p 22 97p
Dividends 1n respect
of the year 10
Paid and proposed (£000) 39,409 36,723
Paid and proposed per share B ) 10 43p 974ap

* Adustments nclude the amortisation of acquired mtangible assets acquisition transaction costs mavement on contingent consideration profit on disposal of continuing
operations, and the associated taxaton thereon

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

52 woeks to 52 weeks to

30 March 31 March

2013 2012

Notes £000 L0000

Profnt for the year 95,216 86,714
Exchange differences on translation of foreign cperations and net investment hedge 16,534 (5.707)
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension plans 28 {21,870) (3,024}
Effective portion of changes in farr value of cash flow hedges 26 {504} 545
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 9 4,930 (11}
Cther comprehensive expense for the year {1,010} (8.197)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity shareholders 94,206 78,517

The exchange differences of £16,534,000 (2012 (£5,707,000)) compnse gans of £113,000 (2012 losses of £776,000) which relate
to net nvestment hedges as descnbed on page 96
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30 March 31 March
2013 2012
Notes £000 2000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 11 351,785 267.471
Other intangble assets 12 134,457 74 483
Property, plant and equipment 13 76,725 72,118
Interests in associates 14 4,792 1,968
Deferrad tax asset 21 28,749 11,038
596,508 427,079
Current assets
Inventories 15 69,713 57,368
Trade and other recevabies 16 133,605 114,674
Tax recevable 69 288
Cash and cash equvalents 49,723 45,305
Denvative financial instruments 26 256 469
253,366 218,104
Total assets 849,874 645,183
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 17 100,929 93,499
Borrowings 18 5,147 -
Provisions 19 2,420 2,618
Tax habilties 11,331 11,870
Denvative financial instruments 26 796 126
120,623 108,113
Net current assets 132,743 108,991
Non-current llabilities
Borrowings B 154,866 64,014
Retirement bensfit obligations 28 47,172 32 997
Trade and other payables 20 22,649 13,388
Provisions 19 2,100 2,301
Deferred tax habilities 21 49,197 26,258
275,984 138,958
Total habihities 396,607 247 071
Net assets 453,267 398,112
Equity
Shara capital 22 37,888 37,856
Shara premium account 22,598 22177
Treasury shares (4,534) {4,589)
Capttal redemption reserve 185 185
Hedging and translabion reserve 45,372 29,212
Other reserves (1,484) 1,346
Retaned eamings 353,242 311,905
Shareholders’ funds 453,267 398,112

The financial statements of Halma plc, company number 40832, were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 June 2013

Willams K.J Thompson
ctor Director

Halma plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013 89




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

Hedging
Share Capirtal and
Share Treasury  redemption translation Other Retained
capital shares reserve reserve resenves eamings Total
£000 2000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 2000

At 31 March 2012 37,856 (4,569} 185 29,212 1,346 311,905 398,112
Profit for the year - - - - - - 95,216 95,216
Other comprehensive iIncome and
expense
Exchange differences on transtation of
foreign operations - - - - 16,534 - - 16,534
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension
plans - - - - - - (21,970} {21,970)
Effective portion of changes in farr value of
cash flow hedges - - - - {504) - - (504)
Tax relating to components of other
comprehensive Income - - - - 130 - 4,800 4,930
Total other comprehensive iIncome
and expense - - - - 16,160 - (17,170} {1,010)
Share options exercised 32 421 - - - - - 453
Dwidends paid - - - - - - (37,765) {37,765)
Share-based payments - - - - - {2,835) - {2,835)
Deferred tax on share-based payment
transactions - - - - - 5 - 5
Excess tax deductions related to share-
based payments on exercised options - - - - - - 1,056 1,056
Net movement in treasury shares - - 35 - - - - 35
At 30 March 2013 37,888 22,598 (4,534) 185 45,372 (1,484) 353,242 453,267
At 2 Apnl 2011 37,824 21,744 (5.016) 185 34,511 3,634 262,503 355,385
Profit for the year - - - - - - 86,714 86,714
Other comprehensive iIncome and
expense
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - - 6,707 - - (5,707)
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension
plans - - - - - - (3.024) 3.024)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of
cash flow hedges - - - - 545 - - 545
Tax relating 1o components of other
comprehensive INCome - - - - (137) - 126 {11)
Total other comprehensive Income
and expense - - - - (5.299) - (2,898) 8.197)
Share options exercised 32 433 - - - - - 465
Dividends pard - - - - - - (35,232) {35,232
Share-based payments - - - - - (2,082) - (2,082
Deferred tax on share-based payment
transactions - - - - - (206) - {206)
Excess tax deductions related to share-
based payments on exercised options - - - - - - 818 818
Net movement n treasury shares - - 447 - - - - 447
At 31 March 2012 37,856 22177 {4,569} 185 28,212 1,346 311,806 398,112

Treasury shares are ordinary shares in Halma plc purchased by the Company and held to fulfil the Company’s obligations under the
performance share plan At 30 March 2013 the number of treasury shares held was 1,143,209 (2012 1,404,269) and their market value was
£5,921,823 (2012 £5,344,648) The net movement of treasury shares of £35,000 (2012 £447,000) compnses the purchase of treasury
shares of £5,525,000 {2012 £3,985,000) offset by the transfer to Gther reserves of £5,560,000 (2012 £4,432,000)

The Hedging and translation reserve 1s used to record differences ansing from the retranslation of the financial statements of foreign
operations and the portion of the cumulative net change in the far value of cash flow hedging instruments that are deemed to be an
effective hedge Other than a net charge of £247,000 (2012 income of £127,000}, all amounts at year end relate to translation
movements

The Caprttal redemption reserve was created on repurchase and cancellation of the Company's own shares The Other reserves
represent the provision for the value of the equity-settled share option plans and performance share plan
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52 weaks to 52 weeks to
30 March 31 March
2013 2012
Notes £000 £000
Net cash inflow from operating activities 25 108,244 97,687
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {14,472} {15,196)
Purchase of computer software 12 (1,044) {1.293)
Purchase of other intang:bles 12 9) {46)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 917 1,244
Development costs capitahised 12 (5,/443) {4,718)
Interest receved 195 212
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 24 {145,841} (18 667)
Acquistion of nvestments in associates 14 (3,187) -
Disposal of business, net of cash disposed 29 19,608 3,554
Net cash used in investing activites {149,076) {34,910)
Financing activities
Dndends paid (37,765) {35,232)
Proceeds from issue of share caprtal 453 465
Purchase of treasury shares {5,525) (33,985)
Interest pad {2,502) {1 490)
Loan arrangement fee - {1,903)
Proceeds from borrowings 25 92,208 76,456
Repayment of borrowings 25 (2,942) (94,050)
Net cash from/{used ) financing activities 44,017 {59,739
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 25 3,185 3,038
Cash and cash egurvalents brought forward 45,305 42,610
Exchange adjustments 1,233 (343)
Cash and cash equivalents camed forward 49,723 45,305
2013 2012
£000 £000
Reconcibation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Increass in cash and cash equivalents 3,185 3,038
Cash (inflow)/outflow from {drawdowns)/ repayment of borrowings (89,356) 17,594
Net debt acquired {2,406) (4,144)
Loan notes 1ssued” {2,515) -
Exchange adjustments (489) (1,119)
(91,581) 18,369
Net debt brought forward {18,709) {37.078)
Net debt carmned forward (110,290) {18,709)

* The loan notes were issued on 6 June 2(12 and were convertible at par nto cash at any time between stx and twelve months from date of 1Issue The loan notes were

redeamad on 31 May 2013
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted for use in
the Eurgpean Umon (EU) and therefare comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS legislation and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006
that are applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The financia! staterments have also been prepared in accordance with IFRS
and Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations Commuttee (IFRIC) interpretations 1ssued and effective at the time of prepanng
these accounts

The pnncipal Group accounting policies are explained below and have been appled consistently throughout the years ended
30 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 other than those noted below

The Group accounts have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, except as descrbed below under the heading
‘Denvative financial instruments and hedge accounting’

New standards and interpretations

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations that are potentially relevant to
the Group and which have not been appled i these financial statements were in 1ssue but not yet effective (and in some cases had
not yet been adopted by the EU)

» Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee benefits”

+ IFRS @ “Financial Instruments Classification and measurement” - effective for accounting penods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015

IAS 12 “Income Taxes - Limtted Scope Amendment”

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interest in Other Entiies™

IFRS 13 "Farr Value Measurement”

IAS 27 (amended) “Separate Financial Statements”

IAS 28 {amended) “Investments in Associates and Jomnt Ventures”

IAS 1 {amended) “Presentation of ltems in Other Comprehensive iIncome”

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

IAS 32 {amended) “Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”

IFRS 7 (amended) "Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”
IFRS 10 (amended), IFRS 12 {amended} and IAS 27 (amended) — “Investment Entities”

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations i future penods will have no matenal impact
on the financial statements of the Group, except for the following

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’, which will introduce a number of changes in the presentation of financial nstruments,
IFRS 13 'Far Value Measurement’ which will impact the measurement of farr value of certain assets and habilities,

IAS 1 'Amendments to presentation of Other Comprehensive Income’ which will mpact the presentation of financial statements This
will impact the presentation of vanous items within the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income by requinng the separation of items
that will later be reclassified through the Consolidated Income Statement from those that wall never pass through the Consolidated
Income Statement, and

1AS 19 (as revised n June 2011) 'Employee Benefits' will be adopted by the Group for the financial year commencing 31 March 2013
The interest cost and expected retumn on defined-benefit pension scheme assets used in the previous version of 1IAS 18 are replaced
with a 'net interest' amount, which 1s calculated by applying a discount rate to the net defined benefit lability or asset Furthermore,
IAS 19 (revised) also introduces more extensive disclosures in the presentation of the defined benefit cost, including the separate
disclosure of the scheme's administrative expenses

If IAS 19 (revised) had been applied to these financial statements, the profit for the year would have been approximately £2 million
lower Its adoption for the year to 29 March 2014 15 expected to reduce the profit similarly by approximately £2 milion To aid
companson, In the 29 March 2014 Financial Statements, the 30 March 2013 comparatives will be restated as if IAS 19 (revised)
had applied

Going concern

The Directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, a high level of confidence that despite the current economic
uncertainty the company has the necessary liquid resources to meet its habilites as they fall due and will be able to sustain its
business mode!, strategy and operations and remain solvent for the foreseeable future Thus, the directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis in prepanng these financial statements Further detail 18 contained on page 69

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgments

The preparation of Group accounts in conformity wath IFRS reguires the Directors to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts ¢f assets and liabilities, income and expenses The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on histoncal expenences and vanous other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about carmrying values of assets and habilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates
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The following four areas of key estmation uncertainty and cntical accounting judgment have been wdentfied as having significant nsk of
causing a matenal adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and llabilities in the next financial year

Goodwill impairment

Determining whether goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of cash generating units (CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated In tum, the value n use calculation INvolves an estimation of the present value of future cash flows of CGUs The
future cash flows are based on annual budgets, as approved by the Board, to which the management’s expectation of market-share
and long-term growth rates are applied The present value 1s then calculated based on management’s judgment of future discount
rates The Board reviews these key assumptions (market-share, long-term growth rates, and discount rates) and the sensitivty
analysis around these assumptions Further details are provided in note 11

Defined benefit pension scheme labilities

Detenmining the value of the future defined benefit cbhgation reguires jJudgment in respect of the assumptiens used to calcutate
present values These include future mortality, discount rate, inflation and salary increases Management makes these judgments in
consultation with an independent actuary Details of the judgments made in calculating these transactions are disclosed in note 28

Intangible assets

IFRS 3 {revised) 'Business Combinations’ requires that goodwill ansing on the acquisition of subsidianes 1s capitalised and included in
intangible assets IFRS 3 (revised) also requires the identification of other intangible assets at acquisiion The assumptions involved in
valuing these intangible assets require the use of estmates and Judgements which may differ from the actual outcome These
estmates and judgements cover future growth rates, expected inflation rates and the discount rate used

Contingent consideration

Determining the value of contingent consideration recogrised as part of the acquisition of subsidianes requires assumptions to
determine the expected performance of the acquired business and the amount of contingent consideration that will therefore become
payable Initial estimates of expected performance are made by the Directors responsible for completing the acquisition and form a
key component of the financial due diligence that takes place prior to completion Subsequent measurement of contingent
consideration 1s based on the Directors’ appraisal of the acquired business's performance n the post-acquisition penod with any
required adjustments to the amount payable recogmsed in the Consolidated Income Staterment as required under IFRS 3 Further
details are provided in note 24

Basis of consclidation

The Group accounts include the accounts of Halma plc and its subsichary companies made up to 30 March 2013, adjusted to
eliminate intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses The results of subsidiary companies acquired or discontinued are
included from the month of ther acquisition or to the month of ther discontinuation

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisiion method as at the acquisition date, which 1s the date on which control
15 transferred to the Group The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as

the far value of the consideration transferred, plus

the recognised amount of any non-controling interests in the acquiree, plus

the farr value of the existing equity interest in the acguiree, less

the ret recogmised amount {generally fair value} of the identifiable assets acquired and liabiities assumed

* & 2 @9

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the 1ssue of debt or equity secunites, are expensed as incurred Any
contingent purchase consideration payable 1s recognised at far value at the acquisition date If the contingent purchase consideration
15 classified as equity, it 1S not remeasured and settlement s accounted for within equity  Otherwise, subsequent changes to the far
value of the contingent purchase consideratton are recognised in the Consoldated Income Staternent

For acquisthons between 4 Aprl 2004 (the date from which the financial statements were reported under IFRS) and 2 Apnl 2010,
goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition, including acquisiticn costs and the far value of the net
identifiable assets acquired Goodwill 1s not amortised, but is tested annually for impairment

Goodwill 1s recognised as an intangible asset in the Consclidated Balance Sheet Goodwill therefore includes non-identified intangible
assets including business processes, buyer-specific synergies, know-how and workforce-related industry-specific knowledge and
technical skills Negatve goodwill ansing on acquisitions would be recognised directly in the Consolidated Income Statement On
closure or disposal of an acquired business, goodwill would be taken into account in determining the profit or loss on closure or
disposal
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As permitted by IFRS 1, the Group elected not to apply IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ to acguisitions pnor to 4 Apnl 2004 1n its
consolidated accounts As a result, the net book value of goodwill recognised as an intangible asset under UK GAAP at 3 Apni 2004
was brought forward unadjusted as the cost of goodwilt recognised under IFRS at 4 Apnl 2004 subject to impainment testing on that
date, and goodwill that was wntten off to reserves pnor to 28 March 1998 under UK GAAP will not be taken into account in
determining the profit or loss on disposal or closure of previously acquired businesses from 4 Apnl 2004 onwards

Investments in associates

An associate s an entity over which the Group 1s in a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint cantrol, through
partcipation n the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee Significant influence 1s the power to participate n the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but 1s not In control or joint control over those policies

The results and assets and labilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of
accounting Investments in associates are camed in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the net assets of the associate, less any imparment in the value of ndividual Investments Losses of an associate In excess of
the Group's interest In that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, In substance, form part of the Group's net
Investment in the associate) are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate

Any excess of the cost of acquisihion over the Group's share of the fair values of the identifiable net assets of the associate at the date
of acquisition 1s recognised as goodwill The goodwill 1s Included within the carrying amount of the investment and 1s assessed for
imparment as part of that mvestment Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the Group’s share of the fair values of the
identifiable net assets of the associate at the date of acquisition (1 e discount on acquisition) 15 credited in profit or loss in the penod of
acquisttion

Where a Group company transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the relevant associate Losses may provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred n which case appropnate
provision 18 made for impatrment

Other intangible assets
(a) Product development costs
Research expenditure 1s wntten off m the financial year in which it 1s incurred

Development expenditure is wntten off in the financtal year in which it 1s incurred, unless It relates to the development of a new or
substantially improved product, I1s incurred after the technical feasibility and economic viability of the product has been proven and the
decision to complete the development has been taken, and can be measured reliably Such expenditure 1s capitaiised as an intangble
asset in the Consoldated Balance Sheet at cost and 1s amortised through the Consolidated Income Statement on a straight-line basis
over its estimated economic Iife of three years

(b) Acquired intangible assets

An mtangible resource acquired with a subsidiary undertaking I1s recognised as an intangible asset If it 1s separable from the acquired
business or anses from contractual or legal nghts, 1s expected to generate future economic benefits and its far value

can be measured reliably Acquired intangible assets, compnsing trademarks and customer relationships, are amortised through

the Consolidated Income Statement on a straight-line basis over therr estimated economic Iives of between three and 10 years

(c) Computer software

Computer software that 1s not integral to an item of property, plant or equipment Is recognised separately as an intangible asset, and
1s amortised through the Consolidated Income Statement on a straight-ine basis over its estmated econornic life of between three
and five years

(d) Other intangibles
Other intangibles are amortised through the Consolidated Income Statement on a straight-ine basis over therr estmated economic
Iives of between three and five years

Impairment of non-current assets

All non-current assets are tested for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that thewr carrying value may be imparred
Additionally, goodwill and capitalised development expenditure relating to a product that 1s not yet in full production are subyect to an
annual mpatrment test

An imparment loss 1s recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement to the extent that an asset’s carrying value exceeds its
recoverable amount, which represents the hugher of the asset's net realisable value and 1its value in use An asset's value In use
represents the present value of the future cash flows expected to be denved from the asset or from the cash generating unit to which
it relates The present value is calculated using a discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money
and the nsks specific to the asset concerned

Impairment losses recognised In previous penods for an asset other than goodwill are reversed if thera has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the camying amount of the asset does not
exceed its carrying amount had no impairment 10ss been recognised In previous penods Imparrment losses in respect of goodwill are
not reversed
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Segmental reporting

An operating segment 1s a distinguishable component of the Group that 1s engaged in business actwittes from which t may eam
revenues and incur expenses, and whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (the Chief
Executive Officer) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrets financial Inforrmation 1s available

Reportable segments are operating segments that either meet the thresholds and condiions set out in IFRS 8 or are considered

by the Board to be appropnately designated as reportable segments Segment result represents operating profits and includes

an allocation of head office expenses Segment result excludes tax and financing items Segment assets compnse goodwill, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment {excluding land and buildings), inventones, trade and other recewvables Segment
habilites compnse trade and other payables, provisions and other payables Unallocated items represent land and builldings, corporate
and deferred taxation balances, defined benefit scheme labiities, contingent purchase consideration, all components of net
cashvborrowings and denvative financial instruments

Foreign currencies

The Group presents its accounts in Sterling Transactons in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates
prevaling at that date Any gan or loss ansing from subsequent exchange rate movements 1s ncluded as an exchange gamn or loss in
the Consolidated Income Statement

Net assets of overseas subsidiary companies are expressed in Sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the financial year,
and trading results and cash flows at the average rates of exchange for the financiat year Goadwill anising on the acquisition of a
foreign business ts freated as an asset of the foreign entity and 1s translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the financial
year Exchange gans or losses ansing on these translations are taken to the Hedging and translation reserve within Shareholders'
funds

In the event that an overseas subsidiary 1s disposed of or closed, the profit or loss on disposal or closure will be determined
after taking into account the cumulative translation difference hetd within the Hedging and translation reserve attnbutable to
that subsidiary As permitted by IFRS 1, the Group has elected to deem the Hedging and translation to be £nil at 4 Apnl 2004
Accordingly, the profit or loss on disposal or closure of foreign subsidianes will not include any currency translation differences
which arose before 4 Apnl 2004

Denvative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Group enters into denvative financial Instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate nsk using forward exchange
contracts Further detalls of denvative financial nstruments are disclosed in note 26

Denvative financial nstruments are classified as far value through profit and loss (held for trading) unless they are in a designated
hedge relationstup

Denvatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a denvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently re-measured to
therr far value at each balance sheet date The resulting gam or loss 18 recognised in the Consoldated Income Staterment, unless the
denvative 1s designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the tming of the recognition in the Consolidated Income
Statement depends on the nature of the hedge relationship The Group designates certain denvatives as hedges of highly probable
forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency nsk of fim commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in
foreign operations

A denvative with a positive farr value 15 recognised as a financial asset whereas a denvative with a negative fair value is recognised as a
financial labdity A denvative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current ability f the remaining matunty of the instrument is
mare than 12 months and it 1s not expected to be realsed or settled wathin 12 months Other denvatives are presented as current
assets or current kabiiities

Cash flow hedge accounting
The Group desighates certain hedging instruments as cash flow hedges

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging mstrument and the hedged
item, along with its nsk management objectrves and its strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactions Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument has been or 1s expected to be
highly effective In offsetting changes in far values or cash flows of the hedged tem

Note 26 sets out details of the far values of the denvative instruments used for hedging purposes and the movements in the hedging
reserve In equity

The effective portion of changes In the farr value of denvatives that are designated and qualdy as cash flow hedges 1s recognised in
Cther comprehensive income The gain or loss relating to the ineffective porbion as a result of being over hedged 1s recognised
mmmediately in Consolidated Income Statement

Amounts previously recogrised in Other comprehensive income and accumulated In equity are reclassiied to the Consolidated
Income Statement in the penods when the hedged item 1s recognised in the Consolidated Income Statermant However, when the
forecast transaction that 1s hedged results in the recogrition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial hability, the gains and losses
previousty accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial
asset or non-financial labdity

Halma pk: Annual Report and Accounts 2013 a5




ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONTINUED

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold,
terminated or exercised, or no longer qualfies for hedge accounting Any gain or loss recognised it Other comprehensive income at
that time 1s accumulated 1n equity and 1s recognised, when the forecast transaction 1s ullimately recognised, in the Consclidated
Income Statement When a forecast transaction s no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity 1s recognised
immediately in the Consolidated Income Statement

Net investment hedge accounting

The Group uses Swiss Franc denominated borrowings as a hedge aganst the translation exposureg on the Group’s net nvestment n
overseas companies Where the hedge 1s fully effective at hedging the vanabiity in the net assets of such companies caused by
changes in exchange rates, the changes in value of the borrowings are recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
accumulated in the Hedging and translation reserve The ineffective part of any change in value caused by changes in exchange rates
1s recognised In the Consolidated Income Statement

Revenue

Revenue represents sales, less returns, by subsidiary companies to external customers excluding value added tax and other sales
refated taxes Transactions are recorded as revenue when the delivery of products or performance of services takes place in
accordance with the contracted terms of sale

Revenue on long term contracts 1s recognised while the contracts are in progress Revenue 1s recognised proportionally to the stage
of completion of the contract, based on the far value of goods and services provided to date, taking into account the sign-off of
milestone delivery by customers When it 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss 15
recognised as an expense immediately

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment i1s stated at histonical cost less provisions for mparment and depreciation which, with the exception of
freehold land which 1s not depreciated, 1s provided on a straight-hne basis over each asset's estimated economic Ife The pnncipal
annual rates used for this purpose are

Freghold property 2%

Leasehold properties

Long leases (more than 50 years unexpired) 2%

Short leases {less than 50 years unexpired) Pencd of lease

Plant, equipment and vehicles 8% to 33'/2%
Leases

Leases that confer nghts and obligations similar to those that attach to owned assets are classified as finance leases, of which the
Group has none All other leases are classified as operating leases

Operating lease rentals, and any incentives receivable, are charged to the Consoldated Income Statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease term

Pensions
The Group makes contnbutions to vanous pension schemes, covenng the majonty of its employees

For defined benefit schemes, the asset or hability recorded in the balance sheet 1s the difference between the far value of the
scheme's assets and the present value of the defined obligation at that date The defined benefit obligation 1s calculated separately for
each scheme on an annual basis by independent actuanes using the projected unit credit method

Actuanal gains and losses are recognmised in full In the penod in which they occur, and are taken to Other comprehensive income

Current and past service costs, along with the impact of any settiements or cuntalments, are charged to the Consolidated income
Statement Interest on pension plans’ habiities are recognised within finance expense and the expected return on the schemes’
assets are recognised within finance income in the Consolidated Income Statement

Contnbutions to defined contribution schemss are charged 1o the Consolidated Income Statement when they fall due

Employee share schemes
Share-based incentives are prowided to employees under the Group's share incentve ptan, the share option plans and the
performance share plan

{(a) Share incentive plan

Awards of shares under the share incentive plan are made to qualifying employees depending on salary and service cntena The
shares awarded under this plan are purchased in the market by the plan’'s trustees at the time of the award, and are then held i trust
for a mimmum of three years The costs of this plan are recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement over the three-year vesting
penods of the awards
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(b) Share option plans

All grants of options under the 1999 company share option plan are equity settled, and so, as pemmitted by IFRS 1, the prowvisions of
IFRS 2 'Share-Based Payment” have been applied only to options awarded on or after 7 November 2002 which had not vested at 3
Apnl 2005

The fair value of awards under this plan has been measured at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model and will not

be subsequently remeasured The far value 1s charged to the Consolidated Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected vesting penod, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will ultmately vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions The corresponding credit 1s to Shareholders' funds

No further awards will be made under the share option plan

{c) Performance share plan
On 3 August 2005 the share option plan was replaced by the performance share plan

Awards under this plan are partly equity-settled and partly cash-settled, and are subject to both market based and non-market based
vesting cntena

The far value of the equity-settled portion at the date of grant s established by using an appropnate simulation method to reflect

the Ikellhood of market-based performance conditions being met The fair value s charged to the Consolidated Income Statement on
a straight-line basis over the vesting penod, with appropnate adjustments being made dunng this penod to reflect expected and actual
forfeitures ansing from the non-market based performance conditions onty The corresponding credit I1s to Shareholders' funds

For the cash-settled porticn, a liability equal to the portion of the services received is recognised at the current farr value determmed at
each balance sheet date

Inventores

Inventones and work in progress are included at the lower of cost and net realisable value Caostis calculated either on a ‘first In,

first out’ or an average cost basis and includes direct matenals and the appropnate proportion of production and other overheads
considered by the Directors to be attnbutable to bonging the mventones to therr location and condition at the year end Nel realisable
value represents the estimated selling pnce less all estimated costs to complete and costs to be incurred i1 marketing, selling and
distnbution

Provisions
Prowistons are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive} as a resuit of a past event, it 1s probable that
the Group wil be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbligation

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration reguired to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date, taking nto account the nsks and uncertainties surrounding the cbligation Where a prowsion 1s measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carying amount 1s the present value of the cash flows

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a thrd party, a recevable
1S recognised as an asset If it 1s virtually certain that remmbursement will be received and the amount of the recevable
can be measured reliably

Operating profit
Operating profit 1s stated after charging restructunng costs but before the share of results of associates, investment income and
finance costs

Taxation

Taxaton compnses current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement except to the extent that it
relates to tems recognised drrectly in Shareholders' funds, in which case it too 1s recogrised in Sharsholders’ funds Current tax is the
expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or subsequently enacted at the balance sheet date,
along with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
Consolidated Income Statement because 1t excludes items that are never taxable or deductible

Deferred tax 1s provided on tempcerary differences between the carying amounts of assets and habiliies for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet labdity method, apart from the
following differences which are not provided for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the iniial recognition of assets or habilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to Investments in subsidianes to the extent they will probably
not reverse In the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of reahsation or
settlement of the carmying amounts of assets and habilites, using tax rates and laws, which are expected to apply in the penod when
the hability 1s settled or the asset I1s realised Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that recovery ts probable

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances, deposits with an wrutial matunty of less than three months, and bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand

Dividends
Dmdends payable to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a hability in the penod in which the distnbution 1s approved
by the Company's shareholders
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 Segmental analysis
Sector analysis

The Group has four main reportable segments (Process Safety, Infrastructure Safety, Medical and Environmental & Analysis),
which are defined by markets rather than product type Each segment includes businesses with similar operating and marketing

charactenstics These segments are consistent with the ntemal reporting as reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer

In the current year the reportable segments have been rewised to provide greater understanding of the Group’s actvities

The man change from the pnor year 1$ separating the former Health & Analysis sector into two sectors, namely the Medical
and Environmental & Analysis sectors This separation reflects the Group's growing presence in the medical devices market,
n particular in ophthalmology and blood pressure monitonng The Process Safety and Infrastructure Safety sectors, (formerly named

Industnal Safety and Infrastructure Sensors respectively) are unchanged Pnor year results have been restated to reflect

the revised reportable segments

Segment revenue and results

Revenue (al continuing operations)

{Restated)

52 woeks to 52 weeks to

30 March 31 March

2013 2m2

£000 £000

Process Satety 125,656 122,240
Infrastructure Safety 205,315 204,280
Medical 136,054 100,361
Environmental & Analysis 152,448 153,351

Inter-segrmental sales (263) (349)
Revenue for the year 619,210 579,883

Inter-segmental sales are charged at prevailing market pnces and have not been disclosed separately by segment as they are
not considered matenal The Group does not analyse revenue by product group and has ne matenial revenue derived from the

rendering of services

Profit (all contnuing operations)

(Restaled)
52 woeks to 52 weeks
30 March to 31 March
2013 202
£000 F£O00
Segment profit before allocation of amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition costs
and profit on disposal of continuing operations
Process Safety 32,310 29,226
Infrastructure Safety 41,759 39,009
Medical 35,034 26,252
Environmental & Analysis 30,385 31,596
140,388 126,173
Segment profit after allocation of amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition costs*
and profit on disposal of continuing operations
Process Safety 39,848 28,627
Infrastructure Safety 41,705 39,276
Medical 24,148 21,058
Environmental & Analysis 26,282 28,721
Segment profit 131,981 117,682
Central administration costs (5,896) (4.266)
Net finance expense (3,831) {1.442)
Group profit before taxation 122,254 111,974
Taxation (27,038) {25,260
Profit for the year 95,216 86,714

* Acquistion COSts comphse transactions costs and adustments 1o contingent consideration

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies For acquisitions after

3 Apnl 2010, acquisition transaction costs and movement on contingent consideration are recogrused in the Consolidated Income
Statemment Segment profit, before these acquisihion costs, the amortisation of acquired intangible assets and the profit on disposal of
continuing operations ts disclosed separately above as this 1s the measure reported to the Chef Executive Officer for the purpose of

allocation of resources and assessment of segment performance
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The amorbisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition transaction costs, movenent on cantingent consideration (including any
ansing from foreign exchange revaluation} and profit on disposal of continuing operations are analysed as follows

2013
Acquisition costs
Total Disposal of
Amortisation Adjustments amortisation continuing
of acquired Transaction to contingent charge and operations
Intangibles costs  consideration acquisition costs {note 29) Total
€000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Process Safety (602) - {16) (618) 8,156 7,538
Infrastructure Safety - (54) - {54) - (54)
Medical (9,947) {2,272) 517 (11,702) (88) (11,788)
Environmental & Analysis (3.686) {417) - (4,103} - {4,103)
Total Group (14,235) {2,743) 501 (16,477) 8,070 {8,407)
The transaction costs manly arose on the acquisitions in note 24 of SunTech Medical Group Limited (£848,000), MicroSurgical
Technology, Inc {£851,000}, Sensorex Corporation {£298,000), Thinketron Preaision Equipment Company Limited (£246,000),
Accutome, Inc {£216,000) and ASL Holdings, Lirmited (£119,000)
{Restated)
2012
Acquisiion costs
Total
Amortisation Adjustments amorbisation Dvsposal of
of acquired Transaction to contingent charge and continuing
intangibles costs consideration acquisition costs operations Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Process Safety (548) {51} - (599) - {599)
Infrastructure Safety - - 177 177 - 177
Medical {7.599) {409) (729) {8,737) 3,543 5,194)
Environmental & Analysis (2.205) (258) (412) {2,875) - {2,875)
Total Group (10,352} (718} (964) (12 034) 3,543 {8,491)
Segment assets and habilities
Assets Liabulities
(Restated} (Restated)
Befora goodwill, interests in assoaiates and acqured ntangibla assets 2013 2012 2013 2012
are allocated 1o specific segment assetsAabilities £000 £000 £000 £000
Process Safety 47,960 49,376 17,451 20,513
Infrastructure Safety 86,401 77,261 28,933 29,304
Med:cal 55,473 33,272 18,452 9,729
Environmental & Analysis 67,066 61,661 24,003 21,289
Total segment assets/liabilities excluding goodwill, interests in associates
and acquired intangible assets 256,900 221,570 88,839 80,835
Goodwill 351,785 287471 - -
Interests in associates 4,792 1968 - -
Acquired intangible assets 119,951 61082 - -
Total segment assets/liabilities including goodwill, interests in associates
and acquired intangible assets 733,428 552,091 688,839 80.835
Assats Liabiities
(Restated) (Restated)
After goodwill interests In associates and acquired ntangible assets 2013 2012 2013 2012
are affocated to spectiic segment assetshabilites 2000 £000 £000
Process Safety 67,978 77,234 17,451 20,518
Infrastructure Safety 168,064 157,577 28,933 29,304
Medical 301,256 162,736 18,452 9,729
Emaronmental & Analysis 196,130 154 544 24,003 21,289
Total segment assets/habilihes including goodwall
and acquired intangible assets 733,428 552,091 88,839 80.835
Cash and cash equnvalents/bormrowings 49,723 45,305 160,013 64,014
Dervative financial instruments 256 469 796 126
Other unaltocated assets/habilities 66,467 47,318 146,959 102,096
Total Group 849,874 645,183 396,607 247071
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1 Segmental analysis continued

Segment assets and habihtes, excluding the allocation of goodwaill, iInterests N associates and acquired intangible assets, have been
disclosed separately above as this 1s the measure reported to the Chief Executive Officer for the punpose of monitonng segment
performance and allocating resources between segments Other unallocated assets include land and buidings and tax assets, and
unallocated habilities include contingent purchase consideration, retirement benefit provisions and tax labiities

Other segment information

Additons to non-cument assets Depreciation and amortisation

(Restated) {Restated)

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000 £000 F£000 £000

Process Safety 3,692 12,813 3,942 4,522
Infrastructure Safety 7,701 7,148 5,697 5,494
Medical 122,431 2,565 12,727 9,884
Environmental & Analysis 40,908 19,369 8,885 7.003
Total segment additions/depreciation and amortisahion 174,732 41,893 31,251 27,003
Unallocated 294 978 648 666
Total Group 175,026 42 872 31,899 27,669

Non-current asset addittons compnse acquired and purchased goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
There were no Impairment losses incurred dunng the year (2012 £nil)

Geographical information
The Group's revenue from external customers {by location of customer) and its non-current assets by gecgraphical location are
detailed below

Revenue by destnation Non-current assets

2013 202 2013 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

United States of Amenca 194,990 161,951 68,765 40,021
Maimnland Europe 151,631 154,428 28,115 26,682
United Kingdom 115,575 125,613 466,006 345,480
Asia Pacific 100,532 87,277 4,803 3,792
Afnica, Near and Middle East 31,380 27,750 - -
Other countnes 25,102 22,864 70 65
619,210 579,883 567,759 416,040

* Formmerly Asia Pacific and Austratasia
Non-current assets compnse gocdwill, other intangible assets, investments in associates and property, plant and equipment

Information about major customers
The Group had no revenue from a single custormer, which accounts for more than 2% of the Group's revenue

2 Earnings per ordinary share

Basic earnings per ordinary share are calculated using the weighted average of 377,597,126 shares n 1ssue dunng the year {net of
shares purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares) (2012 376,926,013) Diluted earmings per ordinary share are
calculated using the weighted average of 378,009,506 shares (2012 377,473,142), which mcludes dilutive potential ordinary shares
of 412,380 (2012 547,129) Dilutve potential ordinary shares are calculated from those exercisable share options where the exercise
pnce 15 less than the average price of the Company's ordinary shares dunng the year

Adjusted earnings are calculated as earmings from continuing operations excluding the amortisation of acquired intangible assets,
acquisition transaction costs, movement on contingent consideration and profit on disposal of continuing operations after tax The
Directors consider that adjusted eamings represent a more consistent measure of underlying performance A reconctiation of earnings
and the effect on basic eamings per share figures I1s as follows

Per ordinary share
2013 2012 2013 2012
€000 £000 pence pence
Earnings from continuing operations 95,216 86,714 2522 230
Add back amortisation of acquired intangible assets {after tax) 9,978 7,561 264 200
Acquisthion transaction costs (after tax) 2,252 691 0 60 018
Adjustments to contingent considerahon (after tax) (385) 786 {010) 021
Profit on disposal of continuing operations {after tax) (8,070) (3.643) {2 14) (0 94)
Adjusted eammgs 98,991 92,209 26 22 24 46
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The Board uses certain non-GAAP measures to help it efiectively monitor the performance of the Group These measures include
Retun on Capital Employed, Retum on Total Invested Capital, Orgaric growth, Adjusted operating profit and Adjusted operating

cashflow

Return on Capital Employed

213 2012

£000 £000
Operating profit before amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition transaction costs
and movement on contingent consideration, but after share of results of associates 134,492 121,807
Computer software costs within intangible assets 2,383 2,678
Captalised development costs within intangible assets 11,977 10,508
Other intangibles within intangble assets 146 215
Property, plant and equipment 76,725 72,118
Inventones 69,713 57,368
Trade and other recenvables 133,605 114,674
Trade and other payables {100,929) {93,499)
Prowisions {2,420) {2,618)
Net tax habilties (11,262) {11,582)
Non-current trade and other payables {22,649) {13,388)
Non-current provisions (2,100) {2,301)
Add back contingent purchase consideration 33,512 29,110
Caprtal employed 188,701 163,283
Retum on Capital Employed 713% 74 7%

Return on Total Invested Capital

2013 2012

£000 £000
Post-tax profit before amortisation of acquired ntangible assets, acquisition transaction costs,
movement on contingent consideration and profit on disposal of continuing operations 98,991 92,209
Total shareholders’ funds 453,267 398,112
Add back retirement benefit obligations 47,172 32,997
Less associated deferred tax assets {10,851) {7,920}
Cumutative amortisation of acquired intangibles 46,150 36,306
Histone adustments to goodwill® 89,549 89,549
Total invested capital 625,287 549,044
Return on Total Invested Capital 15 8% 16 8%

* Includes goodwill amortised pnor to 3 Apnl 2004 and goodwill talken 1o resarves
Organic growth

Organic growth measures the change In revenue and profit from continuing Group operations The effect of acquisiions and disposals
made dunng the pnor financial year, and acquistions made in the current financial year has been equalised by adjusting the current
year results for a pro-rated contnbutions based on ther revenues and profits before taxation at the dates of acquisition and disposal
The results of disposals made in the prior financial year have been removed from the pnor year reported revenue and profit before

taxation Organic growth has been calculated as follows

Revenua Profit before taxation
2013 2012 % 2013 2012 %
£000C £000 growth £000 £000 growth
Continuing operations 619,210 579,883 130,661 120,465
Acquired revenue/profit (37,941) (11,394) {6,933) {1,633}
581,269 568,489 22% 123,728 118,832 41%

* Before amortisation of acquired intangible assets acquishion transaction costs, movemnent on contingent conssderation and profit on disposal

of continuing operations
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3 Non-GAAP measures continued

Adjusted operating profit
2013 2012
£000 £000
Operating profnt 118,367 109,910
Add back
Acqguisition costs and contingent consideration farr valus adjustments 2,242 1682
Amortisation of acquisiton-related intangible assets 14,235 10,352
Adjusted operating profit 134,844 121944
Adjusted operating cash flow
2013 2012
£000 £000
Net cash from operating activities (note 25) 108,244 97,687
Add back
Taxes paid 25,452 27772
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 917 1,244
Less
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (14,472) {15,196)
Purchase of computer software and other intangbles {1,053) (1,339)
Development costs capitaksed {5,443) 4,718)
Adjusted operating cash flow 113,645 105,450
Cash conversion % (adjusted operating cash flow/adjusted operating profit) 84% 86%
4 Finance income
2013 2012
£000 £o00
Interest recevable 195 212
Expected return on penston scheme assets 8,769 9,529
8,964 9,741
Fair value movement on denwvative financial instruments - 329
8,964 10.070
5 Finance expense
2013 2012
£000 javeil
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 2,366 1,383
Ameortisation of finance costs 634 282
Interest charge on pension scheme liabilities 9,239 9,684
Other interest payable 20 107
12,329 11,456
Fair value movement on denvative financial instruments 384 -
Unwinding of discount on provisions 82 56
12,785 11,612

102 Halma plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013




Overview 02-09

Business review 10-59

Govermnance 60-686

Financial statements 87147

6 Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation compnses

(Restated)
2013 2012
£000 £000
Revenua 619,210 579,883
Direct matenals/direct labour (223,050) {211,925)
Production overhead (74,654) (73.080)
Selling costs (77,348) {72 0B9)
Distnbution costs (13,690) {11,812)
Administrative expenses {112,101) (101,087)
Operating profit 118,367 109,910
Share of results of associates (352) (37
Profit on disposal of continuing operations 8,070 3,543
Net finance expense (3,831) (1,442)
Profit before taxation 122,254 111,974

Included within administrative expenses are the amortisation of acquired intangible assets and acquisiion costs

The presentation of the profit before taxation note, and headings within operating profit, have been rewised from the prior year as part
of the Group's continuous appraisal of its financial reporting The change has been made to ensure comparabty with industry best
practice, to give the most useful and reliable measure of the Group’s performance, and to present the mformation in a manner

consistent with the Group’s internal reporting

Profit before taxation 1s stated after charging/{crediting)

Depreciation

Amortisation

Research and development™
Foreign exchange (ganjloss
Profit on disposal of opérations

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and computer software
Cost of inventongs recognised as an expense

Staff costs [note 7)
Audttors' remuneration

Operating lease rents

2013 2012
£000 £000
12,684 12,178
19,215 15,491
25,633 22,706
{901) 1,085
{8,070} {3,543)
(163) {485}
284,269 289,675
164,862 154,432
Audit senaices to the Company 142 126
Audit of the company's subsidianes 598 534
Total audtt fees 740 660
Intenm agreed upon procedures 20 27
Tax compliance services 27 19
Tax achasory services 225 120
Other services 21 K
Total non-audit fees 293 197
Audit of Group pension plan 14 13
Total tees 1,047 870
Property 7,679 6,661
Other 915 8i8

* Afurther £5 443,000 {2012 £4,718,000) of development costs has been capriaised n the year See note 12
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7 Employee information
The average number of persons employed by the Group {including Directors) was

2013 2092
Number Number
United States of Amenca 1,439 1,285
Mainland Eurcpe 792 722
United Kingdom 1,751 1,745
Asia Pacric 27 5%
Other counines 7 4
4,716 4,347

Group employee costs compnse
2013 2012
£000 £000
Wages and salanes 136,120 127,255
Social secunty costs 19,510 18,847
Pension costs (note 28} 5,580 4,975
Share-based payment charge (note 23) 3,642 3,355
164,862 154,432

8 Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration of the Directors 1s set out on pages 73 to 82 within the Rermuneration report descnbed as being audited and forms

part of these financial statements

Directors’ remuneration comprses

2013 2012

£000 £000
Wages, salanes and fees 2,686 2,457
Pension costs 47 45
Share-based payment charge 989 1,035

3,722 3,537
9 Taxation

2013 2012

£000 £000
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 24% {2012 26%) 8,081 9,021
Overseas taxation 19,046 15,635
Adjustments in respect of pnor years {178) 753
Total current tax charge 26,949 25,409
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of timing differences (40) 362
Adjustments in respect of pnor years 129 511)
Total deferred tax charge/(credit) 89 (149)
Total tax charge recogmsed in the Consolidated Income Statement 27,038 25,260
Reconaihation of the effective tax rate
Profit befora tax 122,254 111,974
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 24% (2012 26%) 29,941 29,113
Oversaas tax rate differences 5413 3,574
Permanent differences (7.667) (7,669)
Adjustments in respect of pnor years (49) 242

27,038 25,260

Effectve tax rate (after amortisation of acquired Intangible assets, acguwsition transachon costs,
movement on contingent consideration and profit on disposal of continuing operations) 221% 22 6%
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9 Taxation continued

213 2012
£000 £O00
Profit before tax* 130,661 120,465
Total tax charge” 31,670 28,256
Effectve tax rate” 24 2% 23 5%

Batora amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisiion transaction costs movemnent on contingent consideration and profit on disposal of continuing operations
In addrtion to the amount charged 1o the Consolidated Income Statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been recogrised

direcily n the Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

2013 2012
£000 £000
Deferred tax {note 21)
Retrement beneiit obhgations {4,800) {126}
Shart-term timing differences (130} 137
{4,930) 1"

In addition to the amounts charged to the Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure, the following amounts relating to tax have been recogrised directly in equity

2013 2012
£000 £000
Current tax
Excess tax deductions related to share-based payments on exercised options 1,056 818
Deferred tax (note 21}
Change in estimated excess tax deductions related to share-based payments 5 (206)
1,061 612
10 Dividends
Per ordinary share
2013 2012 2013 2012
pence pence £000 £000
Amounts recognised as distnbutions to shareholders in the year
Final dvidend for the year to 31 March 2012 (2 Apnl 2011) 595 556 22,425 20,934
Intenm dividend for the year to 30 March 2013 (31 March 2012} 408 379 15,340 14,298
1001 935 37,765 35,232
Dividends declared in respect of the year
Intenm dmdend for the year to 30 March 2013 (31 March 2012) 4 06 379 15,340 14,298
Proposed final dvdend for the year to 30 March 2013 (31 March 2012) 6.37 595 24,069 22 425
10 43 974 39,409 36,723

The proposed final dvidend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 25 July 2013 and has not been

included as a hability in these financial statements

11 Goodwill
2013 2012
£000 £000
Cost
At beginning of year 267,471 259,954
Additions (note 24) 82,159 10,708
Disposals {note 28} (8,009) -
Exchange adjustments 10,164 {3,191)
At end of year 351,785 267,471
Provision for impairment
At beginning and end of year - -
Carrying amounts 351,785 267,471

The Group 1dentriies cash generating units {CGUs) at the operating company level as this represents the lowest level at which cash
flows are largely independent of other cash flows Goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s allocated, at acquisition, to the

groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business combination
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11 Goodwill continued
Following the rewmsion to the Group's reportable segments described in note 1, goodwill has been re-allocated to ten CGU groupings
within the new segments This Is to reflect

a} the changing composition of the businesses within the Group,

b) companies increasingly collaborating and shanng resources,

¢} the evotving markets in which the businesses operate and the long term growth drnivers exhibited in those markets, and

d) the way that the Directors make decisions about continuing or disposing of ines of business

In the pror year goodwill was allocated to 13 CGU groupings

In the current year, the Group disposed of both businesses compnsing the Asset Monitonng CGU grouping (see note 29), and
aggregated the Doors, Secunty and Elevator CGUs into a single CGU grouping

Before recognition of any imparrment losses, the carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated as follows

{Restated)
2013 2012
£000 £000
Process Safety
Gas Dstection - -
Bursting Discs 7.620 7239
Safety Intertocks 7,609 7.466
Asset Monitonng - 8,000
15,229 22,714
Infrastructure Safety
Fire 11,675 11350
Ooors, Secunty & Eievators 69,688 68,966
81,663 80,316
Medical
Health Cptics 123,123 67 811
Fud Technology 33,749 29,949
156,872 97,760
Environmental & Anatysis
Water 27,929 11,592
Photonics 57,855 55,089
Envircnmental Monrtonng 12,237 -
98,021 66,681
Total Group 351,785 267.471

Goodwill values have been tested for mpairment by companng them against the value in use in perpetuity of the relevant CGUs The
value in use calculations were based on projected cash flows, denved from the latest budget approved by the Board, discounted at
the Group's pre-tax estimated short-term discount rate to calculate ther net present value

The re-allocation of goodwill descnbed above did not have an impact on the outcome of impaiment testing, which was cammed out
using a methodology censistent with pnor penods

Key assumptions used in ‘value in use’ calculations
The calculation of 'value In use’ 15 Most sensitive N all cases to the following assumptions

* Discount rates,
« Market share dunng the budget penod for the financial year to March 2014, and
« Growth rates used to extrapolate nsk adjusted cash flows beyond the budget penod

Discount rates are based on estmations of the assumptions that market participants operating in similar sectors to Halma would
make, using the Group's economic profile as a starting point and adjusting appropnately The Directors do not currently expect any
signficant change in the present base discount rate of 10 51% (2012 10 23%) The base discount rate, which 1s pre-tax and 1s based
on short-term vanables, may differ from the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) used in long-term retum measures such as
ROTIC Discount rates are calculated for each CGU, reflecting the size of each business and spectic geographic and industry factors,
resulting in the IMpaiment testing using discount rates ranging from 9 36% to 14 59% (2012 10 75% to 12 98%})

Market share assumptons are important because, as well as the growth rates {as noted below}, management assess how each unit's
relative posiion to its competitors might change over the budget pencd Management expects each unit's pesition to be stable over
the projected penod

Growth rate estimates of respectively 3 25% and 2 50% for the first and second year onwards into perpetuity following the budget
year are based on management estimates keeping in view past perforrmance growth

Sensitivity to changes in assumphions
Management believes that no reasonable potential change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value
of any unit to exceed its recoverable amount
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12 Other intangible assets
Acquired intangibles
Internally
generated
Customer Trademarks capiaised
and supplier Technical brands and development Computer Other
relationsheps’ know-how? patents? Total cOosts software intangbles* TFotat
Cost
At 2 Apnl 2011 59,303 - 28,190 87,493 24,867 9,032 368 121 760
Assets of businesses acguired 8,995 - 984 9,979 - <] - 9,988
Assets of business sold - - - - {774) (137) - (911)
Addhons at cost - - - - 4,718 1293 46 6,057
Disposals and retrements - - - - (1) {221) - (222)
Exchange adjustments 361 - {445) (84} (224) {70} 4 (374)
At 31 March 2012 68,659 - 28,729 97,388 28,586 9,906 418 136,298
Transfer between category 313 7,429 {7.742) - - - - -
Assets of businesses acquired
(note 24) 48,392 6,790 13,888 69,070 - 50 - 69,120
Assets of businesses sold {3,632) {1,793) - (5,425) (680) (368) - {6,473)
Additions at cost - - - - 5443 1,044 6,496
Disposals and retirements - - - - 917 (427) - {1,404)
Exchange adjustments 3,557 489 1,022 5,068 444 243 21 5,776
At 30 March 2013 117,289 12,915 35,897 166,101 32,816 10,448 448 209,813
Accumulated amortisation
At 2 Apnl 2011 16,276 - 10,366 26,642 15,214 6,298 116 48,270
Charge for the year 7,192 - 3,160 10,352 3,734 1319 86 15,491
Disposals and retirements - - - - (774) {131) - {908)
Reclassification of category* - - - - {1 {219) - (220)
Exchange adjustments {366) - {322) (688) 95) {39 1 (821)
At 31 March 2012 23,102 - 13,204 36,306 18,078 7,228 203 61,815
Transfer between category 250 5,377 {5,627) - - - - -
Charge for the year 9,705 1,233 3,297 14,235 3,493 1,402 85 19,215
Assets of businesses sold (3,632) {1,793) - {5,425) {337 (328) - {8,090)
Disposals and retirements - - - - {713) (409) - (1,122)
Exchange adjustments 657 160 217 1,034 318 172 14 1,538
At 30 March 2013 30,082 4,977 11,091 46,150 20,839 8,065 302 75,356
Carrying amounts
At 30 March 2013 87,207 7,938 24,806 119,951 11,977 2,383 146 134,457
At 31 March 2012 45,557 - 15,525 61,082 10,508 2,678 215 74,483

! Customer and supplier relatonship assets are amorised over ther useful economic lives esumated 10 be between three and ten years

2 Techmcal know how assets are amortised over ther useful economic Ives estimated to be between three and ten years
? Trademarks, brands and patents (which include protected ntellectual property) are amortised over therr useful economic lives estimated to be between eight

and ten years

* Other intangibles compnsa kcense and product registration costs amortised over their useful economic lives estimated to be between three and five years

In the cument year acquired intangibles have been presented under three headings in order to show significant groups of assets by
class, according to ther expected useful ives and the manner in which the assets are expected to be used The additicnal disclosure
1s reflective of the significant additions made to acquired intangibles in the current year The useful Ives of brought-forward assets
transferred between categones have not been revised as these transiers have been made solely for the purpose of mproving the
presentation of the informatron provided
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13 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings Plant
Long Short equipment
Freehokd leases leases and vehwdles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 2 Apnl 2011 35,840 2,293 5,834 109,980 154,047
Assets of businesses acquired - - 35 888 923
Assets of business sold {269) (19) - {1,581) (1.869)
Addttions at cost 167 128 673 14,228 15,196
Disposals and retrements - (35) {393) (8,263) (8 691)
Reclassification of category - a0 10 (100) -
Exchange adjustments (428) 7 4 (964) (1,4085)
At 31 March 2012 35,310 2,440 6,263 114,188 158,201
Assets of businesses acquired (note 24) - 111 19 2,649 2,779
Assets of business sold - - - (3,276) (3,276)
Addiions at cost 239 415 666 13,152 14,472
Disposals and retiraments 43) (127) (261) (6,784) {7,215)
Exchange adjustments 531 55 167 2,734 3.487
Reclassification of category - - 477 477) -
At 30 March 2013 36,037 2,894 7,331 122,186 168,448
Accumulated depreciation
At 2 Apnl 2011 8,149 g12 3,852 71,243 84,156
Assets of business sold (142) - - (1,309) {1,451)
Charge for the year 758 177 656 10,687 12,178
Disposals and retirements - {26) (370) (7.548) {7,944)
Rectassification of category - 90 4 {94} -
Exchange adjostments {(113) {B) (4) (733} (856)
At 31 March 2012 8,652 1,147 4,138 72,146 86,083
Assets of business sold - - - (2,481) (2,481)
Charge for the year 763 200 837 11,084 12,684
Disposals and retirements {31) (125) (255) (6,073) (6,484)
Exchange adjustments 200 23 116 1,577 1,921
Reclassification of category - - 346 {346) -
At 30 March 2013 9,584 1,250 4,982 75,907 91,723
Carrying amounts
At 30 March 2013 26,453 1,644 2,349 46,279 76,725
At 31 March 2012 26,658 1,293 2,125 42,042 72,118
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14 Associates
2013 202
£000 £000
Interests i associates
At beginning of the year 1,968 1,989
Acquisition cost of Investments 3,187 -
Exchange adjustments (11) 16
Group's share of logs of associates (352) (37)
At end of the year 4,792 1.968
On 25 Apnl 2012, the Group Increased its mvestment in Optomed Oy from 15% to 40% for a cash consideration of Euro 3,894,000
(£3,187,000)
2013 202
£000 £000
Aggregated amounts relating to associates
Total assets 4,695 4 868
Total labilies (5,105) 5,071}
Net labilties (410) (202}
Group’s share of net labilties)/assets of associates (128) 4
Total revenue 1,427 1,597
Loss {1,1086) (340)
Group's share of loss of associates (352) 37)

In addiion to the 40% holding in Optomed Oy, the Group also holds 50% of the equity of PSRM Immobilen AG (PSRM}, which it
acquired as part of the Medicel AG business acquistion PSBM is treated as an associate, and not a subsidiary, because the party

holding the remaining 50% 15 considered to exert more control

Both associates have a 31 December year end, although results coterminous with the Group's year end have been consolidated

according to the Group’s share of ownership of each associate
Details of the Group's associates held at 30 March 2013 are as follows

Narme of associate Country of incorporaticn Proportion of ownership interast Pnncipal actmty
Optomed Oy Finland 40% Design, manufacture and selling
PSRAM Immobilien AG Switzertand 50% Property managemeant
15 Inventories

2013 2012

£000 £000
Raw matenals and consumables 39,349 33,213
Work In progress 7,119 6,306
Finished goods and goods for resale 23,245 17,749

69,713 57,368
The above 15 stated net of provision for slow-moving and obsolete stock, movements of which are shown below

2013 2012

£000 £000
At beginning of the year 8,323 8,846
Amounts reversed against Inventones previously impaired 917) (1,358}
Write downs of nventories recognised as an expense and utlisation 2,143 930
Recognition of provisions for businesses acquired 1,171 -
De-recognition of provisions for businesses disposed (419) {44)
Exchange adjustments 330 {51)
At end of the year 10,631 8,323

There 1s no matenal difference between the balance sheet value of inventones and therr cost of replacement None of the inventory

has been pledged as secunty
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16 Trade and other receivables

2013 2012

£000 £000

Trade recevables 118,168 101,980
Allowance for doubtful debts {2,445) {2,163)
115,723 99,817

Other recewvables 7,681 5,703
Prapayments and accrued ncome 10,201 9,154
133,605 114,674

The movement in the allowance for doubtfu! debts in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows

2013 2012

€000 £000

At beginring of the year 2,163 2,150
Net imparrment loss recognised 846 708
Amounts recovered against trade receivables previously wrtten down (935) {656)
Recognrion of prowisions for businesses acquired 359 -
De-recognition of provisions for businesses disposed {22) (5)
Exchange adjustments 34 {34)
At end of the year 2,445 2,163

Impairment charges are recorded aganst the trade recevables which the Group believes may not be recoverable in the case of trade
recewvables that are past due, management makes an assessment of the nsk of non-collection, taking into account factors such as
previous default expenence, any disputes or other factors delaying payment and the nsk of bankruptcy or other failure of the customer
to meet therr obligations For trade recewvables that are not past due, taking into account good histencal collection experence,
management records an impammment charge onky where there 1s a specific nsk of non-collection

The far value of trade and other recevables approxmates 1o book value due to the short-term matunties associated with these items
There 1s no imparment risk entified with regards to prepayments and accrued income or other recevables where no amounts are
past due

The ageing of trade receivables was as follows

Trade recenables net

Gross trada receivables of doubttul debts
2013 2012 2013 202
£000 £000 £000 £000
Not yet due 91,382 79,167 91,114 78,950
Up to one month overdue 17,415 14,996 17,289 14,986
Up to two months overdue 3,406 2,760 3,308 2,733
Up to three months overdue 1,891 1.521 1,746 1,457
Over three months overdue 4074 3.536 2,266 1,601
118,168 101,980 115,723 99,817

17 Trade and other payables: falling due within one year
2013 2012
£000 £000
Trade payables 50,285 44,847
Cther taxation and social securtty 6,189 0,349
Prowision for contingent purchase consideration 13,856 18,480
Other payables 3,929 1,825
Accruals and deferred income 26,670 22,998
100,929 93,499

The £18,480,000 prowision for contingent consideration from 2012 was manly paid in the current year (Medicel AG £9,990,000 and
Avo Photonics, Inc  £7,059,000) The curmrent year provision mamly compnses a transfer from provisions due after one year (Medicel
AG £10,410,000) and amounts payable for Accutome, Inc , a current year acquisition, of £3,290,000
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18 Borrowings
2013 2012
£000 £000
Loan note falling due within one year 2,515 -
Unsecured bank loans falting due withn one year 2,632 -
Total borrowings faling due within one yaar 5,147 -
Unsecured bank loans faling due after more than ona year 154,866 64,014
160,013 64,014
Information concerning the secunty, currency, interest rates and matunty of the Group’s borrowings 1s given in note 26
19 Provisions
Prowisions are presented as
2013 2012
£000 £000
Currant 2,420 2,618
Non-current 2,100 2,301
4,520 4,919
Dilapidations Legal
and empty Product contractual
property warranty and other Total
£000 £O00 £000 £000
At beginming of the year 1,698 2,872 349 4,919
Additional provision in the year 104 701 123 928
Acquired on acguisiion” 155 270 - 425
Busmness sold {49) 74) - {123)
Utihsed dunng the year {11) nmn {46) {(174)
Released dunng the year (180) {1,153) (197} {1,530)
Exchange adjustments 29 44 2 75
At end of the ysar 1,746 2,543 231 4,520

* Compnses £317,000 (current} and £108,000 (non-cunent) provisions, see note 24

Dilapidations and empty property provisions

Dilapidations and empty property provisions exist where the Group has lease contracts under which the unavaidable costs of meeting
its obligations under the contracts exceed the economic benefits expected to be recetved under them The prowisions compnse the

Direciors’ best estimates of future payments

a) to restore the fabnc of buldings to ther anginal condition where it I1s a condition of the leases prior to return of the properties, and
b) on vacant properties, the rental costs of which are not expected to be recoverable from subleasing the properties
These commitments cover the penod from 2013 to 2028, though they predommantly fall due within five years

Product warranty

Product warranty provisions reflect commitments made to customers on the sale of goods in the ordinary course of business and
included within the Group companies’ standard terms and conditicns Warranty commitments cover a penod of between one and five
years and typically apply for a 12-month penod The provision represents the Directors’ best estimate of the Group’s habiity based on

past expenence
Legal, contractual and other

Legal, contractual and other compnse mainly amounts reserved aganst open legal and contractual disputes The Company has
on occasion been required to take legal or other actions to defend itself against proceedings brought by other parties Provisions are

made for the expected costs associated with such miatters, based on past expenence of smitar items and other known

factors, taking nto account professional advice receved, and represent Directors’ best estimate of the likely outcome The timing of
utiisation of these provisions 1§ frequently uncertain reflecting the complexity of issues and the outcome of vanous court proceedings
and negotiations Contractual and other provisions represent the Directors’ best estimate of the cost of setting future obligations
Unless specific evidence exists to the contrary, these reserves are shown as current

However, no provision 1s made far proceedings which have been or might be brought by other parties aganst Group comparies
unless the Directors, 1aking into account professional adwice receved, assesses that it 1s more likely than not that such proceedings

may be successful
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20 Trade and other payables. falling due after one year

2013 2012

£000 £000

Prowision for contingent purchase consideration 19,656 10,630
Cther payables 2,993 2,758
22,649 13 388

The current year provision for contingent consideration mainly compnses £16,135,000, payable as part of the MicroSurgical
Technology, Inc acquisition and £3,500,000 due on the ASL Holdings Limited acquisition The 2012 non-current provision

(£10,630,000), which pnncipally compnsed an amount of £10,410,000 payable as part of the Medicel AG acquisttion, was transferred
to current prowisions {note 17) in the current year

21 Deferred tax

Retrement Acquired Accelerated Short-term Share- Goodwill
benefit intanglble tax timing based timing
obligations assots  depreciation differences payment differonces Total
£000 £000 £000 E£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 Apnl 2012 7,920 {15,622) {7,385) 1,476 1,536 (3,144) {15,219)
{Charge)/credit to Consohdated Income
Staternent (1,869) 4,267 1,395 2,611) [} (1,277) (89)
Credit to Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income 4,800 - - 130 - - 4,930
Credt to equity - - - - 5 - 5
Acquired {note 24) - {23,377) (242) 1,431 - 12,980 (9,208)
Business sold - - 17 77 - - 94
Exchange adjustments - (1,475) (260) 175 - 599 {961)
At 30 March 2013 10,851 {36,207) (6,475) 678 1,547 9,158 {20,448)
Retirernent Acquired Accelerated Short-term Share- Goodwill
benefit intangible tax tirming based tirning
obhgations assets depreciation ditterences payment differences Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £0OC0 £000 £000
At 2 Apnl 2011 9,422 (14,430) {7,883} 1,991 1,707 {4,297) {13,490}
(Charge)/credit to Consohdated Income
Statement {1.628) 2,766 520 {725) 35 819) 149
(Charge)/credit to Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income 126 - - (137) - - (11}
Charge to equity - - - - (208) - {206}
Acquired - (3,922) 14 221 - 1,925 (1,762)
Busness sold - - {34) 3 - - 37)
Exchange adjustments - {36) 2) 129 - a7 138
At 31 March 2012 7,920 (15,622) {7,385) 1,476 1,636 {3,144) {15,219)

Centan deferred tax assets and lizbiities have been offset The following is the analtysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset} for
financial reporting purposes

2013 2012

£000 £000
Deferred tax hability (49,197) {26,258)
Deferred tax asset 28,749 11,039
Net deferred tax liability (20,448) {15,219)
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21 Deferred tax continued
Movement In deferred tax hability
2013 2012
£000 £000
At beginning of year (15,219) (13,480)
(Charge)/credit o Consohdated Income Staternent
UK (2,261) 760
Overseas 2,172 811)
Credit/{charge) to Conscidated statement of comprehensive income 4,930 (11)
Credt/(charge) to equity 5 (208)
Acqured (note 24) {9,208) {1,762)
Business sold 94 (37)
Exchange adjstments (961) 138
At end of year {20,448) (15,219)

The Finance Act 2013, which provides for a reduction in the main rate of corporation tax from 24% to 23% effective from 1 Apnl 2013,
was suibstantively enacted on 3 July 2012 This rate reduction has been reflected in the calculation of deferred tax at the balance
sheet date

The Government intends to enact future reductions In the main tax rate down to 20% by 1 Aprl 2015 As this tax rate was not
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, the rate reduction i1s not yet reflected in these financial statements in accordance with
1AS 10, as it 1s a non-adjusting event occurnng after the reporting penod

However, for indicative purposes only, had the UK main corporate tax rate been reduced to 20% the net impact on recognised
deferred tax assets and labilities at 30 March 2013 would not have been matenal

It 15 likely that the unremitted eamings of overseas subsidianes would qualify for the UK dvidend exemption such that no UK tax would
be due upon remitting those earnings to the UK However, £22,739,000 (2012 £13,561,000) of those eamings may still result n a tax
lability, pnncipally as a result of the dividend withhotding taxes levied by the overseas junsdictions in wihich those subsidianes operate
These tax liabiliies are not expected to exceed £3,025,000 (2012 £2,025,000) of which only £315,000 has been provided as the
Group 1s able to control the timing of the dvidends It 1s not expected that further amounts will crystalhse n the foreseeable future
Temporary iming differences in connection with Interests i associates are insignificant

At 30 March 2013 the Group had unused capital tax losses of £550,000 (2012 £574,000) for which no deferred tax asset has been
recognised

22 Share capital
Issued and fully paid
2013 2012
£000 £000
Ordinary shares of 10p each 37,888 37,856

The number of ordinary shares n ssue at 30 March 2013 was 378,880,622 {2012 378,555,028), including treasury shares of
1,143,200 (2012 1,404,269)

Changes during the year in the 1ssued ordinary share capital were as follows

Issued and fully paid
000

At 1 Apnl 2012 37.856
Share options exercised 32
At 30 March 2013 37,888

The total consideration receved in cash In respect of share options exercised amounted to £453,000

At 30 March 2013 options n respect of 1,261,444 (2012 2,160,900) ordinary shares remaned outstandng Further detals of these
are gven In note 23 to the accounts

At the date of these accounts, the number of ordinary shares in 1ssue was 378,880,622 including treasury shares of 1,303,209
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23 Share-based payments
The total cost recognised in the Consolidated income Statement in respect of share-based payment schemes {the ‘employee share
plans’) was as follows

2013 2032

Equity- Cash- Equity- Cash
settled settled Total satiled settled Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 2000 £000
Share incentive plan 490 - 490 572 - 572
Share option plans - - - 26) - {26)
Performance share plan 2723 429 3,152 2,373 436 2,809
3,213 429 3,642 2,919 436 3,355

The Group has recorded liabilities of £386,000 (2012 £432,000) in respect of the cash settled portion of the awards granted under
the performance share plan

Share incentive plan

Shares awarded under this Plan are purchased in the market by the Plan's trustees at the time of the award and are held in trust untl
their transfer to quakfying employees, which 1s conditional upon completion of three years’ service The costs of providing this Plan are
recognised In the Consolidated Income Statement over the three-year vesting penod

Share option plans

The Group has cutstanding issued options te acquire ordinary shares in the Company under a share option plan, approved by
sharehclders in 1999 This share option plan prowvided for the grant of two categones of option, both of which are subject to
performance critena No further awards have been made under the Company share option plan since 3 August 2005 All options
lapse if not exercised within 10 years from the date of grant Options in respect of 1,261,444 ordinary shares remaned cutstanding at
30 March 2013 Options over 325,594 ordinary shares were exercised In the year and options over a further 573,862 ordinary shares
lapsed in the year

The weighted average option pnce of the 332,711 exercisable options at the end of the year was 140 6p, the remaining 928,733
optons, which are not yet exercisable, have a weighted average option price of 138 8p

Performance share plan
The performance share plan was approved by shareholders on 3 August 2005 and replaced the previous share option plans from
which no further grants can be made

Awards made under this Plan vest after three years on a shiding scale subject to the Group's relative Total Shareholder Retumn against
the FTSE250 excluding financial companies, combined with an absolute Return on Total Invested Capital measure Awards which do
not vest on the third anniversary of theirr award will lapse

A summary of the movements in share awards granted under the performance share plan 1s as follows

2013 2012

Number of Number of

shares shares

awarded awarded

Qutstanding at beginning of year 4,133,342 4,385,681
Granted dunng the year 1,341,209 1,415,044
Vested dunng the year (pro-rated for ‘good leavers') {1,558,091) (1,513,266)
Lapsed dunng the vear (114,145) {154,117)
Quistanding at end of year 3,802,315 4,133,342

Exercisable at end of year - -

The weighted average share pnce at the date of awards vesting dunng the year was 407 1p (2012 369 4p)

The performance shares cutstanding at 30 March 2013 had a weighted average remaining contractual Ife of 1 4 years (2012 1 3
years)

The far value of these awards was calculated using an appropnate simulation methed to reflect the likelihood of the market-based
pericrmance conditions, which attach to half of the award, being met, using the following assumptions

2013 2012 2011
Expected volatiity (%) 26% 2% 27%
Expected life (years) 3 3 3
Share price on date of grant (p} 3999 362 34 28108
Option price {p) Nil nil nil
Fair value per option {%6) 55 3% 68 6% 66 9%
Farr value per option {p) 223.25 248 57 188 04

The expected volatiity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatlity of the Group's share pnce over the previous three years
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The Group made six acquisthions dunng the year Below are summanes of the assets and habilities acquired and the purchase

congideration of

a) the total of all acquisthons and adjustments to pnor year acquisitions,

b} the six acquisthons, namely Sensorex Corperation, Accutome, Inc , SunTech Medica! Group Limited, MicroSurgical Technology,

Inc , Thinketron Precision Equipment Company Limited and ASL Holdings Limited
¢ the one acquisition made since the balance sheet date, namely Talentum Developments Limited

(A) Total of all acquisitions and adjustments to pnor year acquisithions

Provisional
fair value
Book value adjustments Total
£000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 508 68,612 69,120
Property, plant and equipment 2,801 (22) 2,779
Current assets
Inventones 10,310 {142} 10,168
Trade and other recewnvables 10,435 {121) 10,314
Cash and cash equivalents 7,874 5) 7,869
Deferred tax 212 687 899
Total assets 32,140 69,009 101,149
Current habilities
Overdrafts {869) - {869)
Trade and other payables {7,826) {1,154) {8,980)
Bank loans {1,603) - {1,603)
Provisions {61) {256) {317)
Corporation tax (13} - (13)
Non-current labilities
Bank loans {803} - {803)
Provisions (21} (87) {108)
Deferred tax - {10,107) {10,107)
Total habiities (11,196) {11,604) {22,800)
Net assets of businesses acquired 20,944 57,405 78,349
Intial cash consideration paid 133,060
Intial cash consideration to be pad 1,879
Cantingent purchase consideration (current year acquisitions) 25,569
Total consideration 160,508
Goodwill ansing on curcent year acquistions 82,159
Goodwill ansing on pror year acquisitions -
82,159

Due to therr contractual dates, the far value of receivables acquired (shown above) approxmates to the gross contractual amounts

receivable The amount of gross contractual recevables not expected to be recovered 1s immatenal
There are no matenal contingent habiities recognised in accordance with paragraph 23 of IFRS 3 (revised)
£68,613,000 of the goodwill ansing on acquisitions in the year 1s expected to be deductible for tax purposes

Together, the six acquisitions contributed £41,310,000 of revenue and £7,429,000 of prdfit after tax for the pencd ended 30 March
2013 If these acquisitions had been held since the start of the financial year, it 1s estimated the Group's reported revenue and profit

after tax would have been £24,860,000 and £4,324,000 higher respectively

Adjustments were made to the book values of the net assets of the companies acquired to reflect therr provisional farr values to the
Group Acquired mventones were valued at the lower of cost and net realisabie value adopting Group bases and any habiities for
warranties relating to past trading were recognised Other previously unrecognised assets and liabilites at acquisttion were included

and accounting policies were aligned with those of the Group where appropnate
There were no adjustments to pnor year acquisitions
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24 Acquisitions continued
Analysis of cash outflow in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2013 2012

£000 £000
Cash consideration in respect of acquisitions 133,060 13 305
Cash acquired on acquistions (7,869) (49)
Qverdrafts acquired on acquistions 869 -
Contingent consideration paid in relation to current year acquistions 3,810 -
Contingent considaration paid in relation to prior year acquisitions™ 15,771 5,411
Nat cash outflow relating to acquisitions (per cash flow statement) 145,641 18,667
Bank loans acquired 2,406 1,144
Net movermnent in cash and debt, including bank loans acquired 148,047 19,811

* Oithe B35 771 000 (2012 £5 411 000) contingent purchase consideration payment £15,771,000 (2012 £5,411,000} had been provided i the pror year s financial
statements

(Bi) Sensorex Corporation

Provisional
fair value
Book vatue adjustments Total
£000 £000 £000

Non-current assets
Intangible assets - 12,689 12,689
Property plant and equipment 286 - 286
Current assets
Inventones 564 (80) 484
Trade and other recevables 1,176 1 1,177
Total assets 2,026 12,610 14,636
Current liabibtes
Trade and cther payables {268) {56) {324)
Provisions - {45) (45)
Non-current habilities
Deferred tax - {290) {290)
Total hlabilibes (268) {391) {659)
Net assets of businesses acquired 1,758 12,219 13,977
Cash consideration 23,716
Contingent purchase consideration -
Total consideration 23,716
Goodwill ansing on acquisttion 9,739

On 2 Apnl 2012, the Group acquired the trade and assets of Sensorex Corporation (Sensorex) for US$38,003,000 Sensorex, based
in Califorria, USA, manufactures electrochemical sensors for water analysis applications

Sensorex forms part of the Environmental & Analysis sector and was acqutired for its range of sensors and associated accessones,
which are incorporated by OEMs manufactunng single and multi-parameter probes and instruments for monitonng water qualty,

a markel that 1s forecast to see continued growth The excess of the far value of the consideration paid over the far value of the
assets acquired 1s represented by customer-related itangibles of £9,998,000 and technological krnow-how intangibles of £2,691,000
with residual goodwill ansing of £9,739,000 The goodwill represents

a} the value of the acquired workforce,

b) potential synergies with other Halma companies within the Water market, especially the hubs in China and India, and

¢) the ability to exploit the Group's existing distnbution arrangements, particularly outside the USA

There are no contingent consideration payment arrangements

The Sensorex acquisition contnbuted £7,781,000 of revenue and £2,466,000 of profit after tax for the year ended 30 March 2013
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24 Acquisttions continued
(B1i) Accutome, Inc
Provisional
fair value
Book value adjustments Total
£000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 20 6,144 6,164
Property, plant and squipment 683 (39) 644
Current assets
Inventones 2,768 111 2,879
Trade and other recevables 1,800 {518) 1,282
Deferred tax - 342 342
Total assets 5,271 6,040 11,311
Current habilthes
Overdrafts {1186) - {116)
Trade and other payables (1,418) {391) {1,809)
Bank loans {1,307) - {1,307)
Provisions - (143) (143)
Non-current hiabilities
Bank loans {131) - {131)
Provisions - {25) (25)
Deterred tax - (2,342) (2,342)
Total habilites {2,972) (2,901) {5,873)
Net assets of businesses acquired 2,299 3,139 5,438
Cash consideration 11,230
Contingent purchase consideration 3,120
Total consideration 14,350
Goodwitl ansing on acquistiion 8,912

On 2 Apnl 2012, the Group acguired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Accutome, Inc {Accutome) for US$17,995,000

(US$20,298,000 ncluding repayment of US$2,303,000 bank loans) Accutome, based in Pennsylvania, USA, with a wholly owned

subsidiary located In the Netherlands, designs, manufactures and sells surgical and diagnostic instruments and a vanety of
phamaceuticals for the ophthalmic marketplace

Accutome Is best known for its leading ultrasound diagnostic equipment (used pnor to cataract surgery and to diagnose certain eye
conditions) and for its surgical nstrumentation, featunng its leading diamond bladed surgical knives Accutome forms part of the
Medical sector and was acquired to further expand Halma's footpnnt in ophthalmic diagnostc and surgical instrumentation The
excess of the fair value of the consideration paid over the far value of the assets acquired 1s represented by supplier arrangement
intangibles of £2,102,000, customer-refated intangibles of £2,861,000 and brand intangibles of £1,201,000 with residual goodwill

ansing of £8,912,000 The goodwill represents

a) the value of the acquired workforce,

b) the ability {0 explot Accutome’s distnbution arrangements,

¢} potential synergies with other Halma companies within the ophthalmic market, and

d} the ability to exploit the Group’s existing distnbution arrangements, particulary outside North Amenca

Contingent consideration of between US$nil and US$5,000,000 s payable dependent on the profits of the acquired business for the
penod up to September 2013 The Directors’ imitial estimate that contingent consideration of US$5,000,000 will be pad, remains

unchanged as at 30 March 2013

The Accutome acquisition contnbuted £13,420,000 of revenue and £1,444,000 of profit after tax for the year ended

30 March 2013
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24 Acquisttions continued
(Bu) SunTech Medical Group Limited

Provisional
fair value
Book value adjustments Total
£000 2000 £000

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 9 12,586 12,595
Property, plant and equipment 672 {1) L-1a
Current assets
Inventories 4,047 (276) 3,TM
Trade and other recevables 3,146 604 3,750
Cash and cash equrvalents 3,641 {5) 3,636
Deferred tax 212 323 535
Total asgets 11,727 13,231 24,958
Current habilities
Trade and other payables (1,540} {153) {1,693)
Provisions {51) {37) (88)
Non-current abilities
Provisions {21) - {21)
Deferred tax - (4,783) {4,783)
Total habiiihes {1,612) {4,973) {8,585)
Net assets of businesses acquired 10,115 8,258 18,373
Imitial cash consideration paid 31,975
Initia! cash consideration to be paid 1,811
Contingant purchase consideration 3,857
Total consideration 37,643
Goodwill anstng on acquisttion 19,270

On 31 May 2012 the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of the SunTech Medical Group Limited (SunTech), which 1s
pnmarnly based in the USA, UK and China The initial cash consideratton of US$51,000,000 was adjustable based on the final level of
agreed working capital, which was later determined to be $1.558,000

The initial cash consideration to be pard of £1,811,000 in the above table was paid in full on 10 May 2013 This amount was included
in Group cash and liabilities at the balance sheet date

SunTech forms part of the Medical sector and 1s a pre-eminent supplier of clinical grade non-invasive blood pressure monitonng
products and technologies The excess of the far value of the consideration paid over the farr value of the assets acquired 15
represented by customer-related ntangibles of £6,103,000, technological know-how intangibles of £3,641,000 and brand intangibles
of £2,842,000 with residual goodwill ansing of £19,270,000 The goodwill represents

a) the value of the acquired workforce, and
b) potential synergies with other Halma comparies within the blood pressure monitonng market

Contingent consideration of between US$nil and US$6,000,000 was payable dependent on the profits of the acquired business
far the 12 months to December 2012 On 30 January 2013 the Directors’ estimate of US$6,000,000 (£3,810,000 at the prevaiing
exchange rate) was paid in full

The SunTech acquisition contnbuted £14,731,000 of revenue and £2,570,000 of profit after tax for the year ended 30 March 2013
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24 Acquisitions continued
(Bwv) MicroSurgical Technology, Inc.
Prowvisional
falr value
Book value adjustments Total
£000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 193 22,820 23,013
Property, plant and equipment 810 17 927
Current assets
inventernes 1,223 401 1,624
Trade and cther recevables 1,860 {56) 1,804
Cash and cash equivalents 1,303 - 1,303
Total assets 5,489 23,182 28,671
Current habilihes
Trade and other payables {1,174) (155) (1,329}
Bank loans {296) - {296)
Prowvisions {10) (29) (39)
Non-current habilties
Barnk loans {672) - {672)
Provisions - (62) (62)
Deferred tax - - -
Total habilies {2,152) (246) {2,398)
Net assets of businesses acquired 3,337 22,936 26,273
Inihat cash consideration paid 35,454
Inthial cash consideration to be pard 68
Contingent purchase consideration 15,092
Total consideration 50,614
Goodwill ansing on acquisihion 24,341

On 18 December 2012, the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of MicroSurgical Technology, Inc (MST) MST, based In
Redmond, USA, designs, manufactures and markets ophthalmic surgical products, focusing on single-use devices used in cataract
surgery MST forms part of the Medical sector and was acquired to give Halma's Medical businesses access to additional
technologies and manufacturing processes The excess of the far value of the consideration paid over the farr value of the assets
acqurred 1s represented by customer related intangibles of £15,570,000, brand intangibles of £2,090,000 and technological know-
how ntangibles of £5,335,000 with residual goodwill ansing of £24,341,000 The goodwill represents

a) the engneering expertise of the acquired workforce,
b} the opportunity to leverage this expertise across all Halma’s Medical businesses, and
c) the ability to exploit the Group’s existing customer base

The initral consideration was US$57,430,000 (US$59,000,000 including repayment of US$1,570,000 bank loans), followed by
contingent consideration payable on or around May 2014 and May 2015 of between US&nil and US$25,000,000 in the first year and
USSnil and LUS$30,000,000 in the second year, dependent on the profits of the acquired business for the penod up to March 2014
and March 2015 respectively The total contingent consideration payable for both years 1s subject to a cap of US$43,000,000 The
Directors’ best estimate of the likely overall payment 1s US$25,000,000 and this amount has been included at fair value in the
summary above

Intial cash consideration to be paid relates to a working capital adjustment of £68,000 (US$110,000) based on the closing net assets
of the acquired business

The MST acquisttion contnbuted £4,167,000 of revenue and £696,000 of profit after tax for the year ended 30 March 2013
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24 Acquisitions continued
(Bv) Thinketron Precision Equipment Company Limited {and its mamn trading subsidiary, Baoding Longer Precision Pump
Co, Ltd)

Provisional
fair value
Book value adjustments Total
£000 £00¢ £000

Non-current assets
Intangible assets - 8,432 8,432
Property, plant and equipment 216 (10) 206
Current assets
Inventones 861 {71) 790
Trade and other receivables 651 {52) 599
Cash and cash equivalents 2,295 - 2,295
Deferred tax - 22 22
Total assets 4,023 8,321 12,344
Current habilities
Trade and other payables (574) {21) {595)
Provisions - 4] {2)
Corporation tax (13) - {13)
Non-current habilities
Deferred tax - {1,265) {1,265)
Total liabilities (587) {1,288) {1,875)
Net ts of busin acquired 3,436 7,033 10,469
Cash consideration 24,320
Contingent purchase consideration -
Total consideration 24,320
Goodwill ansing on acquisition 13,851

Cn 23 January 2013, the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of the holding company, Thinketron Precision Equipment
Company Limited, and its subsidianes Baoding Longer Precision Pump Co , Ltd and Langer Instruments Corporation, (Longer Pump,
collectively) Longer Pump, based prnimarily in Baoding, China, manufactures and markets penstaltic, synnge and gear pumps used In
laboratory, medical and industrial applicatons Longer Pump forms part of the Medical sector and was acguired to give Halma's
businesses In this sector access to local market knowledge and technical resources The excess of the far value of the consideration
pad over the far value of the assets acquired I1s represented by customer related intangibles of £5,554,000, brand intangibles of
£1,620,000, technological know-how intangibles of £1,258,000 with residual goodwill ansing of £13,851,000 The goodwill
represents

a) the enginesring expertise of the acquired workforce,

b) the opportunity to leverage this expertise across all of Halma’s Medical businesses, and

¢} the ability to exploit the Group's existing customer base through increased access to, and presence n, a dynamic regton

The initial consideration was BMB 241,954,000 with no further consideration payable

The Longer Pump acquisitton contnbuted £915,000 of revenue and £270,000 of profit after tax for the year ended 30 March 2013
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24 Acquisitions continued
{Bvi) ASL Holdings Limited
Provisional
fair value
Book value adjustments Total
£000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 286 5,941 6,227
Property, plant and equipment 34 11 45
Current assets
Inventones 847 {227) 620
Trade and other recenables 1,802 (100) 1,702
Cash and cash equivalents 635 - 635
Total assets 3,604 5,625 9,229
Current Lhabilrbes
Overdrafts (753) - {753)
Trade and other payables (2,852) {378) {3,230)
Non-current ltabiliities
Deferred tax - {1,427) 1,427
Total habiliies {3,605) {1,805) {5,410)
Net assets of businesses acquired {1) 3,820 3,819
Cash consideration 6,365
Contingent purchase consideration 3,500
Total consideration 9,865
Goodwill ansing on acquisition 6,046

On 14 March 2013, the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of ASL Holdings Limited {(ASL) ASL, based in Northampton,
UK, designs and manufactures machine-to-machine (M2M) communication products which are incorporated into SMART meters for

remote data monitonng and a range of other applications in the utility, transport and retail sectors ASL forms part of the
Environmental & Analysis sector and was acquired to complment and strengthen Halma's existing Environmental & Analysis

businesses The excess of the far value of the consideration paid over the fair value of the assets acquired 1s represented by customer
related intangibles of £6,204,000 with residual goodwilt arising of £6,046,000 The goodwill represents

a} the technical expertise of the acquired workforce,

b) the opportunity to leverage this expertise across some of Halma’s businesses, and

¢} the ability to exploit the Group's existing customer base

The inial consideration was £6,365,000, followed by contingent consideration payable in two tranches on or around May 2014 and
May 2015 of between £ml and £2,000,000, and £nil and £1,500,000 respectively, dependent on the sales growth of the acqutred
business for the years ending March 2014 and March 2015 The farr value of contingent consideration at the balance sheet date 1s
based on the assumption that the full value will be payable at the end of each year, which represents the Directors’ best estimate of
the Iikely outcome taking intc account the proximity of the acquisitton to the year end

The ASL acquisiticn contnbuted £296,000 of revenue and £17,000 of loss after tax for the year ended 30 March 2013
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24 Acquisttions continued

Since the balance sheet date, the Group has made one further acquisition

(C) Talentum

Due to the proximity of the acquisition dates 10 the date of approval of the Annual Report, it 1s only practicable to provide prowisional

summanes of the detalls of one acquisition made since the balance sheet date

On 11 Apnl 2013 the Group acguired Talentum Developments Limited (Talentum) The intial cash consideration of £2,590,000 for the
share capital 15 adjustable based on the final leve! of agreed working capital and cash at closing Deferred consideration of £250,000
15 payable on or around Apnl 2014 subject to the seller providing certain pre-agreed techmcal information and know-how to the
Group Talentum forms part of the nfrastructure Safety sector and specialises in the design and manufacture of flame detector
products for a range of Industnes, which protect property from the nsk of fire Due to the proximity of the acquisition date to the date
of approval of the Annual Report, 1t 1s impracticable to prowide further information

25 Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2013 2012
£000 £000
Reconciliation of profit from operations to net cash inflow from operating activities
Profit on continueng operations before finance iIncome and expense, share of resuits of associates and
profit on disposal of continuing operations 118,367 109,910
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12,684 12,178
Amortisation of computer software 1,402 1,319
Amortisation of capitalised development costs and other intangibles 3,578 3,820
Disposals/retirements of capralised development costs 264 -
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 14,235 10352
Share-based payment expense n excess of amounts pad 2,482 2,432
Addtional payments to pension plans {8,265) {6,419)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and computer software {163) {495)
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 144,584 133,097
Increase N nventones {2,693) 3.777)
increase in recenvables (9,210) (1,190)
Increase/{decrease) in payables and provisions 1,015 (2.671)
Cash generated from operations 133,696 125,459
Taxation pad {25,452) (27.772)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 108,244 97 687
2013 2012
£000 £O00
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 49,723 45,305
Met cash/
At 1 Apnt Cash {debt} Exchange At 30 March
2m2 flow acquired Issued adjustments 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Analysis of net debt
Cash and cash equwvalents 45,305 {3,815) 7,000 - 1,233 49,723
Loan notes faling due within one year - - - {2,515) - {2,515)
Barnk loans faing due withun one year - {929) (1,603) - (100) {2,632)
Bank loans faling due after more than ona year {64,014) (88,427) {803) - {1,622} {154,866)
Total net debt (18,709  (93,171) 4,594 (2,515) (489) {110,290)

The net cash outflow from bank loans in 2013 compnsed drawdowns of £92,298,000 offset by repayments of £2,842,000
(2012 net cash inflow compnsing drawdowns of £76,456,000 offset by repayments of £94,050,000)

The £7,000,000 cash and cash equivalents acguired compnsed £7,869,000 cash and bank balances less £869,000 overdrafts
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26 Financial instruments

Policy

The Group's treasury policies seek to minimise financial nsks and to ensure sufficient kquidity for the Group's operations and strategic
plans No complex denvative financial instruments are used, and no trading or speculative transactions in financial instruments are
undertaken Where the Group does use financial Instruments these are manly to manage the currency nsks ansing from normal
operations and its financing Operations are financed mainly through retained profits and, in certain geographical locations, bank
borrowings Foreign currency nsk 1s the most significant aspect for the Group in the area of financial instruments It 1s exposed to a
lesser extent to other nsks such as nterest rate nsk and iquidity nsk The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these nsks and these policies are summarnsed below The Group's polictes have remained unchanged since the beginning of the
financial year

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the cntena for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the bases of recognition income and expenses) for each class of financial asset, financial labilty and equity instrument are
disclosed in the Accounting policies note

Capital nsk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concems while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 18 to the Accounts, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent, comprising 1ssued capital, reserves and retained eamings as disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

The Group 15 not subject to extemally imposed capital requirements

Foreign currency nsk
The Group 15 exposed to foraign currency nsk as a consequence of both trading with foreign companies and owning subsidianes
located in foreign countnes

The Group earns a significant proportion of its profit in currencies other than Stering This gives nise to translational currency nsk,
where the Sterling value of profits earned by the Group’s foreign subsidiaries fluctuates with the strength of Sterling relative to ther
operating (or ‘functional’) currencies The Group does not hedge this nsk, so its reported profit 1s sensitive to the strength of Sterling,
particularly against the US Dollar and Eurc The Group also has transactional currency exposures These anse on sales or purchases
by operating compantgs in currencies other than the companies’ operating (or ‘functional’) currency Significant sales and purchases
are matched where possible and a proportion of the net exposure 1s hedged by means of forward foreign currency contracts

The Group has a significant investment in overseas operations i the USA and EU, with further investments in Australia, New Zealand,
Singapore, Switzerland, China and India As a result, the Group's balance sheet can be affected by movements in these countnes’
exchange rates Where significant and appropnate, currency denominated net assets are hedged by cummency borrowings These
currency exposures are reviewed regularly

Interest rate nsk

The Group I1s exposed to interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings and cash deposits Where bank borrowings are used 1o finance
operations they tend to be short term with floating interest rates Borrowings used to provide longer term funding are drawn on the
Group's loan facilities and have fixed interest rates with matunities of not more than one year

Surplus funds are placed on short-term fixed rate deposit or in floating rate deposit accounts

Credit nsk

Credt nsk 1s defined as the nsk that a counterparty will default on its contractual abligations resutting n financia! loss to the Group
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties, as a means of miigating the nsk of financial loss
from defaults Credit ratings are supplied by independent agencies where avallable, and # not available, the Group uses other publicly
avaitable financial Information and its own trading records to rate its major customers The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of
its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded i1s spread amongst approved
counterparties Credit exposure 1s controlled by counterparty imits that are reviewed regularty

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industnes and geographical areas Ongoing credit
evaluation I1s performed on the financial condition of accounts recewvable and, where appropnate, credit guarantee insurance cover i1s
purchased

The carrying amount of trade, tax and other recevables, denvative financial instruments and cash of £183,653,000 (2012
£160,736,000) represents the Group’s maamum exposure to credit nsk as no collateral or other credit enhancements are held

The credit nsk on hquid funds and denvative financial nstruments 1s irmited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratngs assigned by international credit-rating agencies
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26 Financial instruments continued

Liquidity nsk

On 20 October 2011, the Group signed a new unsecured five-year revolving credit facility for £260m This replaced the previous
£165m facility which was due to expire in February 2013 This facility 1s the main source of long-term funding for the Group to October
2016, and 1s with a syndicate of five banks

The Group has a strong cash flow and the funds generated by operating companies are managed regionally based on geographic
location

Funds are placed on deposit with secure, highly-rated banks For short-term working capital purposes, most operating companies
utihse local bank overdrafts These practices allow a balance to be mantaned between continuty of funding, secunty and fiextbility
Because of the nature of their use, the facilities are typically ‘on demand’ and as such uncommitted Overdraft faciiies are typically
renewed annually

Currency exposures

Translational exposures

It 1s estmated, by reference to the Group's US Dollar and Euro denominated profits, that a one per cent change in the value of the US
Dollar relative to Stering would have had a £464,000 (2012 £353,000) impact on the Group’s reported profit before tax, and a one
per cent change in the value of the Euro relative to the Sterling would have had a £186,000 (2012 £227,000) impact on the Group's
profit before tax for the year ended 30 March 2013

Transactional exposures

The Group has net foreign currency monetary assets and habilities that are assets and habilibes not denorrunated m the functional
currency of the underlyng company These compnse cash and overdrafts as well as certain trade receivable and payable balances
These foreign currency monetary assets and llabilities give nse to the net currency gains and losses recognised in the Consolidated
income Staterment as a result of movement in exchange rates The exposures are predominantly Euro and US Dollar Group policy 1s
for a significant portion of foreign currency exposures, including sales and purchases, 16 be hedged by forward foreign exchange
contracts in the company in which the transaction 1s recorded

Interest rate nsk profile

The Group's financial assets which are subject te interest rate fluctuations compnse interest beanng cash equivalents which totalled
£1,703,000 at 30 March 2013 (2012 £4,008,000) These comprised Sterling denominated deposits of £2,000 {2012 £4,002,000),
and Euro, US Dollar and Renminbi deposits of £1,701,000 (2012 £4,000) which are placed on local money markets and eamn interest
at market rates Cash balances of £48,020,000 (2012 £41,299,000) earn interest at local market rates

The financia! iabiiies which are subject to interest rate fluctuations comprnse bank loans, bank overdrafts, a loan note and certain
unsecured loans, which totalled £160,013,000 at 30 March 2013 (2012 £64,014,000} All bank loans and the loan note bear interest
at floating rates or fixed rates where the fixed penod 1s typically ne more than three months Interest rates are based on the LIBOR of
the cumrency in which the liabilities anse plus a small margin  Bank overdrafts bear interest at local base rates

2013 202

£000 000
Analysis of interest beanng financial Liabilities
Sterling denominated bank loans 109,000 47,000
US Dotltar denominated bank loans 34,540 -
Swiss Franc denominated bank loans 13,958 17,014
Sterling denominated loan note 2,515 -
Total bank loans 160,013 64,014

At 30 March 2013 1t 1s estimated that a general increase of one percentage point In interest rates would reduce the Group’s profit
before tax by £1,281,000 (2012 £892,000)

Matunty of financial habilities

With the exception of the contingent purchase consideration, other payables, provisions and borrowings due after one year, all

of the Group's financial labilities mature in one year or less or on demand The total of the contractual contingent purchase
consideration due after one year includes £7,030,000 (2012 £10,452,000) due between one and two years, and the balance of
£12,626,000 (2012 £178,000} due between two and five years Other creditors due after more than one year include £1,231,000
(2012 £1,017,000) due between one and two years, £1,126,000 (2012 £1,088,000} due between two and five years, with the
balance of £636,000 (2012 £653,000) due after more than five years
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26 Financial instruments continued

Borrowing facilities

The Group's principal source of long-term funding 1s its unsecured five-year £260m revolving credit facility, which expires in
October 2016

Short-term operational funding 1s provided by cash generated from operations and by local bank overdrafts These overdraft faciiies
are uncommitted and are generally renewed on an annual or ongeing basis and hence the facilities expire within one year
or less

The Group's undrawn committed faciities avalable at 30 March 2013 were £112,371,000 (2012 £205,361,000) of which £7,237,000
(2012 £9,375,000) mature within one year and £105,134,000 (2012 £195,986,000) betwsen two and five years

UK companies have cross-guaranteed £17,025,000 (2012 £17,370,000} of overdraft facilities of which £nil (2012 £nil) was drawn

Fair values of financial assets and financial habshities
As at 30 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 there were no significant differences between the book value and farr value {as determined
by market value) of the Group's financial assets and habilities

The farr value of floating and fixed rate borrowings approxmate to the carrying value because interest rates are reset to market rates
at intervals of less than one year

The far value of denvative financial Instruments is estimated by discounting the future contracted cash flow, using readily available
market data and represents a level 2 measurement in the far value hierarchy under iIFRS 7
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26 Financial instruments continued

Hedging

As explaned previously, the Group's policy 1s to hedge significant sales and purchases denominated in foreign currency using forward
currency contracts These instruments are intially recogrised at far value, which is typicalty £nil, and subsequent changes in far value
are taken to the Consolidated Income Statement, unless hedge accounted

The following table details the forward foreign currency contracts outstanding as at the year end, which mostly mature wathin one year
and therefore the cash flows and resulting effect on profit and loss are expected to occur within the next 12 months

Average exchange rate/T Foreign currency Coniract value Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
2013 2012 000 000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Forward contracts notin a
designated cash flow hedge
US Dollars 156 158 3,841 2,123 2237 1,347 53) 20
Euros 116 119 783 3,049 673 2,552 15 11
Cther currencies - - - - 486 524 {2) &}
3,396 4423 (40) 37
Forward contracts n a
designated cash flow hedge
US Dollars 1.59 157 8,051 6,878 5,069 4,391 (243) 87
Euros 1.22 116 9,651 10 948 7,878 9476 (294) 335
Czech Koruna 3015 2874 {93,595) (90,000) {3,105) {3,132} 67 (i14)
Other currencies - - - - {155) {524} (30) {2)
8,687 10,211 (500) 306
Total forward contracts
US Dollars 158 157 11,532 9,001 7,306 5,738 (296) 107
Euros 122 116 10,434 13,998 8,551 12,028 (279) 346
Czech Koruna 3015 2874 (93,595) (90 000) (3,105) {3,132) 67 {114)
QOther currencles - - - - 3 - {32) 4
13,083 14,634 (540) 343
Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement (223) 156
Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (317) 187
(540} 343

The farr values of the forward contracts are disclosed as a £256,000 (2012 £469,000} asset and £796,000 (2012 £126,000) hability
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Any moverments n the fair values of the contracts are recognised in equity until the hedge transaction occurs, when gans/losses are
recycled to finance income or finance expense

2013 2012
2000 £000
Analysis of movement in hedging reserves
Amounts removed from statement of changes in equity and included in Consoldated Income Statement
dunng the year {187) 358
Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 817) 187
Net movement In hedging reserves in the year in relation to the effective portion of changes in far value
of cash flow hedges (504) 545
At beginning of year 187 (358)
At end of year {(317) 187

There was no ineffectiveness ansing with regards to forward contracts in a designated cash flow hedge
With the exception of currency exposures, the disclosures in this note exclude short-tenm recevables and payables
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26 Financial instruments continued

Market nsk

The Group’s activities expose it pnmanly to the financial nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates The Group enters into
denvative financial mstruments to manage its exposure to foreign currency nsk, including

« forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate nsk ansing on the export of goods to and from the USA, mamland
Europe and the UK, and

» foreign exchange loans to hedge the exchange rate nsk ansing on translation of the Group's mvestment in foreign operations which
have the Euro and Swiss Franc as ther functional currencies

Market nsk exposures are measured using sensitmty analysis as descnbed below

There has been no change to the Group's exposure to market nsks or in the manner in which these nisks are managed and
measured

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group 18 mainly exposed to the currency of the USA (US Dollar currency) and the currency of Mamnland Europe (Eure cumrency)

The carrying amount of the Group's Euro and US Dollar denominated monetary assets and monetary katiliies at the reporting date
are as follows

Assets Liabiities

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Euro 66,232 64,384 14,731 15,082
US Dollar 151,290 98,487 49,130 27,834

If Sterling mcreased by 10% aganst the US Dollar and the Euro, profits before taxation and other equity would decrease as follows

US Dellar Eurg

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Profit 4,263 3,248 1,708 2,081
Other equity 8,595 6,075 4,720 4,503

The profit sensitivity arses mainty from the translation of overseas profits earned dunng the year 10% 15 the sensitivity rate which
management assesses 1o be a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates The Group's profit sensitivity has increased

aganst the US Dollar because more of the Group's profits are earned 1n this currency

27 Commitments
Capital commitments

Capital expenditure authonsed and contracted at 30 March 2013 but not recognised in these accounts amounts to £1,117,000

(2012 £877,000)

Commitments under operating leases

The Group has entered into commercial leases on properties and other equipment The former expire between Apni 2013 and
November 2028 and the latter between Apnl 2013 and January 2016 Only certain property agresments contan an option for renewal

at rental prices based on market pnces at the time of exercise

Total payments under non-cancellable operating leases will be made as follows

Land and buiidings Cther

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Within one year 7,410 6,093 693 441
Within two to five years 17,424 16,274 602 695
After five years 3,374 4,558 - -
28,208 25,925 1,295 1,136
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28 Retirement benefits

Group companies operate both defined benefit and defined contnbution pension schemes The Halma Group Penston Plan and the
Apollo Penston and Life Assurance Plan have defined benefit sections with assets held in separate trustee administered funds Both of
these sections were closed to new entrants dunng 2002/03 and a defined contnbution section was established within the Halma
Group Pension Plan Defined contnbution schemes are mainly adopled in overseas subsichanes

Defined contnbution schemes

The amount charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in respect of defined contnbution schemes was £3,658,000 (2012
£2,877.,000) and represents contnbutions payable to these schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees Where there are employees
who leave the schemes pnor to vesting fully in the contnbutions, the ancillary contnbutions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeted contnbutions

Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates defined benefit schemes for qualifying employees of its UK subsidianes Under the schemes, the employees are
entitled to retirement benefits of up to two-thirds of final pensionable salary on attainment of a retrement age of 60, for members of
the Executive Board, and 65, for all other qualifyng employees No other post-retirement benefits are provided The schemes are
funded schemes

The most recent actuanal valuation of the Halma Group Pension Plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation
was carned out at 1 December 2011 by Mr Adnan Gibbens, Fellow of the Institute of Actuanes The present value of the defined
benefit ohiigation, the related current service cost and the past service cost were measured using the projected unit credit method Mr
Gibbons also carned out the 1 Apnl 2012 actuanal valuation of the Apollo Pension and Life Assurance Plan on the same basis

The projected unit credit method 1s an accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme liabilites make allowance for projected
earnings The accumulated benefit obligation (ABO) 1s an actuanal measure of the present value for service already rendered but
differs from the projected unit credit method in that it includes noe assumptions for future salary increases At the balance sheet date
the gross accumulated benefit obligation was £223m

An altermative method of valuation 1s a solvency basis, often estimated using the cost of buying out benefits at the balance sheet date
with a suitable insurance company This amount represents the amount that would be required to settle the scheme liabilities at the
balance sheet date rather than the Group continuing to fund the ongaing habilities of the scheme The Group estimates that this would
amount to £370m (2012 £315m)

2013 2012 2011

Key assumptions used

Discount rate 4 40% 500% 5 50%
Expected retum on scheme assets 533% 5 68% 8 69%
Expected rate of salary increases 3 30% 320% 4 40%
Pension increases LP 2 5% 220% 2 25% 2 30%
Pension increases LP1 3 0% 250% 275% 2 75%
Inflation — RPI 3 30% 320% 3 4%
Inflation ~ CPI 2 30% 2 45% 29%

Mortality assumptions

Investigations have been carned out within the past three years into the mortality expenence of the Group's defined benefit schemes
These investigations concluded that the current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future Improvements in mortahty
rates The assumed Iife expectattons on retirement at age 65 are

2013 2012 2011
Yeoars Years Years
Retinng today

Males 233 221 220
Fermnales 258 249 248

Retring in 20 years
Males 251 240 239
Females 278 2568 267
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28 Retirement benefits contnued
Both the Halma Group Pension Plan and the Apollo Pension and Life Assurance Plan have a baseline mortalty assumption for 2013,
2012 and 2011 denved from the SNO3 tables To reflect population charactenstics a cne year age deduction has been adopted for

Halma but no adjustment was made for Apolio From 2013, a long-term improvement rate of 1 25% per annum
was Incorporated

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme labilities are set out below

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on scheme habilites
Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0 5% Decrease/increase by 10 8%
Rate of inflation Increase/decrease by 0 5% Increase/decrease by 7 2%
Rate of salary growth Increase/decrease by 0 5% Increase/decrease by 2 1%
Rate of mortality Increase by one year Increase by 2 7%

Amounts recognised in incoeme N respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000

Current service cost 1,932 2,098
Curtalment gain - (101}
Interest cost 9,238 9,684
Expected return on scheme assets {8,769) {9,529}
2,402 2,162

Actuarial gains and losses have been reported in the Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
The actual retum on scheme assets was £17 4m (2012 £7 7m)

The cumulative amount of actuanal losses recognised in the Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
since the date of transition to IFRSs 15 £47m (2012 £25m}

The amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the Group’s obligations in respect of its defined benefit retirement benefit
schemes s as follows

2013 2012 2011
£000 2000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligations {223,447) (185,956) {177,055)
Farr value of scheme assets 176,275 152,959 140,818
Defict in scheme 47,172) {32,997) (36,237)
Past service cost not yet recognised in balance sheet - - -
Liability recogrised in the balance sheet 47,172) (32,997} (36,237)
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows
2013 2012
£000 £000
At beginning of year {185,956) {177,055)
Service cost (1,932) (2,098)
Curtalment gain - 101
Interest cost 9,239) (9.684)
Actuanal losses {30,608) (1.220)
Contnbutions from scheme members {903) {894)
Benefits paid 5,084 4,877
Premiums paid 107 117
At end of year (223,447) {185,956)
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28 Retirement benefits continued
Moverments in the far value of scheme assets were as follows

2013 2012
£000 £000
At beginning of year 152,959 140,818
Expected return on scheme assets 8,769 9,529
Actuanial gains/(losses) 8,638 {1,804)
Contributions from the sponsonng companies 10,197 8,416
Contributions from scheme members 203 994
Benefits paid {5,084) {4.877)
Premiums paid (107) {(117)
At end of year 176,275 152,959
The net movement on actuanal gans and losses was as follows
2013 2012
£000 £000
Defined benefit obligations (30,608) (1.220)
Farr value of scheme assets 8,638 (1,804)
Net actuarial losses {21,970) (3.024)
The analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date were as follows
Expected retum Farr value of assets
2013 2012 2041 2013 2012 2011
% % % £000 £000 £000
Equity instruments 643 650 7 50 101,355 90,460 86,934
Debt mstruments 470 420 520 61,727 50,320 42,419
Property 365 500 600 13,193 12,179 11,465
533 568 669 176,275 152,959 140,818

The overall expected rate of return 1s a weighted average

In July 2010, the UK government announced that CPI should be used as the basis for statutory minimum pension increases
The impact of the change to CPI {from RPI} for the UK plan, where the pension rules mandate inflabion according to the deemed
statutory index, was a credit to the Conschdated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure of £nil 2012 £1 0m)

In conunction with the trustees, the Group conducts asset-liability reviews for ts defined benefit pension scheme The results

of these reviews are used to assist the trustees and the Group to determine the optimal long-term asset allocation with regard to the
structure of the llabilities of the scheme They are also used to assist the trustees in managing the volatility in the underiving mvestment
performance and rsk of a significant increase in the defined benefit deficit by providing information used to determine the scheme’s
investment strategy

As a consequence, the Group Is progressively giving more emphasis to a closer return matching of scheme assets and labilities, both
to ensure the long-term secunty of our defined benefit commitment and to reduce earmings and balance sheet volatility
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28 Retirement benefits continued
The five-year history of expenence adjustiments was as follows
2013 2m2 2011 2010 2009
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligations (223,447) {185,956) {177,055} {170,901) {132,379}
Farr value of scheme assets 176,275 152 959 140,818 127,830 89,811
Defictt in the scheme (47,172) (32 997) (36,237} (43,071) (42,568)
Expenence adjustments on scheme habiities
Amount 246 (224) 157 {136) -
Percentage of scheme liabilities - - - - -
Expenence adustments on schemne assets
Amount (8,667) {1,804) (944) 27.648 (33.696)
Percentage of scheme assets (5% {1)% {1)% 22% 37)%

The estimated amounts of contnbutions expected to be paid to the schemes dunng the year ending 29 March 201415 £9 3m

The levels of contnbutions are based on the current service cost and the expected future cash flows of the defined benefit
scheme The Group estimates the scheme liabilities on average to fall due over 20 and 27 years, respectively, for the
Halma and Apcllo plans

29 Disposal of business

On 22 August 2012, the Group disposed of two businesses within its Process Safety sector, Tntech Holdings Limited and its
subsidiary Tntech intemational Limited (together known as “Tntech”), for an inhal cash consideration of £18,900,000 A further
£839,000 was received In October 2012 in respect of cash and working capital held in the business at the tme of sale In addition,
£2,100,000 15 retaned in escrow and will be released to Halma on the anniversary of the transaction subject to any vahd
warranty/indemnity clams being made by the purchaser The Directors estimate that the entire £2,100,000 will be receved The profit
on disposal 1s estimated to be £8,070,000, being the total £21,839,000 consideration above less £1,435,000 of transaction costs (of
which £86,000 related to a pnor year disposal), £8,008,000 of goodwill and £4,325,000 of net assets

The cash inflow in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement of £19,608,000 compnses £12,733,000 intial consideration for Tritech and
£1,500,000 released from escrow for the prior year disposal of Volumatic Limited less £1.435,000 of transaction costs and £196,000
cash held by the dispcsed business The profit on disposal of £3,543,000 milion and cash inflow of £3,554,000 n the

52 weeks to 31 March 2012 related entirely to the disposal of Volumatic Limited on 30 March 2012

Tntech and Volumatic Limited have not been separately disclosed as discontinued operations as defined by IFRS 5 due to ther nature
and size

30 Events after the balance sheet date

On 11 Aprl 2013 the Group acquired Talentum Developments Limited (Talentum) The initial cash consideration of £2,590,000 for the
share capital 1Is adjustable based on the final level of agreed working capital and cash at closing Contingent consideration of
£250,000 15 payable on or around Apnt 2014 subject to the seller providing certain pre-agreed technical informatton and know-how to
the Group Talentumn forms part of the Infrastructure Safety sector and specialises in the design and manufacture of flame detector
products for a range of industnes, which protect property from the nsk of fire Dus to the proximity of the acquisition date to the date
of approval of the Annual Report, 1t 1s impracticable to provide further information
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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31 Related party transactions
Trading transactions

2013 2012
£000 £000
Associated companies
Purchases from associated companies 519 860
Amounts due to associated companies 3 88
Amounts due from asscciated companies 200 302
Other related parties
Rent charged by other related parties 360 365
Amounts due to other related parties - 20

Other related parties compnse two companies with Halma employees on the Boards and from which two Halma subsicianes rent
property All the transactions above are on an arm’s length basis and on standard business terms

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and Dwisional Chief Executives, who are the key management personnel of the Group, 1s set
out betow in aggregate for each of the categonies specified N 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures Further information about the
remuneration of ndvidual Directors 1s provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 73 to 82

2013 2012

£000 £600

Wages and salanies 4,185 4,342
Pension costs 165 173
Shared-based payment charge 1,643 1,632
5,993 6,047

132 Halma pk Annual Report and Accourts 2013




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT overve r2-09

TO THE MEMBERS OF HALMA PLC —— o

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Halma plc for the 52 week penod ended 30 March 2013 which compnse
the parent company Balance Sheet and the related notes C1 to C12 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr
preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’'s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them i an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent penmmitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditor

As explaned more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilties Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent
company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr iew Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an
opinion on the parent company financial statements In accordance with apphicable law and Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Financial Statements

An audit involves obitaining ewdence about the amounts and disclosurgs in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting pclicies are appropnate to the parent company's arcumstances and have been consistently
apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of signficant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to
dentify matenal nconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
mnconsistencies we consider the imphcations for our report

Opinion on Financial Statements
In our opinion the parent company financial statements

» give a true and fair view of the state of the parent company's affairs as at 30 March 2013,
* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

» the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
20086, and

» the mnformation given in the Directors' Repart for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared i1s consistent with
the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, In
our opinicn

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

« the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

e certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

= we have not receved all the informaticn and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Halma plc for the 52 week penod ended 30 March 2013

Aox  Dutten. o

Alexander Butterworth ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

Reading, UK

13 June 2013
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

30 March 31 March
2013 202
Notes £000 2000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets C3 3,516 3.862
Investments C4 136,832 135,971
140,348 139,833
Current assets
Debtors {amounts faling due within one year) C5 23,748 27,243
Debtors {amounts falling due after more than one year} C5 339,122 194,522
Short-term deposits 2 4,002
Cash at bank and in hand 821 2,024
363,693 227,791
Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings (o] 2,252 3,686
Creditors Cc7 22,876 20,945
Current tax payable 3,303 3,262
28,431 27,883
Net current assets 335,262 196,908
Total assets less current habilties 475,610 339,741
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings c6 154,866 64,014
Creditors c8 15,107 20,467
Net assets 305,637 255,260
Caprtal and reserves
Share capital C10 37,888 37,856
Share premium account Ci1 22,593 22177
Treasury shares C11 {4,534) (4,569)
Capital redemption reserve C11 185 185
Other reserves ci {5,503} (2,202}
Profit and loss account C11 255,003 201,813
Shareholders’ funds ci12 305,637 255,260

The financial statements of Halma plc, company number 40932, were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 June 2013

AUWWillams KJ Thompson
tor Director
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY Ovevon o200

Business review 10-59
AC C O U NTS Governance 60-86
Fmancal statements 87-147

C1 Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The separate Company financial statements are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 and have been prepared on
the histoncal cost basis and comply with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and law The prnincipal Company
accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the current and preceding years and are described below

Related parties
The Company 1s exempt under the terms of FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing transactions with other members of the
Halma Group

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and labilities
denominated in foreign curencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates prevailing at that date Any gamn or loss ansing
from subsequent exchange rate movements 1s Included as an exchange gan or loss In the profit and loss account

Share-based payments
The Company has adopted FRS 20 and the accounting policies followed are in all matenal respects the same as the Group's policy
under IFRS 2 This policy is shown on pages 96 and 97

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less provision for impairment

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less prowvisions for imparment and depreciation which, with the exception of freehold land which 1s not
depreciated, 1s provided on all fixed assets on the straight-lne method, each item being written off over its estimated ife The pnncipal
annual rates used for this purpose are

Freehold property 2%
Plant, equipment and vehicles 8% t0 33 3%
Leases

The costs of operating leases of property and other assets are charged on a straight line basis over the life of the lease

Pensions

The Company makes contnbutions to defined contribution pension plans, which are charged against profits when they become
payable The Company also paricipates in a Group-wide defined benefit pension plan This plan 1s operated on a basis that does not
enable Indmdual companies 1o identify therr share of the undertying assets and habilities, and in accerdance with FRS 17 the Company
accounts for its contnbutions to the plan as If it was a defined contnbution plan

Taxation
Taxation compnses current and deferred tax

Current tax I1s the expected tax payable, on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted, or substantially enacted, at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable In respect of previous years

The Campany provides for tax deferred because of timing differences between profits as computed for taxation purposes and profits
as stated in the accounts, on an undiscounted basis Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in
the penods In which the timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted ar
substantally enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are only recognised if recovery 1s considered more hkely than not
on the basis of all avalable ewdence

Bank borowings

Interest-beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issug costs Finance charges,
ncluding direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in profit or loss and are added to the carrying amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the pencd in which they anse
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY
ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

C2 Result for the year

As permitted by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 20086, the Profit and Loss Account of Halma plc 1s not presented as part
of these accounts The Company has reported a profit after taxation of £90,955,000 (2012 £81,439,000)

Auditor's remuneration for audit services to the Company was £142,000 (2012 £126,000)
Total employee costs including Directors) were

2013 2012

£000 £000

Wages and salanes 5,398 4,546
Social security costs 490 473
Pension costs 417 389
6,305 5,408

2013 2012

Number Number

Number of employees (all in the UK) 45 45

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out on pages 73 to 82 within the Remuneration Report and form part ¢f these financial

statements

C3 Fixed assets — tangible assets

Plant
Freehold equiprmeant
properties and vehicles Total
£000 £000
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 3,043 2,296 5,339
Additions at cost - 129 129
Disposals - (152) (152)
At 30 March 2013 3,043 2,273 5,316
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2012 338 1,139 1,477
Charge for the year 48 341 389
Disposals - {66) (66)
At 30 March 2013 386 1,414 1,800
Carrying amounts
At 30 March 2013 2,657 859 3,516
At 1 Apnl 2012 2,705 1,157 3.862
C4 Investments
Shares in Group companies
2013 2012
£000 £000
At cost less amounts wnitten off at beginning of year 135,971 136,501
Increase In nvestments 18,402 -
Disposal of investments {17,541) {530)
At cost less amounts written off at end of year 136,832 135,971

The increase of £861,000 compnses

a) £8,537,000 increase in investment in a subsidiary,

b} £9,865,000 investment in a newly acquired 100% owned subsidiary, ASL Holdings Limited,
¢) £13,823,000 reduction in investment following the Company’s disposai of Trtech, and

d) £3,718,000 reduction in investment in vanous dormant companies

The reduction of £530,000 n the pnor year related to the Company's disposal of Volumatic Limited

Details of pnncipal subsidiary companies are set out on pages 142 to 145 Halma plc owns 100% of the ordinary share capital of all its

subsidianes, which are ncorporated in Great Bntan, other than in the following list, where they pnncipally operate All of the following

companies’ interests below are held by subsidiary companies
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C4 Investments continued
Name of company
Fortress Interlocks Pty Linited
Apolio {Beying) Fire Products Co Limited
BEA Electronics Co Limited
TL Jones Parts Shanghai
Crowcon {Beyng) Detechion Instruments Limited
Hydreka S A S
SERV Trayvou Interverroullage S A S
Apollo Gesellschaft iur Meldetechnologie mbH
Ocean Optics Germany GmbH
Rudolf Riester GmbH
Diba Japan KK
Berson Mileutechrek B V
Netherlocks Safety Systems BV
Bureau D'Electromque Appliquée S A
Awvire Global Pte Limited (formerty TL Jones Asia Pacific Pte LUimited)
E-Motve Display Pte Limited
Medicel AG
Fabncation de Produits de Sécumeé SaRL
Halma Holdings Inc
Accudynamics, LLC
Accutome In¢
A Products and Controls Inc
Alcat Scientific, Inc
AQuIonIcs Inc
Avo Photonics  Inc
BEA Inc
Bio-Chem Fluidics Inc
Castel! Interocks Inc
Diba Industnes, Inc
Fiberguide Industries Inc
Janus Elevator Products Inc
Kirk Key Interlock Company, LLC
Labsphere, Inc
Micro Surgical Technology Inc
Monitor Elevator Products LLC
Ocean Optics, Inc
Oklahoma Safety Equipment Co Inc
Palintest, Inc
Perma Pure LLC
Puetteq Inc {formerty Ocean Thin Films Inc }
Riester USA LLC
Sensorex Corporation
SunTech Medical inc
Volk Cptical Inc

Overview 02-09
Business review 10-59
Govermnance 60-86

Financial statements 87-147

Country of incorporation
Australa
China
China
China
China
France
France
Germany
Germany
Germany
Japan
The Netherlands
The Netherlands
Belgium
Singapore
Singapore
Switzerland
Tunisia
USA

USA

USA

USA

USA

USA

USA

usSAa

USA

USA

USA

USA

USA

USA

usa

USA

USA

usa

usA

USA

usa

USA

USA

USA

USA

usa
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY
ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

C5 Debtors
2013 2012
£000 £000
Amounts faling due within one year
Amounts due from Group companies 15,933 20,759
Qther debtors 2,604 1,845
Prepayments and accrued ncome 4,943 4,464
Deterred tax asset {note C9) 268 175
23,748 27,243
Amounts faliing due after more than one year
Amounts due from Group companies 339,122 194,522
C6 Borrowings
2013 2012
£000 £000
Faling due within one year
Overdratts 2,252 3,686
Falling due after more than one year
Unsecured bank lcans 154,866 64,014
Total borrowings 157,118 67,700

On 26 October 2011, the Company signed a new unsecured five-year revolving credit facility for £260 milion  This replaced the
previous £165 mullion facility which was due to expire in February 2013 Therefore, the facility under which the bank loans are drawn
expires within two to five years (2012 within two to five years) and at 30 March 2013 £105,134,000 (2012 £195,986,000) remained
committed and undrawn

The bank overdraits, which are unsecured, at 30 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 were drawn on uncommitted facilities which all
expire within one year, and were held pursuant to a Group pooling arrangement which offsets them against credit balances in
subsidiary undertakings

The Company 1s part of an arrangement between UK subsidianes whereby overdraft faciities of £17,025,000 (2012 £17,370,000} are
cross-guaranteed Cf these faciibes £404,000 {2012 £379,000) was drawn

C7 Creditors' amounts falling due within one year

2013 2012
£000 £000
Trade creditors 1,646 1278
Amounts owing to Group companies 16,724 15,185
QOther taxation and social secunty 1,212 1,281
Other creditors 872 8186
Accruals and deferred income 2,422 2,385
22,876 20,945
C8 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2013 2012
£000 £000
Amounts owing to Group companies 11,197 20,122
Prowision for contingent consideration 3,500 -
Other creditors 410 345
15,107 20,467

These labilities fall due as follows
Within one to two years 2,410 345
Within two to five years 1,500 -
After more than five years 11,197 20,122

The £3,500,000 prowviston for contingent consideration represents the Directors’ best estimate of amounts payable following the
Company's acquisition of ASL Holdings Limited The £3,500,000 1s payable in two tranches on or around May 2014 and May 2015 of
between Cnil and £2,000,000, and £nd and £1,500,000 respectively, dependent on the growth in sales of the acquired business up to
March 2014 and March 2015
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C9 Deferred tax
2013 2012
£000 £000
Movement in deferred tax asset
At beginning of year 175 812
Credit/icharge) to profit and loss account 93 {195)
Charge to reserves - 442)
At end of year (note C&) 268 175
Deferred tax compnses short-term tming differences
C10 Share capital
Issued and fully pad
2013 2012
£000 £000
Ordinary shares of 10p each 37,888 37,856

The number of ordinary shares in 1ssue at 30 March 2013 was 378,880,622 (2012 378,555,028), including treasury shares of
1,143,200 (2012 1,404,269) Changes dunng the year in the 1ssued ordinary share capital were as follows

tssued and fully paxd
£000

AL 1 Apnil 2012 37,856
Share options exercised 32
At 30 March 2013 37,888

The total consideration received In cash in respect of share options exercised amounted to £453,000 (2012 £465,000) At the
date of these accounts, the number of ordinary shares in 1Issue was 378,880,622 (2012 378,555,028), ncluding treasury shares
of 1,303,209 (2012 1,396,240) Detalls of share options in 1ssue on the Company’s share capital and share-based payments are
included in note 23 to the Group accounts

C11 Reserves
Non-distnbutable Distnbutable

Share Caprtal Total profit

premium Treasury redemption Other and loss

account shares reserve reserves account

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 Apnil 2032 22177 {4,569) 185 {2,202) 201,813
Profit transferred to reserves - - - - 90,955
Dradends paid - - - - {37,765)
Issue of shares 421 - - - -
Movement in other reserves - - - {3,301} -
Net moverment i treasury shares - 35 - - -
Defered tax to equity - - - - -
At 30 March 2013 22,598 {4,534) 185 {5,503) 255,003

The capital redemption reserve was created on repurchase and cancellation of the Company’s own shares The other reserves
represent the provision being established in respect of the value of equity-settled share option plans and performance share plan
awards made by the Company Treasury shares are the Company's own shares purchased and are held to fulfil its obligations under
the performance share plan

C12 Reconcihation of movement in shareholders’ funds

2013 2012

£000 000

At begnning of year 255,260 210,879
Profit after taxation 90,955 81,439
Dnadends paid {37,765) {35,232)
lssue of shares 453 465
Net movement in treasury shares 35 447
Movement in other reserves (3,301) (2 296)
Deferred tax to equity - {442)
At end of year 305,637 255,260
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SUMMARY 2004 TO 2013

UK GAAP UK GAAP
2003/04 2004/05
£000 £000
Revenue {note 2) 292,640 299,119
Overseas sales (note 2) 206,102 218,745
Praofit before taxation, acquired intangibles amortisation and goodwill wntten off {note 3) 50,284 50,389
Net tangible assets/capital employed 95,935 80,750
Borrowings 26,934 33,344
Cash and cash equmvalents 48,482 45,348
Employees {note 2) 2,925 3,002
Eamings per ordinary share (note 2) 609p 797p
Adjusted samings per ordinary share (note 3) 9 44p g42p
Year on year increase/{decrease) in adjusted earnings per ordinary share 10 4% {0 2%)})
Retum on Sales (notes 2 and 4) 17 2% 16 8%
Return on Capttal Employed (note 5) 50 5% 52 1%
Year on year increase in dvidends per ordinary share (paid and proposed) 7% 5%
Ordinary share pnee at financial year end 149p 161p
Market caprtalisation at financial year end £546 5m £593 8m
Notes
1 P;Saénmlﬁ\}gé;m for 2003/04 are stated on the basis of UK GAAP only as i is not practicable to restate amounts prior to the date of transition to

2 Contnuing and discontinued operations

3 Adsted 1o remove amorisation of acquired intangtble assets and, from 2010711 acquisition transacton ¢osts and movement on contingent considaration IFRS figures
nclude results of discontinued operations up to the date of their sales or closure but exclude matenal discontinued and continuing profits on sales or closures of
operabons

4 Return on Sales Is defined as profit before taxation goodwil/acquired ntangible asset amortisation acqustion costs (from 2010/11) and exceptional tems expressed as
a percentage of revenue

5 Retun on Capital Employed s defined in note 3 to the accounts
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IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS FRS IFRS IFRS
2004/05 2005/06 200607 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010111 201112 2012/13
£000 £000 000 €000 £000 £O00 £000 £000 £000
299,119 337,348 354 606 397 955 455,928 459,118 518,428 579883 619,210
218,745 249,055 258,050 288,701 351,522 360,779 412,297 454,270 503,635
49,912 59,641 66,091 73,215 79,087 86,214 104,551 120,465 130,661
104,417 105,396 113,048 134,320 173,128 145,519 146,964 163,283 188,701
33,344 32,308 29,762 72,393 86,173 21,824 79,688 64,014 160,013
45,348 35,826 22,051 28,118 34,987 31,006 42 610 45,305 49,723
3,002 3,187 3,326 3,683 4,018 3,689 3,875 4,347 4,716
938p 11 08p 11 86p 1349p 14 07p 16 10p 1923p 2301p 25 22p
9 45p 11 27p 12 42p 13 86p 15 30p 16 89p 20 49p 24 45p 26 22p
N/A 19 3% 10 9% 11 5% 104% 10 4% 213% 194% 7 2%
16 7% 17 7% 18 6% 18 4% 17 3% 18 8% 202% 20 8% 211%
48 8% 56 9% 60 1% 55 8% 47 7% 61 3% 719% 74 7% 71 3%
5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 7% 7% 7% 7%
161p 188p 220p 192p 156p 259p 355p 381p 518p
£593 8m £693 4m £821 8m L7117 7m £583 7m £978 1m £1,3427m £1,440 8m £1,962 6m
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HALMA DIRECTORY

Prnncipal operating companies by sector
Process Safety

Main products

Castell Safety International Lirmited

Safety systems for controlling hazardous industnal processes

Fortress Interlocks Limited

Safety systems for controlling access to dangerous machines

Kirk Key Intertock Company, LLC

Key interlocks and interlocking systems for the protection of personnel and equipment

Netherlocks Safety Systems BV

Process safety systems for petrochemical and industnal applications

SERV Trayvou Interverroullage S A S

Safety systems for controling access to dangerous machines

Smith Flow Control Linited

Process safety systems for petrochemical and industnal applications

Crowcon Detection Instruments Limited

Gas detection instruments {or personnel and plant safety

Elfab Limted

Pressure sensitive relief devices to protect process plant

Oseco Inc

Pressure sensitive relief devices to protect process plant

Infrastructure Safety

Apollo Fire Detectors Limited

Smoke and heat detectors sounders, beacons and interfaces

Fire Fighting Enterpnses Limited

Beam smoke detectors and specialist fire extinguishing systems

Avire Limited

Infrared salety systems for elevator doors and elevator emergency communications

Janus Elevator Products Inc

Elevator safety components including, displays, door systems and emergency
communications

Monitor Elevator Products LLC

Custom manufactunng of control panels for the elevator industry

Bureau D’Electronique Appliquée S A (BEA)

Sensors for autematic doors

Texecom Limrted

Secunty sensors and signaling products

Medical

Accutome, Inc

Surgical and diagnostic instruments and a vanety of pharmaceuticals for the ophthalmic
marketplace

Keeler Limited

Ophthalmic instruments for diagnostic assessment of eye conditions

Medicel AG

Instruments for ophthafmic surgery

MicroSurgical Technology, Inc

Ophthalmic surgical products, focusing on single-use devices used In cataract surgery

Rudolf Riester GmbH

Diagnostic medical devices for ophthalmolegy, blood pressure measurement and ear,
nose and throat diagnostics

SunTech Medical Inc

Climeal grade non-invasive blood pressure menrtoring products and technologies

Volk Optical Inc

Ophthalmic equipment and lenses as aids to diagnosis and surgery

Accudynamics, LLC

Components pnmarily used in medical, Iife science and scientdic instruments

Baoding Longer Precision Pump Co, Lid

Perstattic, synnge and gear pumps for use 1n laboratory, industnal and medical applications

for both end-user and QEM customers

Bip-Chem Fluidics Ing

Miniature valves, micro pumps and fluid components for medical, Ife science and scientfic

instruments

Diba Industres, Inc

Specialised compoenents and complete fluid transfer subassemblies for medical, Iife science

and scientific nstruments
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Prncipal locations

Telephone

Overview 02-09

Business review 10-59

Govemance 60-86

Financtal statements 87147 i
E-manl Website

Kingsbury, London (Head Office)
Shanghai, China

+44 (020 8200 1200

uksales@casiell com

www castell com

Wolverhampton, West Midlands {Head Office)
Melbourne, Australia

+44 ({0)1902 349000

sales@fortressinteniocks com

www fortressinteriocks com

Massilon, Ohio

+1 (1)800 438 2442

sales@kirkkey com

www Kirkkey com

Alphen aan den Ryn, The Netherlands

+31 {01172 471339

sales@netherlocks com

www netherlocks com

Paris, France {Head Office}
Tunisia

+33(0)1 48181515

sales@servtrayvou com

WWW servirayvou com

Witham, Essex

+44 (011376 517901

sales@smithflowcontrol com

www smithflowcontrol com

Abingdon, Oxtordshire (Head Office)
Beying, China
Edanger, Kentucky

+44 (0)1235 557700

sales@crowcon com

WWW Crowcon com

North Shields, Tyne & Wear

+44 {0)191 293 1234

sales@etab com

www elfab com

Broken Arrow, Oklahoma

+1 (1)918 258 5626

info@aoseco com

WWw 0Seco com

Havant, Hampshire (Head Cffice)
Pontiac Michigan
Beying, China

+44 (0)2302 492412

enquirnes@apollo-fire co uk

www apollo-fire co uk

Hitchin, Hertfordshire

+44 (0)1462 444740

sales@ffeuk com

www fleuk com

Maidenhead, Berkshire (Head Office)
Shanghai, China
Singapore

+44 (0}1628 540100

sales uk@awvire-global com

www avire-global com

Hauppauge, New York +1 {1)631 864 3699 sales@anuselgvator com www |[anuselevator com
Hauppauge, New York +1 (1)631 543 4334 fixtures@mcontrols com www mcontrols com
Lidge, Belgium {Head Office} +32 (()4361 6565 info@bea be www bea be

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
Beying, China

Haslingden, Lancashire

+44 {0)1706 220460

sales@texe com

www texe com

Malvern, Pennsytvania {Head Office)
Cuik, The Netherlands

+1 {1)610 888 0200

info@accutome com

Wwww accutome com

windsor, Berkshire (Head Office)
Broomall, Philadelphia

+44 (0)1753 B57177

info@keeler co uk

www keeler co uk

Wolthalden, Switzerland

+41 71727 1050

info@medicel com

www medicelag com

Redmond, Washington

+1 (1)425 566 0644

info@microsurgical com

www rmicrosurgical com

Jungingen, Germany

+43 (0)74 77 92 700

info@nester de

www riester de

Mormnsville, North Carolina (Head Office}
Shenzen, China

+1 {1)919 654 2300

sales@suntechmed com

www suntechmed com

Mentor, Ohio

+1 {1)440 942 6161

volk@volk com

www volk com

Lakeville, Massachusetts

+1 {1)508 946 4545

info@accudynamics com

www accudynamics com

Baoding, Hebey, China

+86 312 3110087

longer@longerpump com

www longerpump com

Boenton, New Jersey

+1(1)973 263 3001

sales us@biochemfiuidics com

www brochemiluidics com

Danbury, Connecticut (Head Office)
Cambndge, UK

+1 (1}203 744 0773

salesdept@dbaind com

www dibaind com
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HALMA DIRECTORY
CONTINUED

Pnncpal operating companies by sector
Environmental & Analysis

Main products

Avo Photonics, Inc

Advanced, miniatunsed photonic companents and subsystems for OEM customers
sening a wide range of end-markets

Fibergude Industnes, Inc

Design and manufacture of oplical fibre cables and assemblies

Labsphere, Inc

Light testing and measurement products and specialised optical coatings

Ocean Optics, Inc

Miniature fibre optic spectrometers for consumer electronics, process control
ermvironmental monitonng, ke sciencas and medical diagnostics

Pielteg Inc Dichroic optical fitters and precision optics for scientific, defence, metrology and
entertanment apphcations
Aquionics Inc Ultraviolet equipment for treatment of drinking water, waste water, water for re-use

and water used in ndustnal processes

Berson Milleutechrniek BV

Uliravolet Iight equipment for treating dnnking water, waste water and water re-use
applications

Hanovia Limited

Ultravictet hght equipment for treating water used in the manufacture of food, drinks,
pharmaceuticals, electronic components and for manne ballast water treatment

HWM-Water Limited

Multi-utiity M2M solutions provider, iIncluding data recording and management for
water networks and energy conservation

Hydreka S A S

Equipment and software for analysis of the whole clean and dirty water cycle and for
leak detection systems

Palintest Lumnited

Instrumenis for analysing water and measunng environmental pollution

Sensorex Gorporation

Electrochermical sensors for water analysis applications w1 the process industry and
laboratory markets

Alicat Scientific, Inc

Mass flow meters and controllers for tagh-precision flund flow measurement

Perma Pure LLC

Gas dryers and hurnidifiers for fuel cell, medical, scientiic and industnal use

Group

Halma Holdings Inc

Halma North Amencan Head Cffice

Halma Intemational Lmited Representative Offices

Halma China hubs in Shanghai, Beying, Chengdu, Guangzhou and Shenyang

Halma Trading and Services India Pvt Ltd

Halma India hub

144 Halma pk Annual Report and Accounts 2013




Overview 02-09
Business review 10-59
Govemance 60-86
Financial statements 87147
Prnctpal locations Telephone E-mail Websrte
Horsham, Pennsytvania +1 (1)215 441 0107 sales@avophotonics com www avophotonics com

Stiring, New Jersey

+1 (1) 908 647 6601

info@fiberguide com

www fiberguide com

North Sutton, New Hampshire (Head Office)

Shanghai, China

+1 (1)603 927 4266

labsphere@labsphere com

www labsphere com

Dunedin, Flonda {Head Office)
Orlando, Flenda

Duwven, The Netherlands
Shanghai, China

+1 {1)727 733 2447

info@oceanoptics com

www oceanoplics com

Largo, Flonda (Head Cffice)
BGenver, Colorado

+1 (1727 545 0741

info@pixelteq com

www pixetteq com

Erlanger, Kentucky

+1(1}859 341 0710

sales@aguicnics com

WWW aquiomncs com

Einghoven, The Netherlands

+31 (0)40 290 7777

info@berscnuv com

www bersonuv com

Slough, Berkshire

+44 (0)1753 515300

sales@hanowia com

www hanovia com

Cwmbran, South Wales (Head Office)
Cincinnati, Chig

+44 {0}1633 489 479

sales@hwm-water com

www hwm-water com

Lyon, France

+33 ()4 7253 11 53

hydreka@hydreka fr

www hydreka com

Gateshead, Tyne & Wear

+44 (3191 491 0808

sales@palintest com

www palintest com

Orange County, Calfornia

+1(1)714 895 4344

emall@sensorex com

WWW sensorex Com

Tucson, Anzona

+1 {1)520 290 6060

info@alicatscientific com

www alicatscientific com

Toms Raver, New Jersey

+1(1)732 244 0010

info@permagpure com

Www permapure com

Cincinnat), Ohio

+1{1)513 772 5501

halmaholdings@halmaholdings com

www halma com

China

+86 21 5206 8686

halmachina@halma com

www halma cn

Mumba, India

+91 (22)6708 0400

halmandia@halma com

www halma com
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION AND ADVISERS

Financal calendar

2012/13 Half year results

2012/13 Intenm drndend paid

Intenm management statement
2012/13 Final results

2012/13 Report and Accounts 1ssued

Annual General Meeting and intenm management statemenit

2012/13 Finat dwvidend payable
2013/14 Half year results

20 November 2012
6 February 2013
14 February 2013
13 June 2013

25 June 2013

25 July 2013

21 August 2013
19 November 2013

2013/14 Intenm dmidend payable February 2014
Intenm management statement February 2014
2013/14 Final resuits June 2014
Analysts of shareholders Shareholders Shares
at 16 May 2013 {number) % (number} %
Number of shares held
1-5,000 4,722 766 6,854,118 18
5,001 - 25,000 893 14 5 9,262,974 24
25,001 - 100,000 278 45 13,498,260 36
100,001 - 750,000 193 31 58,851,260 150
750,001 and over 81 13 292,413,010 772
6,167 100G 378,880,622 1000
Share prce
London Stock Exchange, pence per 10p share 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Highest 531 430 367 264 222
Lowest 373 306 240 158 143
Dwidends
Pence per 10p share 203 2012 2011 2010 2009
Intenm 406 379 354 331 315
Final 637" 595 556 518 478
Total 1043 974 910 850 793
* Proposed

Registered office
Misbourne Court

Rectory Way

Amersham

Bucks HP7 ODE

Tel +44 {0)1494 721111
halma@halma com
Website www halma com

Registered in England and Wales, No 40932

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pawilions

Bndgwater Road

Bnstol BS99 627

Tel +44 (0)870 707 1046

Fax +44 (0)870 703 6101

Website www nvestorcentre co uk
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Investor informaticn

Visit our website, www halma com, for investor information and Company news In addsion to accessing financial data, you can view
and download Annual and Half Year Reports, analyst presertations, find contact detasls for Halma senior executives and subsidiary
companies and access links to Halma subsidiary websites You can also download our tPad app or subscribe to an

e-mail news alert service {0 automatically receve an e-mail when significant announcements are made

Shareholding information

Please contact our registrars, Computershare, directly for all enguines about your shareholding Visit ther Investor Centre website
www Investorcentre co uk for online information about your shareholding {you will need your shareholder reference number which can
be found on your share certfficate or dividend tax voucher), or telephone the registrars direct using the dedicated telephone number
for Halma shareholders (+44 (0) 870 707 1046}

Dividend mandate

Shareholders can arrange to have therr dividends paid directly inte their bank or bullding society account by completing a bank
mandate form The advantages to using this service are the payment 1s more secure than sending a chegue through the post,

it avaids the inconvenience of paying in a chegue and there s no nsk of lost, stolen or out of date cheques A mandate form can
be obtaned from Computershare or you will find one on the reverse of the tax voucher of your last dvidend payment

Dividend reinvestment plan

The Company operates a dmdend reinvestment plan ('DRIP) which offers shareholders the option to elect to have their cash
dwvidends remnvested in Halma ordinary shares purchased in the market You can register for the DRIP online by visiting
Computershare's Investor Centre website (as above) or by requesting an application form direct from Computershare Shareholders
who wish to elect for the DRIP for the forthcoming final dmdend, but have not already done so, should return a DRIP application form
to Computershare no later than 1 August 2013

American Depositary Receipts

The Halma plc Amencan Depositary Receipts {ADRs) are traded on the Over The Counter market (OTC) under the symbo! HLMLY
One ADR represents three Halma plc ordinary shares JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A 1s the depositary If you should have any quenes,
please contact

JPMorgan Chase Bank N A, PO Box 64504, St Paul, MN 55164-0854, USA E-mall jpmorgan adr@wellsfargc com Telephone
number for general quenes {800} 990 1135 Telephone number from outside the USA +1 851 453 2128

Electronic communications

All shareholder communications, including the Company’s Annual Report and Accounts, are made avallable to shareholders on the
Halma website and you may opt to receive e-mail notification that documents and information are available to view and download
rather than to receve paper copies through the post Using electronic commurications helps us to imit the amount of paper we
use and asssts us In reducing our costs If you would bke to sign up for this service, visit Computershare's Investor Centre website
You may change the way you recewve communications at any bme by contacting Computershare

Share dealing facilities

A low cost telephone dealing serwice has been arranged with Stocktrade which provides a smple way for buying or seling Halma
shares Basic commuission i1s 0 5% up to £10,000, reducing to 0 2% thereafter (subject to a minimum commission of £15) For further
information please call 0845 601 0995 and guote reference Low Co(0198

Annual General Meeting
The 119th Annual General Meeting of Halma plc will be held in the Ballroom at The Berkeley Hotel, Wilton Place, London SW1X 7RL
on Thursday 25 July 2013 at 11 30 am

Investor Relations
contacts

Rachel Hirst/Andrew Jagues

MHP Communications
60 Great Portland Street
London W1W 7RT

Tel +44 (0)20 3128 8100
Fax +44 (0)20 3128 8171

halma@mhpc com

Andrew Wilhams

Halma plc

Misboume Court

Rectory Way

Amersham

Bucks HP7 ODE

Tel +44 (0)1484 721111

Fax +44 (0)1494 728032
investor relations@halma com

Auditors
Deloitte LLP
Abbots House
Abbey Street
Reading RG1 3BD

Bankers

The Royal Bank

of Scotland plc

280 Bishopsgate
London EC2M 4RB

Financial advisers
Lazard & Co , Lmited
50 Stratton Street
London W1J 8LL

Brokers

Credit Suisse Secunties
(Europe) Limited

One Cabot Square
London E14 4QJ

Investec Investment Banking
2 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7QP

Solicitors

CMS Cameron McKenna LLP
Mitre House

160 Aldersgate Street
London EC1A 4DD

Designed by luminous co uk
Printed by Halstan co uk
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